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News Release
LA-Z-BOY, INCORPORATED REPORTS RECORD FISCAL 2000
RESULTS FOR FOURTH QUARTER AND FULL YEAR
NYSE & PCX: LZB

Contact: Gene Hardy
E-mail:gene.hardy@la-z-boy.com

(734) 241-4306

MONROE, MI., May 31, 2000 - For the fiscal fourth quarter and full year
ended April 29, 2000, La-Z-Boy Incorporated again achieved record sales and
profits. La-Z-Boy Incorporated is one of the world's leading residential
furniture producers.
Financial Details
Sales of $631.1 million for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000 rose by
$265.3 million, up 73%, from the year-earlier quarter of $365.8 million. About
$223 million of this increase came from recent La-Z-Boy acquisitions, as
discussed below. Operating profit for the fourth quarter increased 42% on a
year-over-year basis, to $51.1 million from $36.0 million. "EBITDA" (earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) rose 52% to $63.1 million
in the most recent quarter, and represented 10% of the quarter's sales versus
11% in the final quarter of fiscal 1999.
Fourth quarter net income for fiscal 2000 grew 30% to $29.7 million from
$22.8 million a year earlier, while diluted earnings per share increased 14% to
$0.49 from $0.43 in fiscal 1999. The fourth quarter of fiscal 2000 contained 14
weeks as compared with 13 weeks in the prior year's final quarter.
Full year sales totaled $1.717 billion in fiscal 2000, up 33% from the
prior year's $1.288 billion. Operating income for the year increased 35%, while
net income rose 32% and diluted earnings per share advanced 29% to $1.60 from
$1.24 a year earlier.
Operations
"Fiscal 2000 was another excellent year for La-Z-Boy," said president and
chief operating officer Gerald L. Kiser. "We ended fiscal 2000 as a much bigger
family of companies than when the year began, and we have already begun to build
upon and leverage the strengths of our various operating businesses for the
benefit of the company as a whole.
"In addition to achieving record
three publicly-stated financial goals
existing operations exceeded industry
and operating return on capital again

sales and profits, we again exceeded our
for the year: sales growth from La-Z-Boy's
growth; operating profit margin increased
exceeded 20%.

"Although the recent short-term interest rate hikes by the Federal Reserve
Board are of some concern, insofar as they may lead to a dampening of overall
U.S. consumer demand, we believe the long term sales outlook for both our
industry and La-Z-Boy continues to be strong. Given our large and growing
gallery distribution, our exciting new product introductions, the product
diversity brought to us by our recent acquisitions, and the extraordinary
strength of the La-Z-Boy brand name, we are optimistic about the future."
Acquisitions
La-Z-Boy Incorporated completed three important strategic acquisitions
during fiscal 2000. Chairman Patrick H. Norton noted, "These new members of the
La-Z-Boy family have broadened our product mix, brought in strong new market
leadership positions for us in the youth and contract furniture segments, and
moved La-Z-Boy to the forefront of the residential furniture industry,
size-wise. Their integration into the La-Z-Boy organization is proceeding
smoothly.
"Bauhaus USA and Alexvale Furniture are both major players in the important
department store distribution channel. LADD - a very substantial U.S. furniture
manufacturer in its own right - provides us with a substantially enhanced
presence in the good-to-better casegoods and upscale upholstery sectors, in
addition to LADD's youth and contract businesses. Taken together, these three
companies have added more than $800 million to La-Z-Boy's annualized sales base.
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"Importantly, our unique distribution network of stand-alone and in-store
galleries continued to increase and broaden during fiscal 2000, providing us
with a major competitive edge in the retail consumer marketplace. La-Z-Boy
Residential Division has 285 Furniture Galleries and 312 in-store galleries,
which together account for 5.4 million square feet of retail selling space. An
additional 3.6 million square feet of retail floor space is dedicated
exclusively to other La-Z-Boy, Inc. manufactured products. This figure includes
the in-store gallery distribution brought to La-Z-Boy by LADD's Pennsylvania
House, Clayton Marcus, and Lea Industries divisions."
Operating Division Related
Last fall, La-Z-Boy Residential, with about $900 million in annual sales,
was reorganized as a separate operating unit to provide increased support and
focus for the division's continuing expansion and to improve organizational
effectiveness of corporate management. In keeping with its commitment to
providing innovative, leading-edge products, the Residential division introduced
the Oasis(R) recliner with a built in electric cooler, phone, massage and
heating system. It also launched the Explorer(R) recliner, the industry's first
"e-cliner". The Explorer(R) joins the power of the La-Z-Boy, Sony and Microsoft
WebTV names in a first ever marketing partnership.
Both England/Corsair and Kincaid added stand-alone gallery store operations
to their retail product distribution mix during the year. In addition,
England/Corsair finished a year of exceptional sales growth and added two new
manufacturing plants.
Finally, April's semiannual International Home Furnishings market in High
Point, N.C. was an excellent one for the La-Z-Boy family of companies. Our
overall results from the April market suggest a healthy business tone for the
near future - barring an economic slowdown brought on either by the Federal
Reserve Board or by other external incluences.
More Information
La-Z-Boy Incorporated's Form 8-K filing includes an income statement,
balance sheet, cash flow statement, notes to financial statements, annual report
narratives and additional management discussion and is available now at the
Company's internet site (www.lazboy.com). This news release is just one part of
La-Z-Boy Incorporated's disclosures and should be read in conjunction with the
other information in the Form 8-K.
Forward-Looking Statements
This news release contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning
of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such statements are
dependent on a number of factors which could cause actual results to differ
materially from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements.
Such factors include changes in consumer demand for home furnishings in addition
to those factors set forth in the Company's required filings with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Fourth Quarter Analysis
Unaudited Quarter (14 weeks) Ended April 29, 2000 Compared to
Quarter (13 weeks) Ended April 24, 1999

Sales
Cost of sales

Income Statement Analysis
Fourth Quarter Ended
-----------------------------------------FY00
Over
% of Sales
(Under)
----------------------FY99
2000
1999
---------------------------73%
100.0%
100.0%
79%
75.3%
72.5%
---------------------------55%
24.7%
27.5%

Gross profit
Selling, general and
administrative
Operating profit
Interest expense
Interest income
Other income
Pretax income
Income tax expense
Net income
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
Dividends per share

62%
---------42%

16.6%
---------8.1%

17.7%
---------9.8%

331%
(36%)
40%
---------32%

0.7%
0.1%
0.1%
---------7.6%

0.3%
0.2%
0.2%
---------9.9%

36%
---------30%
==========

38.0%*
---------4.7%
==========

37.1%*
---------6.2%
==========

14%
14%
0%

* As a percent of pretax income, not sales.

Segment Analysis
Fourth Quarter Ended
-------------------------------------------------------------------------Net Sales
Operating Profit
-----------------------------------------------------------------FY00
FY00
Over
% of Total
Over
% of Sales
(Under)
---------------------(Under)
------------------FY99
FY00
FY99
FY99
FY00
FY99
------------------------------------------- --------Residential upholstery
Residential casegoods
Contract
Unallocated corporate
costs & eliminations
Consolidated

40%
198%
214%
N/A
---------73%
==========

65.2%
25.5%
9.3%
N/A
---------100.0%
==========
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80.2%
14.7%
5.1%
N/A
--------100.0%
=========

19%
141%
337%
(433%)
---------42%
==========

9.9%
6.2%
6.5%
N/A
-------8.1%
========

11.6%
7.7%
(8.6%)
N/A
--------9.8%
=========

LA-Z-BOY INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Unaudited, dollar amounts in thousands)
Unaudited
Fourth Quarter Ended
--------------------April 29,
April 24,
2000
1999
(14 weeks) (13 weeks)
---------- ---------Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Change in receivables
Change in inventories
Change in other assets and liabilities
Change in deferred taxes

$29,714

$22,783

11,381
(50,836)
14,367
6,223
(2,680)

5,019
(36,630)
11,086
9,987
(853)

---------- ---------(21,545)
(11,391)

Total adjustments
Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from disposals of assets
Capital expenditures
Acquisition of operating division, net of cash
acquired
Change in other investments
Cash Used by Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Long term debt
Retirements of debt
Capital leases
Capital lease principal payments
Stock for stock option plans
Stock for 401(k) employee plans
Purchase of La-Z-Boy stock
Payment of cash dividends

---------- ---------8,169
11,392
412
(9,167)

88
(10,334)

2,828
(3,642)

(3,168)

---------- ---------(9,569)
(13,414)
118,622
(106,721)
(214)
2,235
787
(10,184)
(4,903)

(3,456)
204
(504)
1,517
520
(2,766)
(4,195)

---------- ---------Cash Provided/(Used) by Financing Activities
(378)
(8,680)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

(400)

---------- ---------(2,178)
(10,487)

Net change in cash and equivalents
Cash and equivalents at beginning of period

16,531

44,037

---------- ---------$14,353
$33,550
========== ==========

Cash and equivalents at end of period
Cash paid during period

215

-Income taxes
-Interest

$12,946
$2,984

$26,344
$1,578

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Company considers all highly
liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.
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Fourth Quarter Management's Discussion and Analysis
Note:

Unaudited quarterly numbers can be found on page 26 of the attached
report.

Sales in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2000 were up 73% over the prior
year's fourth quarter. This increase was mainly due to the acquisition of LADD,
Bauhaus and Alexvale during the year. About 3% of the increase was due to
internal growth, and about 8% of the increase was due to 14 weeks in the FY00
fourth quarter versus 13 weeks in the prior year quarter.
Gross profit margin decreased to 24.7% of sales from 27.5% of sales in last
year's fourth quarter. The primary cause of the gross profit margin decline was
below average gross margins of acquisitions. Also contributing to the decline
was a continuation of higher labor and overhead costs associated with improving
plant floor layout costs and acquiring new employees in a low unemployment
environment. However, as expected, the impact of these costs was reduced from
the level which was experienced in recent quarters.
Fourth quarter selling, general and administrative expenses decreased to
16.6% of sales from 17.7% last year. Bonus related and information technology
expenses as a percent of sales were below the prior year. In addition to the
above, many other selling, general and administrative expenses were flat or
increased at a rate less than the sales increase. These reductions more than
offset an increase in warranty expense.
Operating profit as a percent of sales declined to 9.9% from 11.6% in the
upholstery segment. The upholstery segment operating margin decline was due
mainly to the acquisitions that occurred during the year and was the primary
reason for the consolidated drop in margins. In the casegoods segment, operating
profit as a percent of sales declined to 6.2% from 7.7%. For the Contract
segment, operating profit as a percent of sales increased to 6.5% of sales from
(8.6%) due to the acquisition of LADD's American of Martinsville operating
division.
Interest expense as a percent of sales increased from 0.3% last year to
0.7% due to debt relating to the acquisition of LADD during the fourth quarter
and financing obtained in the first quarter for the acquisition of Bauhaus.
Income tax expense as a percent of pretax income increased to 38.0% from
37.1% last year. Non-deductible goodwill amortization was higher in this year's
fourth quarter as compared to last year's fourth quarter.
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Financial Report
Report of Management Responsibilities
La-Z-Boy Incorporated
The management of La-Z-Boy Incorporated is responsible for the preparation
of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, related financial data
and all other information included in the following pages. The financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and include amounts based on management's estimates and judgements
where appropriate.
Management is further responsible for maintaining the adequacy and
effectiveness of established internal controls. These controls provide
reasonable assurance that the assets of La-Z-Boy Incorporated are safeguarded
and that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization
and are recorded properly for the preparation of financial statements. The
internal control system is supported by written policies and procedures, the
careful selection and training of qualified personnel and a program of internal
auditing.
The accompanying report of the Company's independent accountants states
their opinion on the Company's financial statements, based on audits conducted
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. The Board of
Directors, through its Audit Committee composed exclusively of outside
directors, is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the financial statements
and accounting practices. The Audit Committee meets periodically with the
internal auditors, management and the independent accountants to ensure that
each is meeting its responsibilities. The Audit Committee and the independent
accountants have free access to each other with or without management being
present.
/s/Gerald L. Kiser
Gerald L. Kiser
President and Chief Operating Officer

/s/Frederick H. Jackson
Frederick H. Jackson
Chief Financial Officer

Report of Independent Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of La-Z-Boy Incorporated:
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the
related consolidated statements of income, of cash flows and of changes in
shareholders' equity, including pages 9 through 20, present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of La-Z-Boy Incorporated and its
subsidiaries at April 29, 2000 and April 24, 1999, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period
ended April 29, 2000, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Toledo, Ohio
May 31, 2000
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Amounts in thousands, except par value)
As of
4/29/00
4/24/99
- -----------------------------------------------------------------------------Assets
Current assets
Cash and equivalents................................
Receivables, less allowance of $25,474 in
2000 and $19,550 in 1999........................
Inventories
Raw materials....................................
Work-in-progress.................................
Finished goods...................................
FIFO inventories...............................
Excess of FIFO over LIFO.......................
Total inventories............................
Deferred income taxes...............................
Other current assets................................
Total current assets............................

$14,353

$33,550

394,453

265,157

91,018
63,635
98,623
---------253,276
(7,473)
---------245,803
22,374
15,386
---------692,369

Property, plant and equipment
Buildings and building fixtures.....................
Machinery and equipment ............................
Information systems ................................
Land and land improvements .........................
Transportation equipment ...........................
Network and production tracking systems ............
Other ..............................................

189,588
162,485
27,836
25,173
17,454
6,080
22,755
---------451,371
Less: accumulated depreciation....................
223,488
---------Property, plant and equipment, net..............
227,883

Goodwill, less accumulated amortization of
$17,360 in 2000 and $13,583 in 1999.................
Trade names, less accumulated amortization
of $1,052 in 2000...................................
Other long-term assets, less allowance of
$6,747 in 2000 and $6,077 in 1999...................

47,197
37,447
34,920
-------119,564
(23,053)
-------96,511
20,028
10,342
-------425,588
116,601
124,835
23,228
13,514
15,685
4,881
23,923
-------322,667
196,678
-------125,989

116,668

46,985

135,340

--

46,037
---------Total assets.................................... $1,218,297
==========

31,230
-------$629,792
========

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part
of these statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Amounts in thousands, except par value)
As of
4/29/00
4/24/99
- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt...................
Current portion of capital leases...................
Accounts payable....................................
Payroll/other compensation..........................
Income taxes........................................
Other current liabilities...........................

$13,119
457
90,392
74,724
5,002
53,312
---------Total current liabilities.......................
237,006

Long-term debt.........................................
Capital leases.........................................
Deferred income taxes..................................
Other long-term liabilities............................

233,938
2,156
50,280
31,825

$2,001
784
45,419
53,697
4,103
26,424
-------132,428
62,469
219
5,697
14,064

Commitments and contingencies..........................
Shareholders' equity
Preferred shares-5,000 authorized; none issued......
Common shares, $1 par value-150,000 authorized;
61,328 issued in 2000 and 52,340 issued in 1999.
Capital in excess of par value......................
Retained earnings...................................
Currency translation adjustments....................

--

61,328
211,450
392,458
(2,144)
---------Total shareholders' equity......................
663,092
---------Total liabilities and shareholders' equity.... $1,218,297
==========

-52,340
31,582
332,934
(1,941)
-------414,915
-------$629,792
========

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part
of these statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Income
(Amounts in thousands,
except per share data) Fiscal year ended
4/29/00
4/24/99
4/25/98
- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------Sales.................................... $1,717,420
$1,287,645
$1,108,038
Cost of sales............................
1,284,158
946,731
825,312
---------------------------Gross profit...........................
433,262
340,914
282,726
Selling, general and administrative......
Operating profit.......................
Interest expense.........................
Interest income..........................
Other income.............................
Pretax income..........................
Income tax expense
Federal - current......................
- deferred.....................
State - current......................
- deferred.....................
Total tax expense........................
Net income...........................

288,962
---------144,300

234,075
---------106,839

205,523
---------77,203

9,655
1,976
3,692
---------140,313

4,440
2,181
2,658
---------107,238

4,157
2,021
4,207
---------79,274

49,491
(3,288)
7,048
(552)
---------52,699
---------$87,614
==========

41,286
(4,727)
5,114
(577)
---------41,096
---------$66,142
==========

28,467
(2,046)
3,287
(354)
---------29,354
---------$49,920
==========

Basic average shares*................

54,488

52,890

53,654

Basic net income per share*..........

$1.61

$1.25

$0.93

Diluted weighted average shares*.....

54,860

53,148

53,821

Diluted net income per share*........

$1.60

$1.24

$0.93

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part
of these statements.
*Restated to reflect the September, 1998 three-for-one stock split, in the form
of a 200% stock dividend.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Amounts in thousands)
Fiscal year ended
4/29/00
4/24/99
4/25/98
- -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Cash flows from operating activities
Net income.................................................
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization.........................
Change in receivables.................................
Change in inventories.................................
Change in other assets and liabilities................
Change in deferred taxes..............................
Total adjustments................................
Cash provided by operating activities.................
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposals of assets..........................
Capital expenditures.......................................
Acquisition of operating divisions, net of cash acquired...
Change in other investments................................
Cash used for investing activities....................
Cash flows from financing activities
Long-term debt.............................................
Retirements of debt........................................
Capital leases.............................................
Capital lease principal payments...........................
Stock for stock option plans...............................
Stock for 401(k) employee plans............................
Purchases of La-Z-Boy stock................................
Payment of cash dividends..................................
Cash provided by (used for) financing activities......
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash.......................
Net change in cash and equivalents............................
Cash and equivalents at beginning of the year.................
Cash and equivalents at end of the year.......................
Cash paid during the year
- Income taxes.............................................
- Interest.................................................

$87,614

$66,142

$49,920

30,342
(42,595)
(4,703)
(6,431)
(5,797)
------(29,184)
------58,430

22,081
(26,875)
(4,607)
28,287
(3,130)
------15,756
------81,898

21,021
(14,090)
(6,918)
2,374
3,177
------5,564
------55,484

1,202
(37,968)
(57,952)
(9,681)
------(104,399)

401
(25,316)
-(4,895)
------(29,810)

1,585
(22,016)
-(16,066)
------(36,497)

175,622
(110,319)
1,657
(856)
6,637
2,598
(31,046)
(17,447)
------26,846

-(6,786)
204
(1,403)
6,431
1,902
(30,460)
(16,417)
------(46,529)

35,000
(24,653)
-(2,017)
5,748
1,704
(16,391)
(15,029)
------(15,638)

(74)
------(19,197)

(709)
------4,850

(31)
------3,318

33,550
------$14,353
=======

28,700
------$33,550
=======

25,382
------$28,700
=======

$52,210
$7,128

$44,842
$4,340

$29,025
$4,235

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part
of these statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
Capital
in
Accumulated
excess
Other
Common
of par
Retained
Comprehensive
(Amounts in thousands)
shares
value
earnings
Loss
Total
- ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------At April 26, 1997 ....................

$

17,908

$

27,697

$ 314,731

($998)

(15,907)

$ 359,338

Purchases of La-Z-Boy stock ...............

(484)

Stock options/401(k) ......................

333

1,110

6,008

7,451

Acquisition related .......................

93

455

2,423

2,971

Dividends paid ............................

(16,391)

(15,029)

(15,029)

Comprehensive income
Net income .........................

49,920

Translation adjustment..............

(51)

Total comprehensive income........
At April 25, 1998 ..............
Three-for-one stock split .................

35,700

(35,700)

--

Purchases of La-Z-Boy stock ...............

(1,700)

(28,760)

(30,460)

Stock options/401(k) ......................

490

-------29,262

2,320

Dividends paid ............................

-------342,146

-----(1,049)

49,869
-------388,209

------17,850

5,523

8,333

(16,417)

(16,417)

Comprehensive income
Net income .........................

66,142

Translation adjustment .............

(892)

Total comprehensive income........
At April 24, 1999 ..............
Purchases of La-Z-Boy stock ...............

------52,340

-------31,582

(1,749)

-------332,934

-----(1,941)

(29,297)

65,250
-------414,915
(31,046)

Stock options/401(k) ......................

609

1,139

7,487

9,235

Acquisition related........................

10,128

178,729

11,167

200,024

Dividends paid ............................

(17,447)

(17,447)

Comprehensive income
Net income .........................

87,614

Translation adjustment .............

(203)

Total comprehensive income........
At April 29, 2000 ..............

------$61,328
=======

-------$211,450
========

-------$392,458
========

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part
of these statements.
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-----($2,144)
======

87,411
-------$663,092
========

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1:

Accounting Policies

The Company operates primarily in the U.S. furniture industry. The
following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed in the
preparation of these financial statements. Fiscal year 2000 included 53 weeks,
whereas fiscal years 1999 and 1998 included 52 weeks.
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of La-Z-Boy
Incorporated and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions
have been eliminated. Certain non-U.S. subsidiaries are consolidated on a
one-month lag.
Risks and Uncertainties
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles, which require management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, sales and expenses for the reporting periods. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.
Cash and Equivalents
For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Company
considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined
on the last-in, first-out (LIFO) basis. Excess of FIFO over LIFO at April 29,
2000 includes $17 million of inventory write-ups to fair value for 2000
acquisitions. This purchase accounting adjustment would reduce earnings in
future periods if the related inventory is sold.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Items capitalized, including significant betterments to existing
facilities, are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using accelerated and
straight-line methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Buildings, land improvements and buliding fixtures are depreciated over
periods of 15-30 years. Machinery and equipment are depreciated over a period of
10 years. Information systems are depreciated over periods of 2-5 years.
Transportation equipment is depreciated over 5 years. Network and production
tracking systems are depreciated over periods of 5-10 years.
Goodwill
The excess of the cost of operating companies acquired over the value of
their net tangible assets is amortized on a straight-line basis over 30 years
from the date of acquisition. Goodwill is evaluated periodically for impairment.
Trade Names
Trade names are amortized on a straight-line basis over 30 years.
names are evaluated periodically for impairment.

Trade

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized upon shipment of product.
Income Taxes
Income tax expense is provided on all revenue and expense items included in
the consolidated statement of income, regardless of the period such items are
recognized for income tax purposes.
Foreign Currency Translation
The functional currency of each foreign subsidiary is the respective local
currency. Assets and liabilities are translated at the year end exchange rates
and revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the
period. Resulting translation adjustments are recorded as a component of
shareholders' equity and in other comprehensive income.
Note 2:

Acquisitions

On January 29, 2000, the Company acquired LADD Furniture, Inc., then a
publicly traded furniture manufacturer, in a stock-for-stock merger, at which
time LADD became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The holders of LADD
stock received approximately 9.2 million shares of La-Z-Boy common stock in
consideration for their LADD shares. In addition, LADD employee stock options
then outstanding were replaced by about 1 million La-Z-Boy stock options. Total
consideration, including acquisition costs, was about $190 million.
On December 28, 1999, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of
Alexvale Furniture, Inc., a manufacturer of medium-priced upholstered furniture,
for a combination of cash and La-Z-Boy common stock totaling about $17 million.
On June 1, 1999, the Company acquired Bauhaus USA, Inc., a manufacturer of
upholstered furniture primarily marketed to department stores, for about $59
million, in a cash transaction.
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The above acquisitions have been accounted for as purchases. The operations
of the above companies are included in the Company's financial results
immediately following the acquisition dates. The excess of the purchase price
over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired of $74 million has
been recorded as goodwill.
The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents combined
results of operations of the above companies with the Company as if the
acquisitions had occurred as of the beginning of fiscal 1999. The pro forma
financial information gives effect to certain adjustments resulting from the
acquisitions and related financing. The pro forma financial information does not
necessarily reflect the results of operations that would have occurred had the
separate operations of each company constituted a single entity during such
periods.
(Amounts in thousands,
Unaudited year ended
except per share data)
4/29/00
4/24/99
-------------------------------------------------Net sales
$2,216,628
$2,029,843
Net income
$97,850
$80,221
Earnings per share
$1.60
$1.28
On April 1, 1998, the Company acquired all of the capital stock of Sam Moore
Furniture Industries, Incorporated, a manufacturer of upholstered furniture for
cash. For the year ended December 31, 1997, Sam Moore Furniture Industries'
sales were $33 million.
During fiscal year 1998, La-Z-Boy acquired the remaining 25% of the ordinary
share capital of Centurion Furniture plc, a furniture manufacturer located in
England. Sales for their year ended March 31, 1997 were $12 million.
The consolidated April 1998 financial statements include the operations of
Distincion Muebles, a furniture manufacturer located in Mexico. Annual sales for
the year ended March 30, 1998 were $1.9 million.
Note 3:

Cash and Equivalents
(Amounts in thousands)
4/29/00
4/24/99
---------------------------------------------------Cash in bank..................
$14,353
$10,704
Certificates of deposit.......
-19,900
Commercial paper..............
-1,878
Marketable securities.........
-1,068
------------Total cash and equivalents..
$14,353
$33,550
=======
=======

The Company invests in cash and equivalents with a bank whose board of
directors includes two members of the Company's board of directors. At the end
of fiscal year 2000 and 1999, $5 million and $15 million, respectively, was
invested in cash and equivalents with this bank.

Note 4:

Debt

Interest
(Amounts in thousands)
rates
Maturities 4/29/00
4/24/99
- -----------------------------------------------------------------Bridge loan facility....
6.9%
2001
$105,703 $ -Revolving credit lines.. 6.5%-6.8%
2004
68,419
-Private placement.......
6.5%
2000-08
35,000
36,875
Industrial revenue bonds 3.6%-6.8%
2000-14
37,495
27,400
Other debt.............. 5.9%-9.5%
2000-08
440
195
-------- ------Total debt..............
247,057
64,470
Less: current portion...
13,119
2,001
-------- ------Long-term debt...
$233,938 $62,469
======== =======
Weighted average interest rate...
Fair value of debt...

6.4%
$245,795

5.3%
$65,522

Proceeds from industrial revenue bonds were used to finance the construction
of manufacturing facilities. These arrangements require the Company to insure
and maintain the facilities and make annual payments that include interest. The
bonds are secured by the facilities constructed from the bond proceeds.
Maturities of debt for the five years subsequent to April 29, 2000 are $13
million, $5 million, $0 million, $1 million and $4 million, respectively. As of
April 29, 2000, the Company had remaining unused lines of credit and commitments
of $105 million under several credit arrangements.
To finance the acquisition of Bauhaus on June 1, 1999, the Company borrowed
$57 million, which was replaced on December 29, 1999 by a borrowing under its
$75 million unsecured revolving credit line. On January 31, 2000, the Company
opened an unsecured $150 million bridge loan facility with a current borrowing
rate of LIBOR plus 0.75% with a maturity date of June 29, 2001. The Company used
this bridge loan facility to pay off LADD's debt which was owed under its credit
facility which was then closed.
On May 12, 2000, the Company replaced borrowings under the $75 million
unsecured revolving credit line and the $150 million bridge loan facility with a
new unsecured five-year $300 million credit agreement arranged by Wachovia Bank
and syndicated through a total of eleven banks. The borrowing rate under the new
credit agreement can range from LIBOR plus 0.475% to LIBOR plus 0.925% based on
the Company's consolidated debt to capital ratio and utilization under the

agreement.
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Note 5:

Leases

The Company has operating leases for manufacturing facilities, executive and
sales offices, warehousing and showrooms, as well as for equipment for
manufacturing, transportation and data processing. The operating leases expire
at various dates through 2007. The Company leases additional transportation and
other equipment under capital leases expiring at various dates through 2011. The
majority of these capital leases include bargain purchase options.
Minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases for the five years
subsequent to April 29, 2000 are $12 million, $11 million, $10 million, $9
million, and $6 million, respectively.
Note 6:

Financial Guarantees

La-Z-Boy has provided financial guarantees relating to loans and leases in
connection with some proprietary stores. The amounts of the unsecured guarantees
are shown in the following table. Because almost all guarantees are expected to
retire without being funded, the contract amounts are not estimates of future
cash flows.
(Contract
amounts in thousands) 4/29/00 4/24/99
-------------------------------------Loan guarantees....
$17,446 $17,193
Lease guarantees...
$11,213
$5,649
Guarantees require the store owners to make periodic payments to the
Company in exchange for the guarantee. Terms of current guarantees generally
range from one to five years.
The guarantees have off-balance-sheet credit risk because only the periodic
payments and accruals for probable losses are recognized until the guarantee
expires. Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at
the reporting date if counter-parties failed to perform completely as
contracted. The credit risk amounts are equal to the contractual amounts,
assuming that the amounts are fully advanced and that no amounts could be
recovered from other parties.
Note 7:

Stock Option Plans

The Company's shareholders adopted an employee Incentive Stock Option Plan
that provides grants to certain employees to purchase common shares of the
Company at not less than their fair market value at the date of grant. Options
are for five years and ten years and become exercisable at 25% per year
beginning one year from the date of grant. The Company is authorized to grant
options for up to 7,500,000 common shares.
Number
Weighted
of
average
shares
exercise price
---------------------------------------------------------Outstanding at April 26, 1997.. 1,224,531
$9.43
Granted........................
860,865
11.60
Exercised......................
(677,316)
9.36
Expired or cancelled...........
(67,521)
10.42
--------Outstanding at April 25, 1998.. 1,340,559
10.87
Granted........................
422,220
17.58
Exercised......................
(314,814)
9.86
Expired or cancelled...........
(43,779)
13.82
--------Outstanding at April 24, 1999.. 1,404,186
13.02
Granted........................ 1,423,822
17.33
Exercised......................
(351,919)
10.64
Expired or Cancelled...........
(75,185)
17.87
--------Outstanding on April 29, 2000.. 2,400,904
--------Exercisable at April 29, 2000.. 1,243,749
$12.97
Shares available for grants at
April 29, 2000................

5,654,036

Weighted
Weighted
Range of
Stock
average
average
exercise
options
exercise
remaining
prices
outstanding
price
contractual life
-------------------------------------------------------------$9.12-$13.23
1,070,267
$10.01-$13.23
2.73
13.25-17.58
714,603
14.10-17.58
5.30
17.85-20.34
115,298
18.16
7.10
$23.75- $34.33
500,736
24.13
4.46
-------------------------------------------------------------2,400,904
$15.65
4.07
Weighted

Range of
Stock Options
average
exercise prices
exercisable
exercise price
- -------------------------------------------------$9.12-$13.23
805,764
$10.99
13.25-17.58
306,021
15.86
17.85-20.34
88,158
18.24
$23.75-$34.33
43,806
27.34
- -------------------------------------------------1,243,749
$12.97
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The Company's shareholders have also adopted Restricted Share Plans. Under
one plan, a committee of the board of directors is authorized to offer for sale
up to an aggregate of 750,000 common shares to certain employees. Under a second
plan, up to an aggregate of 150,000 common shares are authorized for sale to
non-employee directors. Under the restricted share plans, shares are offered at
25% of the fair market value at the date of grant. The plans require that all
shares be held in an escrow account for a period of three years in the case of
an employee, or until the participant's service as a director ceases in the case
of a director. In the event of an employee's termination during the escrow
period, the shares must be sold back to the Company at the employee's cost.
Shares aggregating 3,600 were granted and issued during fiscal year 2000
and 3,000 were granted and issued during fiscal year 1999, under the directors'
plan. Shares remaining for future grants under the directors' plans amounted to
92,400 at April 29, 2000.
Shares aggregating 47,625 and 67,350 were granted and issued during the
fiscal years 2000 and 1999, respectively, under the employee Restricted Share
Plan. Shares remaining for future grants under this plan amounted to 565,845 at
April 29, 2000.
The Company's shareholders have also adopted a Performance-Based Restricted
Stock Plan. This plan authorizes the compensation committee of the board of
directors to award up to an aggregate of 1,200,000 shares to key employees.
Grants of shares are based on achievement of goals over a three-year performance
period. Any award made under the plan is at the sole discretion of a board
committee after judging all relevant factors. At April 29, 2000, performance
awards were outstanding for to which up to approximately 410,000 shares may
be issued in fiscal years 2001 through 2003 for the three outstanding target
awards, depending on the extent to which certain specified performance
objectives are met. The cost of performance awards are expensed over the
performance period. In 2000, 64,081 shares were issued.
As permitted by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123,
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," the Company has chosen to continue to
account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed
in Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees," and related interpretations.
Had the Company elected to recognize compensation cost for stock
options based on the fair value method of accounting prescribed by SFAS No. 123,
the additional after tax expense relating to the stock options would have been
$1.8 million in 2000, $0.7 million in 1999, and $0.3 million in 1998. Pro forma
net income and earnings per share would have been as follows (for the fiscal
years ended):
(Amounts in thousands,
except per share data)
4/29/00 4/24/99 4/25/98
--------------------------------------------------------Net income.................... $85,832 $65,424 $49,575
Basic net income per share....
$1.58
$1.24
$0.92
Diluted net income per share..
$1.56
$1.23
$0.92
The pro forma effect on net income is not representative of the pro forma
effect on net income that will be disclosed in future years as required by SFAS
No. 123 because it does not take into consideration pro forma compensation
expense relating to grants made prior to 1996.
The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:
4/29/00 4/24/99 4/25/98
-------------------------------------------------Risk free interest rate.. 6.6%
5.15%
5.6%
Dividend rate............ 2.0%
1.6%
1.6%
Expected life in years... 5.0
4.4
4.6
Stock price volatility... 41%
39%
23%
Note 8:

Retirement/Welfare

The Company has contributory and non-contributory retirement plans covering
substantially all factory employees.
Eligible salaried employees are covered under a trusteed profit sharing
retirement plan. Discretionary cash contributions to a trust are made annually
based on profits.
The Company maintains a non-qualified deferred compensation plan for
eligible highly compensated employees.
The Company provides executive life insurance to certain highly compensated
employees. Such employees are not eligible for current contributions to the
profit sharing plan or the non-qualified deferred compensation plan.
The Company offers voluntary 401(k) retirement plans to eligible employees
within certain U.S. operating divisions. Currently over 60% of eligible
employees are participating in the plans. For most divisions, the Company makes
matching contributions based on specific formulas and this match is made in
La-Z-Boy stock.
The Company maintains defined benefit pension plans for eligible factory
hourly employees at some divisions.
The funded status of the pension plans was as follows:
(Amounts in thousands)
4/29/00 4/24/99
--------------------------------------------------------------------Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year......... $50,310 $39,948
Service cost...................................
2,791
2,785
Interest cost..................................
3,644
3,739
Amendments and new plans.......................
1,879
5,889
Actuarial (loss)...............................
(82)
-Benefits paid..................................
(2,374) (2,051)

Benefit obligation at end of year............
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------56,168

------50,310

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year..
Actual return on plan assets...................
Employer contribution..........................
Benefits paid..................................
Fair value of plan assets at end of year.....
Funded status....................................
Unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss)..............
Unamortized prior service cost..................
Prepaid benefit cost ..........................

58,166
53,545
(999)
5,458
1,772
1,214
(2,374) (2,051)
------- ------56,565
58,166
397
4,642
597
------$5,636
=======

7,856
(3,133)
795
------$5,518
=======

The actuarially determined net periodic pension cost and retirement costs
are as follows (for the fiscal years ended):
(Amounts in thousands)
4/29/00 4/24/99 4/25/98
----------------------------------------------------------Service cost....................
$2,791
$2,785
$1,903
Interest cost...................
3,644
3,739
2,508
Actual return on plan assets....
999
(5,458) (9,439)
Net amortization and deferral...
(5,793)
(278)
5,843
------ -----------Net periodic pension cost.....
1,641
788
815
Profit sharing/SERP.............
401(k)..........................
Other...........................
Total retirement costs........

7,522
2,954
637
------$12,754
=======

6,851
2,174
652
------$10,465
=======

6,035
1,661
968
-----$9,479
======

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets was 8.0% for fiscal
years 2000, 1999 and 1998. The weighted-average discount rate used in
determining the actuarial present value of projected benefit obligations was
6.8% for fiscal years 2000 and 1999 and 7.5% for fiscal year
1998. Vested benefits included in the projected benefit obligation were $50
million and $40 million at April 29, 2000 and April 24, 1999, respectively. Plan
assets are invested in a diversified portfolio that consists primarily of debt
and equity securities.
The Company's pension plan funding policy is to contribute annually at
least the amount necessary so that the plan assets exceed the projected benefit
obligation.
While in total the Company is overfunded, at April 29, 2000, there are two
plans with aggregate pension benefit obligations of $7.1 million and aggregate
pension plan assets of $6.3 million which are included in the tables shown.
Note 9:

Health Care

The Company offers eligible employees an opportunity to participate in
group health plans. Participating employees make required premium payments
through pretax payroll deductions. Health-care expenses were as follows (for the
fiscal years ended):
(Amounts in thousands) 4/29/00
4/24/99
4/25/98
--------------------------------------------------Gross health care..... $50,895
$37,698
$32,020
Participant payments.. (13,277)
(9,406)
(7,531)
------------------Net health care....... $37,618
$28,292
$24,489
=======
=======
=======
The Company makes annual provisions for any current and future retirement
health-care costs which may not be covered by retirees' collected premiums.
Note 10:

Income Taxes

The primary components of the Company's deferred tax assets and
(liabilities) were as follows:
(Amounts in thousands)
4/29/00
4/24/99
---------------------------------------------------------------Current
Bad debt................................... $13,897
$10,942
Warranty...................................
8,701
6,054
Workers' compensation......................
2,639
1,662
SERP/other.................................
1,711
1,626
Inventory..................................
(8,516)
1,429
State income tax...........................
1,024
1,366
Stock options..............................
1,683
1,653
Receivables - mark to market...............
(5,269)
(7,904)
Other......................................
6,504
3,382
Valuation allowance........................
-(182)
------------Total current deferred tax assets........
22,374
20,028
Noncurrent

Trade names................................
Pension....................................
Property, plant and equipment..............
Net operating losses.......................
Other......................................
Valuation allowance........................

(46,252)
(3,672)
(752)
1,414
396
(1,414)
-------Total noncurrent deferred tax liabilities (50,280)
-------Net deferred tax asset/(liabiliies).... ($27,906)
========

-(2,985)
(2,943)
907
360
(1,036)
------(5,697)
------$14,331
=======

At April 24, 1999, the Company applied a valuation allowance of $1.218
million to offset the value of net operating losses (NOLs) attributable to one
of the Company's wholly owned foreign subsidiaries. During the current fiscal
year significant operational and profitablility improvements occurred.
Consequently, the Company no longer considers it necessary to apply a valuation
reserve for this deferred tax asset.
A valuation allowance of $1.414 million has been established for the
deferred tax asset related to an NOL carry forward for an acquisition subsidiary
of LADD. The remaining NOLs of $3.927 million may be carried forward through
2007 to offset future earnings, subject to normal annual limitations prescribed
by law. Any tax benefits recognized subsequent to 2000 from the utilization of
this LADD NOL will be applied to reduce goodwill.
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The differences between the Company's provision for income taxes and income
taxes computed using the U.S. federal statutory rate are as follows (for the
fiscal years ended):
(% of pretax income)
4/29/00
4/24/99 4/25/98
- --------------------------------------------------------------------------Statutory tax rate..............................
35.0%
35.0%
35.0%
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting from:
State income taxes net of
federal benefit............................
3.0
2.7
2.4
Tax credits..................................
(0.1)
(0.1)
(0.2)
Goodwill.....................................
0.9
0.7
0.8
Tax loss carry forwards......................
(1.1)
0.1
(0.5)
Miscellaneous items..........................
(0.1)
(0.1)
(0.5)
---------Effective tax rate.........................
37.6%
38.3%
37.0%
====
====
====
Note 11: Earnings Per Share
Basic net income per share is computed using the weighted-average number
of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share uses the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period plus the
additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the dilutive
potential common shares had been issued. The Company's dilutive potential common
shares are employee stock options. The 1998 and 1999 information below has been
restated for the September, 1998 three-for-one stock split.
Fiscal year
(Amounts in thousands)
ended
4/29/00 4/24/99 4/25/98
--------------------------------------------------------------Weighted average common
shares outstanding (Basic)........
54,488
52,890
53,654
Effect of options...................
372
258
167
Weighted average common
---------------shares outstanding (Diluted)......
54,860
53,148
53,821
======
======
======
Note 12:

Contingencies

The Company has been named as a defendant in various lawsuits arising in
the ordinary course of business. It is not possible at the present time to
estimate the ultimate outcome of these actions; however, management believes
that the resultant liability, if any, will not be material based on the
Company's previous experience with lawsuits of these types.
The Company has been named as a potentially responsible party (PRP) at six
environmental clean-up sites. Based on a review of all currently known facts and
the Company's experience with previous environmental clean-up sites, management
does not anticipate that future expenditures for environmental clean-up sites
will have a material adverse effect on the Company.
Note 13:

Segments

The Company has three reportable segments: Residential upholstery,
Residential casegoods and Contract.
The Residential upholstery segment is comprised of operating divisions that
primarily manufacture and sell upholstered furniture to dealers. Upholstered
furniture includes recliners, sofas, occasional chairs and reclining sofas that
are mostly or fully covered with fabric, leather or vinyl. The operating
divisions included in the Residential upholstery segment are La-Z-Boy
Residential, England/Corsair, Sam Moore, Bauhaus, Centurion, Distincion Muebles,
Pennsylvania House Upholstery, Barclay and Clayton Marcus.
The Residential casegoods segment is comprised of operating divisions that
primarily manufacture or sell hardwood or hardwood veneer furniture to dealers.
Casegoods furniture includes dining room tables and chairs, bed frames and bed
boards, dressers, coffee tables and end tables that are mostly constructed of
hardwoods or veneers. The operating divisions included in the Residential
casegoods segment are Kincaid, Hammary, American Drew, Lea, Pennsylvania House
Casegoods and Pilliod.
The primary difference between the Residential upholstery and the Residential
casegoods segments is in the manufacturing area. In general, upholstery
manufacturing requires lower capital expenditures per dollar of sales than
casegoods but higher labor costs. Equipment needs and manufacturing processes
are different in many key areas and product costs reflect these significant
differences. Residential upholstery typically uses plywood or other "frame" (not
exposed) wood which requires less detailing and uses some different
manufacturing methods than casegoods wood processing. Residential casegoods
requires more extensive automated equipment for drying, processing, cutting,
sanding and finishing exposed hardwood and veneer products. Wood and related
wood processing costs for upholstery (or total frame costs) are a much smaller
percentage of total unit costs in upholstery than casegoods. Residential
upholstery's largest costs are related to the purchased cost of fabric (or
leather, vinyl, etc.), cutting fabric, sewing the fabric and upholstering the
fabric and other materials to the frame; whereas Residential casegoods
manufacturing typically has none of these costs or processes. Residential
upholstery also extensively uses filler materials such as polyurethane foam for
cushioning and appearance whereas Residential casegoods manufacturing typically
has none of these costs or processes. Also, in "motion" upholstery products,
which are a large portion of La-Z-Boy's total Residential upholstery sales,
there are metal mechanism processes and costs vs. none in casegoods.
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The Contract segment is comprised of operating divisions that primarily
manufacture and sell to hospitality, business, government, healthcare and
assisted living facilities. The operating divisions included in the Contract
segment are American of Martinsville and La-Z-Boy Contract Furniture Group. The
primary difference between the Residential segments and the Contract segment is
in the customers which they service. Contract is a newly reported segment. Prior
years have been restated for comparability purposes.
The Company has other immaterial operating divisions which are reviewed for
performance by management including logistics operations, financing, retail and
other operations. These divisions are not included in the sales disclosed. The
logistics operations are included in operating profit. The other divisions are
included in other income. The Company's unallocated assets include trade names,
goodwill and various other assets.
The Company's largest customer is less than 5% of consolidated sales.
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those
described in Note 1. Segment operating profit is based on profit or loss from
operations before interest income and expense, other income and income taxes.
Certain corporate costs are allocated to the segments based on revenues and
identifiable assets. Identifiable assets are cash and cash equivalents, notes
and accounts receivable, FIFO inventories and net property, plant and equipment.
Segment information used to evaluate segments is as follows (for the fiscal
years ended):
(Amounts in thousands)
4/29/00
4/24/99
4/25/98
- -------------------------------------------------------------------------Net sales
Residential upholstery...........
$1,291,169
$1,015,162
$850,495
Residential casegoods............
315,519
198,969
186,968
Contract.........................
110,732
73,514
70,575
--------------------------Consolidated....................
1,717,420
1,287,645
1,108,038
==========
==========
=========
Operating profit
Residential upholstery...........
Residential casegoods............
Contract.........................
Unallocated corporate costs......
and other.......................
Consolidated....................
Depreciation and amortization
Residential upholstery...........
Residential casegoods............
Contract.........................
Corporate eliminations & other...
Consolidated....................
Capital expenditures
Residential upholstery...........
Residential casegoods............
Contract.........................
Corporate eliminations & other...
Consolidated....................
Assets
Residential upholstery...........
Residential casegoods............
Contract.........................
Corporate eliminations & other...
Unallocated assets...............
Consolidated....................

124,124
23,165
4,592

99,542
11,787
(609)

70,462
7,425
939

(7,581)
---------144,300
==========

(3,881)
---------106,839
==========

(1,623)
--------77,203
=========

17,367
5,039
2,025
5,911
---------30,342
==========

13,995
3,806
1,376
2,904
---------22,081
==========

12,196
3,992
1,218
3,615
--------21,021
=========

28,376
4,989
2,393
2,210
---------37,968
==========

19,388
4,248
1,412
268
---------25,316
==========

16,556
3,420
2,040
--------22,016
=========

530,321
262,449
102,564
(5,370)
328,333
---------$1,218,297
==========

399,803
97,804
30,800
15,848
85,537
---------$629,792
==========

363,160
94,019
30,658
15,601
76,913
--------$580,351
=========

Sales by country
United States....................
Canada and other.................

94%
6%
--100%
===
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93%
7%
--100%
===

94%
6%
--100%
===

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Management's Discussion and Analysis, should be read in conjunction with
the Report of Management Responsibilities, the Report of Independent
Accountants, the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes.
La-Z-Boy is one of the three largest furniture manufacturers in the U.S.,
the largest reclining-chair manufacturer in the world and North America's
largest manufacturer of upholstered furniture. There is about a $1 billion drop
off in annual sales between the three largest furniture manufacturers and the
next largest furniture manufacturer.
During fiscal year 2000, the Company completed the following acquisitions:
Bauhaus USA, Inc., effective June 1, 1999, Alexvale Furniture, Inc., effective
December 28, 1999 and LADD Furniture, Inc., effective January 29, 2000. All
three acquisitions have been accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting and are included in the Company's results of operations beginning
immediately following the respective acquisition dates.
Fiscal year 2000 (FY00 or 2000) contained 53 weeks compared to 52 weeks in
fiscal year 1999 (FY99 or 1999).
Analysis of Operations
Year Ended April 29, 2000
(2000 compared with 1999)
Income Statement Analysis
FY00
over
(under) Percent of Sales
FY99
4/29/00 4/24/99
-----------------------------------------------------------------Sales..................................
33%
100.0%
100.0%
Cost of sales..........................
36%
74.8%
73.5%
----------Gross profit...........................
27%
25.2%
26.5%
Selling, general and administrative....
23%
16.8%
18.2%
----------Operating profit.......................
35%
8.4%
8.3%
Interest expense.......................
Interest income........................
Other income...........................
Pretax income..........................
Income tax expense*....................

117%
(9%)
39%
--31%
28%
--32%
===

Net income...........................
Diluted earnings per share...........
Dividends per share..................
*

0.6%
0.1%
0.3%
----8.2%
37.6%
----5.1%
=====

0.3%
0.1%
0.2%
----8.3%
38.3%
----5.1%
=====

29%
3%

As a percent of pretax income.

Segment Analysis
FY00
over
(under) Percent of Total
Net Revenues
FY99 4/29/00 4/24/99
------------------------------------------------------Residential upholstery......... 27%
75.2%
78.8%
Residential casegoods.......... 59%
18.4%
15.5%
Contract....................... 51%
6.4%
5.7%
---------Consolidated................. 33%
100.0%
100.0%
==
=====
=====
FY00
over
(under) Percent of Sales
Operating Profit
FY99
4/29/00 4/24/99
--------------------------------------------------------------Residential upholstery................
25%
9.6%
9.8%
Residential casegoods.................
97%
7.3%
5.9%
Contract.............................. N/A
4.1%
(0.8%)
Unallocated corporate costs and other.
95%
N/A
N/A
------Consolidated........................
35%
8.4%
8.3%
===
===
===
Year 2000 sales of $1.7 billion were 33% greater than 1999. Most of the
sales dollar growth was due to acquisitions. Internal growth of existing
operations was 9%. And a small part of the sales increase was due to an extra
week in 2000 compared to 1999. Selling price increases per unit were small, and
there were no significant sales mix shifts to higher or lower priced products.

No major new product lines were introduced in 2000 although new styles and new
collections of styles did occur across all divisions throughout the year. New
fabrics were added to replace slower moving fabrics throughout the year, but the
total number of fabrics was not significantly increased or decreased. No major
new dealers were added in 2000, and no significant dealers were dropped.
Although current year acquisitions impacted the sales growth of all three
industry segments, the Residential casegoods and Contract segments realized the
biggest increase over the prior year due to the mix of acquired companies. Both
Bauhaus and Alexvale are included in the Residential upholstery segment, while
LADD (the largest of the three acquisitions) is primarily included in the
Residential casegoods and Contract segments.
Gross profit margin (gross profit dollars as a percent of sales dollars)
decreased to 25.2% in 2000 from 26.5% in 1999. The primary cause of the gross
margin decline was a below average gross margin realized by businesses acquired
during the year.
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Also contributing to the gross margin decline were higher labor and
overhead costs. These costs were associated with improving plant floor layouts,
employee training costs incurred in acquiring additional employees to support
the 9% internal growth rate and retaining labor in a low unemployment
environment. Labor wage rates rose moderately and material costs were somewhat
higher than expected as increased costs for plywood, cardboard packaging and
steel were only partially offset by decreased costs for leather.
Selling, general and administrative expense (S,G&A expense) decreased to
16.8% of sales in 2000 from 18.2% in 1999. Bonus related expense was
significantly lower in fiscal 2000 as compared to fiscal 1999 as were bad debts
and information technology expenses.
Consolidated operating profit margin improved to 8.4% in 2000 compared to
8.3% in 1999. Operating profit margin remained relatively unchanged in the
Residential upholstery segment at 9.6% in 2000 compared to 9.8% in 1999.
Operating profit as a percent of sales in the Residential casegoods segment
improved to 7.3% in 2000 from 5.9% in 1999. Operating profit as a percent of
sales in the Contract segment improved to 4.1% in 2000 from (0.8%) in 1999.
Interest expense as a percent of sales increased 117% over the past year
due to financing obtained in the first quarter for the acquisition of Bauhaus
and in the fourth quarter to the refinancing of LADD's long term debt
obligations.
Income tax expense as a percent of pretax income of 37.6% in 2000 is down
from 38.3% in 1999 primarily due to improved performance of a non-U.S. operation
which allowed for the utilization of tax loss carryforwards. This was partially
offset by an increase in goodwill amortization.

Analysis of Operations
Year Ended April 24, 1999
(1999 compared with 1998)
The 1999 sales of $1.3 billion were 16% greater than 1998. About 80% of the
increase was due to internal growth of existing divisions and the remainder was
due to acquisitions. La-Z-Boy believes that its 1999 internal growth rate of
about 13% exceeded the U.S. industry average for comparable time periods.
Selling price increases per unit were small, but a product mix that favored
higher priced products did yield a favorable impact of approximately 3-4%. The
Company did not introduce new product lines in 1999 but did introduce new styles
and new collections of styles across all divisions throughout the year. Of
particular note was the joint introduction of the Thomas Kinkade Home
Furnishings Collection by the La-Z-Boy Residential and Kincaid divisions. In
addition, new fabrics were added (replacing slower moving fabrics) throughout
the year. No major new dealers were added in 1999 and no significant dealers
were dropped.
Gross profit margin increased to 26.5% in 1999 from 25.5% in 1998. An
approximate 11% increase in unit volume had a favorable impact on the gross
margin percentage by enabling absorption of fixed manufacturing costs more
efficiently than in the prior year. The absence of hardwood and plywood supply
chain disruptions and casegood manufacturing plant consolidations also favorably
affected the gross profit margin percentage. Currency exchange impacts
associated with inventory movements between supply center plants and Residential
division plants in the U.S. to a Residential division plant in Canada had a
negative impact on the gross profit margin percentage. As in 1998, labor wage
rates rose moderately and purchased material prices were generally flat as
decreased prices for cardboard, batting and polyurethane foam were offset by
increased prices for other materials.
S,G&A expense decreased to 18.2% of sales in 1999 from 18.5% in 1998. Bonus
related expense was significantly higher in 1999 as compared to 1998 in addition
to increased information technology expenses. The increase in information
technology expenses was mainly due to year 2000 related issues. However, these
increases were more than offset by selling and advertising expenses being lower
as a percent of sales in fiscal 1999.
Liquidity and Financial Condition
Cash flows from operations amounted to $58 million in 2000, $82 million in
1999 and $55 million in 1998 and have been adequate for day-to-day expenditures,
dividends to shareholders and capital expenditures. Capital expenditures,
dividends and stock repurchases totaled approximately $86.5 million in 2000,
$72.2 million in 1999 and $53.4 million in 1998.
Total FIFO inventory increased 112% over the prior year with raw materials
increasing 93%, work-in-process increasing 70%, and finished goods increasing
182% due primarily to current year acquisitions. Excluding the impact of those
acquisitions, total FIFO inventory increased 5% with raw materials decreasing
9%, work-in-process increasing 13%, and finished goods increasing 14%.
Goodwill increased $74 million or 148% over the prior year due to the
acquisitions.
Trade names valued at $135 million were a result of the LADD acquisition.
External independent appraisals were used to assign values to the various LADD
trade names in accordance with the purchase method of accounting.
The Company had unused lines of credit and commitments of $105 million
under several credit arrangements as of April 29, 2000. To finance the
acquisition of Bauhaus on June 1, 1999, the Company borrowed $57 million, which
was replaced on December 29, 1999 by a borrowing under its $75 million unsecured
revolving credit line. The Alexvale acquisition required approximately $2.2
million for the cash portion of the transaction, which was paid with cash flow
from operations. On January 31, 2000, the Company opened an unsecured $150
million bridge loan and used this bridge loan to pay off LADD's debt.
On May 12, 2000, the Company replaced borrowings under the $75 million
unsecured revolving credit line and the bridge loan with a new five-year
unsecured $300 million credit agreement, arranged by Wachovia Bank and

syndicated through a total of eleven banks. The borrowing rate under the new
credit agreement can range from LIBOR plus 0.475% to LIBOR plus 0.925% based on
the Company's consolidated debt to capital ratio and utilization under the
agreement.
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The La-Z-Boy Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase of Company
stock. Shares acquired in 2000, 1999 and 1998 totaled 1,706,000, 1,643,000 and
1,253,000, respectively. As of April 29, 2000, 2,820,000 shares were available
for repurchase.
The financial strength of the Company is reflected in two commonly used
ratios, the current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) and
the debt-to-capital ratio (total debt divided by shareholders' equity plus total
debt). The current ratio at the end of 2000 and 1999 was 2.9:1 and 3.2:1,
respectively. The debt to capital ratio was 26.6% at the end of 2000 and 13.6%
at the end of 1999.
Continuing environmental compliance with existing federal, state and local
statutes dealing with protection of the environment is not expected to have a
material effect upon the Company's capital expenditures, earnings, competitive
position or liquidity. The Company will continue its program of conducting
voluntary compliance audits at its facilities. The Company has also taken steps
to assure compliance with provisions of Titles III and V of the 1990 Clean Air
Act Amendments.

Outlook
Statements in this Outlook section are forward looking within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. As conditions change in
the future, actual results may not match these expectations. In particular,
sales and profits can be materially impacted in any quarter by changes in
interest rates or changes in consumer confidence/demand.
La-Z-Boy's fiscal year ending April 28, 2001 will include 52 weeks compared
to fiscal year 2000 which included 53 weeks. This is approximately a 2% decrease
in the length of the year which will affect sales and other financial
comparisons from year to year.
One of La-Z-Boy's financial goals is to increase the sales of existing
operations at a rate faster than that of the overall furniture industry. This
sales goal has been one of La-Z-Boy's goals for many years. In the past 10 - 15
years, La-Z-Boy has met its sales goal (exceeded industry sales growth rates)
90% or more of the time. For 2000, La-Z-Boy's reported sales increased 33% from
1999. On a comparable basis adjusting for acquisitions and an additional week in
2000, existing operations sales increased 9%, which the Company believes was
better than the industry average.
Given recent interest rate increases and other macroeconomic projections,
La-Z-Boy expects the U.S. furniture industry growth rate to be less in FY01 than
FY00.
The number of independently owned and operated "proprietary" stores or
galleries is expected to continue to increase. "Proprietary" stores or galleries
are those that have an agreement to sell products from one of La-Z-Boy's
divisions or a company that La-Z-Boy approves. La-Z-Boy divisions in each of its
business segments have proprietary distribution, which means square feet of
selling space totally dedicated to La-Z-Boy Incorporated products. Proprietary
stores can be freestanding buildings, buildings attached to one another or
square footage (typically galleries) within an existing retail store. Continued
growth in the number of proprietary stores or galleries is a reason why La-Z-Boy
believes it can continue to exceed industry average sales growth rates. Also, a
continuation of the growth in average sales per square foot of proprietary
stores or galleries is another reason why La-Z-Boy believes it can continue to
exceed industry average sales growth rates.
At both the retail level and the manufacturing level, La-Z-Boy believes
that the U.S. furniture industry has been consolidating and that it will
continue to consolidate. Smaller retailers and financially weaker retailers are
finding it more and more difficult to stay in business. Progress in
manufacturing technologies, processes and designs combined with economies of
scale continually puts additional competitive pressures on smaller
manufacturers. Furniture retailers and manufacturers continuing to exit the
industry is another reason why La-Z-Boy believes it can continue to exceed
industry average sales growth rates.
In 2000, La-Z-Boy added many new divisions to its family of furniture
companies. The acquisition of LADD added over five divisions. Bauhaus and
Alexvale were acquired as well. Over $800 million of 2001 sales is expected to
come from these companies that were not part of La-Z-Boy prior to 2000. Many of
these sales will be to dealers that prior La-Z-Boy divisions have not done
business with in the past. Similarly, many of the dealers that La-Z-Boy has done
business with are not doing business with LADD companies, Bauhaus or Alexvale.
La-Z-Boy believes that opportunities to leverage positive dealer relationships
across its new and existing divisions is also a reason why it can achieve sales
growth rates faster than the rest of the industry.
La-Z-Boy has no specific financial goal to grow its sales through mergers
or acquisitions. The Company's general acquisition approach is opportunistic.
LADD companies have changed La-Z-Boy's sales mix by segment and are
expected to continue to change the mix measurably in 2001. The mix is expected
to shift more towards Residential casegoods and Contract and away from
Residential upholstery. Roughly, Residential casegoods is expected to change
from 18.4% today to 25% in FY01; Contract from 6.4% to 11% and Residential
upholstery from 75.2% to 64%.
Although not considered a formal segment for reporting purposes, there has
been a rise in imports of finished or mostly finished manufactured products.
These products are directly resold or minimally assembled then resold. Sales of
these finished goods imports are under 5% of consolidated sales but are growing
at a faster rate than most other sales categories and they are expected to
continue to grow faster in the future. Most of these imports come from the Far
East. La-Z-Boy's second financial goal is to continually improve its operating
profit margin, with a goal in the future of 10.0%. Operating margins (operating
profit divided by sales) have improved from 7.0% in 1998 to 8.3% in 1999 to 8.4%
in 2000. For 2001; however, operating margins are expected to decrease primarily
due to the recent acquisition of LADD. LADD has greatly improved its operating

margin over the last five years from an operating loss condition. LADD had a
5.2% margin in its 1998 calendar year and a 5.5% margin in its nine months ended
October 1999. Even though LADD's margins are expected to continue to improve, it
is expected to take more than one year before consolidated operating margins
exceed the 8.4% level achieved in 2000. Increased sales volume should help
improve operating margins. Outsourcing components to lower cost suppliers
outside of the U.S. and Canada is another way La-Z-Boy can improve
profitability. Outsourcing components is a trend for La-Z-Boy that is
accelerating and this trend is generally being seen throughout the U.S.
furniture industry. Capital expenditures are expected to be about $55 million in
2001 compared to $38 million in 2000 and are
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expected to improve labor productivity and profitability. Improving total labor
productivity is a key initiative for the future because of continuing expected
challenges in hiring and retaining employees in a low unemployment environment.
New machinery and plant process improvements are planned across all divisions
mostly for quality and productivity purposes as opposed to the need to increase
capacity. Operating margins also benefit from investments in machinery and other
productivity enhancements. The expected slowing in industry sales growth in FY01
should ease pressures and reduce costs associated with hiring and training new
employees. Corporate overhead costs in accounting, audit, investor relations,
tax and other areas are expected to improve as a percent of sales due to
combining similar LADD corporate functions with La-Z-Boy.
A third financial goal is to continually improve return on capital, with a
goal in the future of 25%. This 25% goal was raised from last year's 20% level.
Return is defined as operating profit + interest income + other income. Capital
is defined as beginning-of-year shareholders' equity + debt + capital leases +
net deferred taxes. Return on capital improved from 20.5% in 1998 to 24.8% in
1999 to 32.2% in 2000. However, return on capital is expected to decline below
25% in 2001 primarily due to the acquisition of LADD, which had a return on
capital of 11.0% in its 1998 calendar year. It is expected that it will take
more than one year before consolidated return on capital will exceed the 25%
goal. La-Z-Boy enhances shareholder value and reduces capital employed through
stock repurchases, dividends and debt reductions. The Company expects to meet
its cash needs for capital expenditures, stock repurchases and dividends in
FY2001 from cash generated by operations and borrowings under available lines of
credit.
Amortization expense associated with goodwill and trade names is expected
to increase in fiscal year 2001 versus fiscal 2000 due to acquisitions. Goodwill
amortization is not deductible for tax accounting expense purposes; however,
trade name amortization is deductible. For actual tax payment purposes neither
amortization is deductible.
The Company plans to be in the market to repurchase shares as its stock
price changes and other financial opportunities arise.
In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 133,
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." As amended, this
new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000, which
will be effective for the Company's fiscal year 2002. SFAS No. 133 requires a
company to recognize all derivative instruments as assets or liabilities in its
balance sheet and measure them at fair value. The Company has not yet determined
the impact on its financial position or results of operation of implementing
SFAS No. 133.
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Consolidated Six Year Summary of Selected Financial Data
(Dollar amounts in thousands,
2000
1999
1998
1997
1996
1995
except per share data)
Fiscal year ended
(53 weeks)
(52 weeks)
(52 weeks)
(52 weeks)
(52 weeks)
(52 weeks)
- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Sales ......................................
Cost of sales ..............................
Gross profit ...........................
Selling, general and
administrative .........................
Operating profit .......................
Interest expense ...........................
Interest income ............................
Other income ...............................
Pretax income ..........................
Income tax expense .........................
Net income .............................

$1,717,420
1,284,158
---------433,262

$1,287,645
946,731
---------340,914

$1,108,038
825,312
---------282,726

$1,005,825
744,662
---------261,163

$

947,263
705,379
---------241,884

$

850,271
629,222
---------221,049

288,962
---------144,300

234,075
---------106,839

205,523
---------77,203

187,230
---------73,933

174,376
---------67,508

158,551
---------62,498

9,655
1,976
3,692
---------140,313
52,699
---------$
87,614
==========

4,440
2,181
2,658
---------107,238
41,096
---------$
66,142
==========

4,157
2,021
4,207
---------79,274
29,354
---------$
49,920
==========

4,376
1,770
2,508
---------73,835
28,538
---------$
45,297
==========

5,306
1,975
2,023
---------66,200
26,947
---------$
39,253
==========

3,334
1,628
1,229
---------62,021
25,719
---------$
36,302
==========

Diluted weighted average shares
outstanding (`000s) ** .................
54,860
53,148
53,821
54,575
55,596
54,303
Diluted net income per share** .............
$
1.60
$
1.24
$
0.93
$
0.83
$
0.71
$
0.67
Book value on year end shares
outstanding** ..........................
$
10.81
$
7.93
$
7.25
$
6.69
$
6.23
$
5.81
Return on average
shareholders' equity ...................
16.3%
16.5%
13.4%
12.9%
11.8%
12.2%*
Gross profit as a percent
of sales ...............................
25.2%
26.5%
25.5%
26.0%
25.5%
26.0%
Operating profit as a percent
of sales ...............................
8.4%
8.3%
7.0%
7.4%
7.1%
7.4%
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,
and amortization as a percent of sales .
10.4%
10.2%
9.2%
9.6%
9.5%
9.3%
Operating profit, interest income
and other income as a percent
of beginning-of-year capital ...........
33.2%
24.8%
20.5%
19.6%
18.1%
19.3%
Income tax expense as a
percent of pretax income ...............
37.6%
38.3%
37.0%
38.7%
40.7%
41.5%
Net income as a percent
of sales ...............................
5.1%
5.1%
4.5%
4.5%
4.1%
4.3%
- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Depreciation and amortization ..............
$
30,342
$
22,081
$
21,021
$
20,382
$
20,147
$
15,156
Capital expenditures .......................
$
37,968
$
25,316
$
22,016
$
17,778
$
18,168
$
18,980
Property, plant and equip. (net)............
$ 227,883
$ 125,989
$ 121,762
$ 114,658
$ 116,199
$ 117,175
- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Working capital ............................
$ 455,363
$ 293,160
$ 274,739
$ 245,106
$ 240,583
$ 237,280
Current ratio ..............................
2.9 to 1
3.2 to 1
3.5 to 1
3.5 to 1
3.5 to 1
3.7 to 1
Total assets ...............................
$1,218,297
$ 629,792
$ 580,351
$ 528,407
$ 517,546
$ 503,818
- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Debt and capital leases ....................
$ 249,670
$
65,473
$
73,458
$
61,279
$
69,033
$
83,201
Shareholders' equity .......................
$ 663,092
$ 414,915
$ 388,209
$ 359,338
$ 343,376
$ 323,640
Ending capital .............................
$ 940,668
$ 466,057
$ 450,466
$ 405,996
$ 399,801
$ 395,209
Ratio of debt to equity ....................
37.7%
15.8%
18.9%
17.1%
20.1%
25.7%
Ratio of debt to capital ...................
26.5%
14.0%
16.3%
15.1%
17.3%
21.1%
- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Shareholders ...............................
22,344
16,329
13,592
12,729
12,293
12,665
Employees ..................................
21,597
12,796
12,155
11,236
10,733
11,149
- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------*
**

April 1995 shareholders' equity used in this calculation excludes $18,004
relating to stock issued on the last day of the fiscal year for the
acquisition of an operating division.
Restated to reflect the September, 1998 three-for-one stock split, in the
form of a 200% stock dividend.
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Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information
(Amounts in thousands,
except per share data)
Fiscal year
Quarter ended
7/24/99
10/23/99
1/22/00
4/29/00
2000
- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Sales..........................
Cost of sales..................
Gross profit..................
Selling, general and
administrative................
Operating profit..............
Interest expense...............
Interest income................
Other income...................
Pretax income.................
Income tax expense.............
Net income.................
Diluted EPS...............

$321,659
241,026
-------80,633

$387,736
286,520
-------101,216

$376,872
281,358
-------95,514

$631,153
475,254
-------155,899

$1,717,420
1,284,158
---------433,262

58,976
-------21,657

62,920
-------38,296

62,226
-------33,288

104,840
-------51,059

288,962
---------144,300

1,439
596
781
-------21,595
8,302
-------$13,293
========
$0.25
========

1,866
610
927
-------37,967
14,697
-------$23,270
========
$0.44
========

2,128
320
1,317
-------32,797
11,460
-------$21,337
========
$0.41
========

4,222
450
667
-------47,954
18,240
-------$29,714
========
$0.49
========

9,655
1,976
3,692
---------140,313
52,699
---------$87,614
==========
$1.60
==========

Fiscal year
Quarter ended
7/25/98
10/24/98
1/23/99
4/24/99
1999
- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Sales..........................
Cost of sales..................
Gross profit..................
Selling, general and
administrative................
Operating profit..............
Interest expense...............
Interest income................
Other income...................
Pretax income.................
Income tax expense.............
Net income.................
Diluted EPS...................

$268,880
205,431
-------63,449

$334,831
245,062
-------89,769

$318,105
230,923
-------87,182

$365,829
265,315
-------100,514

$1,287,645
946,731
---------340,914

51,288
-------12,161

59,510
-------30,259

58,758
-------28,424

64,519
-------35,995

234,075
---------106,839

1,187
577
355
-------11,906
4,722
-------$7,184
========
$0.13
========

1,164
471
865
-------30,431
11,984
-------$18,447
========
$0.35
========

1,110
430
962
-------28,706
10,978
-------$17,728
========
$0.34
========

979
703
476
-------36,195
13,412
-------$22,783
========
$0.43
========

4,440
2,181
2,658
---------107,238
41,096
---------$66,142
==========
$1.24
==========
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Dividend and Market Information
Fiscal 2000 DiviMarket price
Fiscal 1999 DiviMarket price
quarter
dends ------------------------------quarter
dends
-----------------------------ended
paid
High
Low
Close
ended
paid
High
Low
Close
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------July
Oct.
Jan.
April

24
23
22
29

$0.08
0.08
0.08
0.08
----$0.32
=====

$24 7/16
24 7/16
20 3/8
$17 13/16

$19 3/8
17 15/16
15
$13 11/16

$23 13/16
17 15/16
15
$15 11/16

July
Oct.
Jan.
April

25
24
23
24

$0.07
0.08
0.08
0.08
----$0.31
=====

$19
22
20
$22

11/24
1/2
7/16
1/4

$16 1/3
15 5/8
15 1/4
$17

$17 23/24
18 1/2
16 15/16
$19

Dividend
Market price
Fiscal Dividends Dividend
payout
------------------------------ Market value
P/E ratio
year
paid
yield
ratio
High
Low
Close (in millions)
High
Low
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------2000
1999
1998
1997
1996
1995

$0.32
0.31
0.28
0.26
0.25
$0.23

2.0%
1.6%
1.6%
2.4%
2.5%
2.5%

20.0%
24.8%
30.1%
31.2%
34.9%
33.8%

$24
22
17
12
11
$11

7/16
1/2
5/6
7/24
1/4
1/4

$13
15
10
9
8
$8

11/16
1/4
7/12
5/12
13/24
11/24

$15
19
17
10
10
$9

11/16
5/6
3/4
1/24

$962
994
955
578
554
$501

$15
18
19
15
16
$17

$10
12
11
11
12
$13

La-Z-Boy Incorporated common shares are traded on the NYSE and PCX (symbol
LZB).
Various data has been restated to reflect the September, 1998 three-for-one
stock split.

Investor Information
Corporate Headquarters
La-Z-Boy Incorporated
1284 North Telegraph Road
Monroe, MI 48162-3390
(734)242-1444

Stock Exchange
Shares of La-Z-Boy Incorporated common
stock are traded on the New York Stock
Exchange and the Pacific Stock Exchange
under the symbol LZB.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
A brochure is available on the La-Z-Boy Dividend
Reinvestment Plan. It explains how shareholders
may increase their investment in the stock of the
Company without the cost of fees or service
charges. Write to Investor Relations.

Shareholder Services
Inquiries regarding the Dividend Reinvestment
Plan, dividend payments, stock transfer requirements,
address changes and account consolidations
should be addressed to our stock transfer
agent and registrar:

Investor Relations and
Financial Reports
Security analysts, shareholders and investors
may request information (quarterly or annual
reports, 10-K's, etc.) from:

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
40 Wall Street, 46th Floor
New York, NY 10005
(212)936-5100
(800)937-9449

Investor Relations
La-Z-Boy Incorporated
1284 North Telegraph Road
Monroe, MI 48162-3390
(734)241-4414
investorrelations@la-z-boy.com

Internet
Visit La-Z-Boy on the internet at www.lazboy.com
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Board of Directors
(includes some executives)
Gene M. Hardy
Retired Corporate Executive
David K. Hehl
Member, Cooley Hehl
Wohlgamuth & Carlton, PLLC
Frederick H. Jackson
Executive VP Finance
La-Z-Boy Incorporated
James W. Johnston
Private Investor

Gerald L. Kiser
President and Chief Operating Officer
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CREDIT AGREEMENT
AGREEMENT dated as of May 12, 2000, among LA-Z-BOY INCORPORATED, the
BANKS listed on the signature pages hereof, COMERICA BANK, as Syndication Agent,
SUNTRUST BANK, as Documentation Agent, and WACHOVIA BANK, N.A., as
Administrative Agent.
The parties hereto agree as follows:
ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS
SECTION 1.01 Definitions. The terms as defined in this Section 1.01 shall, for
all purposes of this Agreement and any amendment hereto (except as herein
otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires), have the
meanings set forth herein:
"Acquisition" means any transaction pursuant to which the Borrower or
any of its Subsidiaries directly or indirectly, in its own name or by or through
a nominee or an agent (a) acquires from any Person other than a Wholly Owned
Subsidiary equity Securities (or warrants, options or other rights to acquire
such Securities) of any Person other than the Borrower or any Person which is
not then a Subsidiary of the Borrower, pursuant to a solicitation of tenders
therefor, or in one or more negotiated block, market or other transactions not
involving a tender offer, or a combination of any of the foregoing, or (b) makes
any Person (other than a Wholly Owned Subsidiary) a Subsidiary of the Borrower,
or causes any Person (other than a Wholly Owned Subsidiary) to be merged into
the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, in any case pursuant to a merger,
purchase of assets or any reorganization providing for the delivery or issuance
to the holders of such Person's then outstanding Securities, in exchange for
such Securities, of cash or Securities of the Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries, or a combination thereof, or (c) purchases from any Person other
than a Wholly Owned Subsidiary all or substantially all of the business or
assets of any Person; provided that, notwithstanding the foregoing, the
formation and capitalization of a Wholly Owned Subsidiary shall not constitute
an Acquisition.
"Adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate" has the meaning set forth in
Section 2.06(c).
"Administrative Agent" means Wachovia Bank, N.A., a national banking
association organized under the laws of the United States of America, in its
capacity as administrative agent for the Banks hereunder, and its successors and
permitted assigns in such capacity.
"Administrative Agent's Letter Agreement" means that certain letter
agreement, dated as of December 14, 1999, among the Borrower, the Administrative
Agent and the Lead Arranger relating to certain fees from time to time payable
by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent and the Lead Arranger, together with
all amendments and modifications thereto.
"Affiliate" of any Person means (i) any other Person which directly, or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls such Person, (ii) any
other Person which directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
is controlled by or is under common control with such Person, or (iii) any other
Person of which such Person owns, directly or indirectly, 20% or more of the
common stock or equivalent equity interests. As used herein, the term "control"
means possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the
direction of the management or policies of a Person, whether through the
ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.
"Agreement" means this Credit Agreement, together with all amendments
and supplements hereto.
"Applicable Facility Fee Rate" has the meaning set forth in Section

2.07(a).
"Applicable Margin" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.06(a).
"Applicable Utilization Fee Rate" has the meaning set forth in Section
2.07(b).
"Assignee" has the meaning set forth in Section 9.07(c).
"Assignment and Acceptance" means an Assignment and Acceptance executed
in accordance with Section 9.07(c) in the form attached hereto as Exhibit I.
"Authority" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.02.
"Bank" means each bank listed on the signature pages hereof as having a
Commitment, and its successors and assigns.
"Base Rate" means for any Base Rate Loan for any day, the rate per
annum equal to the higher as of such day of (i) the Prime Rate, and (ii)
one-half of one percent above the Federal Funds Rate for such day. For purposes
of determining the Base Rate for any day, changes in the Prime Rate and the
Federal Funds Rate shall be effective on the date of each such change.
"Base Rate Loan" means a Loan which bears or is to bear interest at a
rate based upon the Base Rate.
"Borrower" means La-Z-Boy Incorporated, a Michigan corporation, and its
successors and permitted assigns.
"Borrowing" means a borrowing hereunder consisting of Loans made to the
Borrower at the same time by, in the case of a Syndicated Borrowing, the Banks,
or, in the case of a Money Market Borrowing, one or more of the Banks, in each
case pursuant to Article II. A Borrowing is a "Syndicated Borrowing" if such
Loans are Syndicated Loans or a "Money Market Borrowing" if such Loans are Money
Market Loans. A Borrowing is a "Base Rate Borrowing" if such Loans are Base Rate
Loans or a "Euro-Dollar Borrowing" if such Loans are Euro-Dollar Loans.
"Capitalized Lease" shall mean any lease of property (real, personal or
mixed) the obligation for Rentals with respect to which is required to be
capitalized on a balance sheet of the lessee in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles or for which the amount of the asset and
liability thereunder as so capitalized should be disclosed in a note to such
balance sheet.
"CERCLA" means the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation
and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. ss.9601 et seq. and its implementing regulations
and amendments.
"CERCLIS" means the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation
and Liability Information System established pursuant to CERCLA.
"Change of Law" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 8.02.
"Closing Certificate" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.01(e).
"Closing Date" means May 12, 2000.
"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any
successor Federal tax code. Any reference to any provision of the Code shall
also be deemed to be a reference to any successor provision or provisions
thereof.
"Commitment" means, with respect to each Bank, (i) the amount set forth
opposite the name of such Bank on the signature pages hereof, or (ii) as to any
Bank which enters into an Assignment and Acceptance (whether as transferor Bank
or as Assignee thereunder), the amount of such Bank's Commitment after giving
effect to such Assignment and Acceptance, in each case as such amount may be
reduced from time to time pursuant to Sections 2.08 and 2.09.
"Consolidated Fixed Charges" means for any period the sum of (a)
Consolidated Interest Expense for such period and (b) all payment obligations of
the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries for such period under all
operating leases and rental agreements (which payment obligations shall be
deemed to include, without duplication, the payment obligations of any Person
for such period under any operating lease or rental agreement Guaranteed by the
Borrower or any Consolidated Subsidiary).
"Consolidated Interest Expense" means for any period (and without
duplication) the sum of (i) the amount of interest paid or accrued by the
Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries in respect of such period, (ii) all
imputed interest, whether in the form of "yield", "discount" or similar item,
that accrues during such period in respect of all Securitization Facility
Attributed Debt, and (iii) all program expenses accrued or paid during such
period under any Permitted Securitization.
"Consolidated Net Income" means for any period the net income (or the
net deficit if expenses and charges exceed revenues and other proper income
credits) of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries for such period taken
as one accounting period, determined in accordance with GAAP.
"Consolidated Net Worth" means, at any time, shareholders' equity of
the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, as set forth or reflected on the most recent
consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, prepared in
accordance with GAAP.
"Consolidated Operating Profits" means for any period the Operating

Profits of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries for such period.
"Consolidated Subsidiary" means at any date any Subsidiary or other
entity the accounts of which, in accordance with GAAP, would be consolidated
with those of the Borrower in its consolidated financial statements as of such
date.
"Consolidated Tangible Net Worth" means, at any time, Consolidated Net
Worth, less the sum of the value, as set forth or reflected on the most recent
consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries,
prepared in accordance with GAAP, of
(A) Any surplus resulting from any write-up of assets subsequent to
April 24, 1999;
(B) All assets which would be treated as intangible assets for balance
sheet presentation purposes under GAAP, including without limitation goodwill
(whether representing the excess of cost over book value of assets acquired, or
otherwise), trademarks, tradenames, copyrights, patents and technologies, and
unamortized debt discount and expense.
(C) To the extent not included in (B) of this definition, any amount at
which shares of capital stock of the Borrower appear as an asset on the balance
sheet of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries;
(D) Loans or advances to stockholders, directors, officers or
employees; and
(E) To the extent not included in (B) of this definition, deferred
expenses.
"Consolidated Total Assets" means, at any time, the total assets of the
Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries, determined on a consolidated basis,
as set forth or reflected on the most recent consolidated balance sheet of the
Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries, prepared in accordance with GAAP.
"Consolidated Total Capital" means, at any time, the sum of (i)
Consolidated Net Worth, and (ii) Consolidated Total Funded Debt.
"Consolidated Total Funded Debt" means, at any time, the Debt of the
Borrower and its Subsidiaries plus the Securitization Facility Attributable Debt
at such time, determined on a consolidated basis as of such date.
"Controlled Group" means all members of a controlled group of
corporations and all trades or businesses (whether or not incorporated) under
common control which, together with the Borrower, are treated as a single
employer under Section 414(b) or 414(c) of the Code.
"Debt" of any Person means at any date, without duplication, (i) all
obligations of such Person for borrowed money, (ii) all obligations of such
Person evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or other similar instruments, (iii)
all obligations of such Person to pay the deferred purchase price of property or
services, except trade accounts payable arising in the ordinary course of
business, (iv) all obligations of such Person as lessee under capital leases,
(v) all obligations of such Person to reimburse any bank or other Person in
respect of amounts payable under a banker's acceptance, (vi) all Redeemable
Preferred Stock of such Person (in the event such Person is a corporation),
(vii) all obligations (absolute or contingent) of such Person to reimburse any
bank or other Person in respect of amounts paid under a letter of credit or
similar instrument with an expiration date more than one year from such date
(but excluding herefrom the amount of any reimbursement obligation to the extent
that the letter of credit to which it relates would be drawn on to pay Debt as
defined in another clause of this definition), (viii) all Debt of others secured
by a Lien on any asset of such Person, whether or not such Debt is assumed by
such Person, (ix) all Debt of others Guaranteed by such Person, (x) the
principal portion of all obligations of such Person under any synthetic lease,
tax retention operating lease, off-balance sheet loan or similar off-balance
sheet financing product where such transaction is considered borrowed money
indebtedness for tax purposes but is classified as an operating lease under
GAAP, and (xi) all obligations of such Person with respect to interest rate
protection agreements, foreign currency exchange agreements or other hedging
agreements (valued as the termination value thereof computed in accordance with
a method approved by the International Swap Dealers Association and agreed to by
such Person in the applicable hedging agreement, if any).
"Default" means any condition or event which constitutes an Event of
Default or which with the giving of notice or lapse of time or both would,
unless cured or waived in writing, become an Event of Default.
"Default Rate" means, with respect to any Loan, on any day, the sum of
2% plus the then highest interest rate (including the Applicable Margin) which
may be applicable to any Loans hereunder (irrespective of whether any such type
of Loans are actually outstanding hereunder).
"Designating Bank" has the meaning set forth in Section 9.17(a).
"Dollars" or "$" means dollars in lawful currency of the United States
of America.
"Domestic Business Day" means any day except a Saturday, Sunday or
other day on which commercial banks in Georgia are authorized or required by law
to close.
"Domestic Significant Subsidiary" means any Significant Subsidiary that
is organized under the laws of any state or territory of the United States of
America.

"Environmental Authorizations" means all licenses, permits, orders,
approvals, notices, registrations or other legal prerequisites for conducting
the business of the Borrower or any Subsidiary required by any Environmental
Requirement.
"Environmental Authority" means any foreign, federal, state, local or
regional government that exercises any form of jurisdiction or authority under
any Environmental Requirement.
"Environmental Judgments and Orders" means all judgments, decrees or
orders arising from or in any way associated with any Environmental
Requirements.
"Environmental Laws" means any and all federal, state, local and
foreign statutes, laws, regulations, ordinances, rules, judgments, orders,
decrees, permits, concessions, grants, franchises, licenses, agreements or other
governmental restrictions relating to the environment or to emissions,
discharges or releases of pollutants, contaminants, petroleum or petroleum
products, chemicals or industrial, toxic or hazardous substances or wastes into
the environment, including, without limitation, ambient air, surface water,
groundwater or land, or otherwise relating to the manufacture, processing,
distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport or handling of
pollutants, contaminants, petroleum or petroleum products, chemicals or
industrial, toxic or hazardous substances or wastes or the clean-up or other
remediation thereof.
"Environmental Liabilities" means any liabilities, whether accrued,
contingent or otherwise, arising from and in any way associated with any
Environmental Requirements.
"Environmental Notices" means notice from any Environmental Authority
or by any other person or entity, of possible or alleged noncompliance with or
liability under any Environmental Requirement, including without limitation any
complaints, citations, demands or requests from any Environmental Authority or
from any other person or entity for correction of any violation of any
Environmental Requirement or any investigations concerning any violation of any
Environmental Requirement.
"Environmental Proceedings" means any judicial or administrative
proceedings arising from or in any way associated with any Environmental
Requirement.
"Environmental Releases" means releases as defined in CERCLA or under
any applicable state or local environmental law or regulation.
"Environmental Requirements" means any legal requirement relating to
health, safety or the environment and applicable to the Borrower, any Subsidiary
or any of their respective properties, including but not limited to any such
requirement under CERCLA or similar state legislation.
"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended. Any reference to any provision of ERISA shall also be deemed to be a
reference to any successor provision or provisions thereof.
"Euro-Dollar Business Day" means any Domestic Business Day on which
dealings in Dollar deposits are carried out in the London interbank market.
"Euro-Dollar Loan" means a Loan which bears or is to bear interest at a
rate based upon the London Interbank Offered Rate.
"Euro-Dollar Reserve Percentage" has the meaning set forth in Section
2.06(c).
"Event of Default" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.01.
"Existing Comerica Credit Agreement" means the Amended and Restated
Revolving Credit and Bid Loan Agreement dated as of September 30, 1994 among
Comerica Bank, as agent for the Banks party thereto, certain Banks from time to
time party thereto, and the Borrower, as amended to the Closing Date.
"Existing Wachovia Credit Agreement" means the Credit Agreement dated
as of January 28, 2000 among the Borrower, Wachovia Bank, N.A., as Agent, and
the Banks from time to time party thereto, as amended to the Closing Date.
"Facility Fee Determination Date" has the meaning set forth in Section
2.07(a).
"Facility Fee Payment Date" means each March 31, June 30, September 30
and December 31.
"Federal Funds Rate" means, for any day, the rate per annum (rounded
upward, if necessary, to the next higher 1/100th of 1%) equal to the weighted
average of the rates on overnight Federal funds transactions with members of the
Federal Reserve System arranged by Federal funds brokers on such day, as
published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York on the Domestic Business Day
next succeeding such day, provided that (i) if the day for which such rate is to
be determined is not a Domestic Business Day, the Federal Funds Rate for such
day shall be such rate on such transactions on the next preceding Domestic
Business Day as so published on the next succeeding Domestic Business Day, and
(ii) if such rate is not so published for any day, the Federal Funds Rate for
such day shall be the average rate charged to Wachovia on such day on such
transactions as determined by the Administrative Agent.
"Fiscal Quarter" means any fiscal quarter of the Borrower.

"Fiscal Year" means any fiscal year of the Borrower.
"Foreign Significant Subsidiary" means any Significant Subsidiary which
is not a Domestic Significant Subsidiary.
"GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles consistently
applied.
"Guarantee" by any Person means any obligation, contingent or
otherwise, of such Person directly or indirectly guaranteeing any Debt or other
obligation of any other Person and, without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, any obligation, direct or indirect, contingent or otherwise, of such
Person (i) to secure, purchase or pay (or advance or supply funds for the
purchase or payment of) such Debt or other obligation (whether arising by virtue
of partnership arrangements, by agreement to keep-well, to purchase assets,
goods, securities or services, to provide collateral security, to take-or-pay,
or to maintain financial statement conditions or otherwise) or (ii) entered into
for the purpose of assuring in any other manner the obligee of such Debt or
other obligation of the payment thereof or to protect such obligee against loss
in respect thereof (in whole or in part), provided that the term Guarantee shall
not include endorsements for collection or deposit in the ordinary course of
business. The term "Guarantee" used as a verb has a corresponding meaning.
"Guarantor" means each of the Domestic Significant Subsidiaries
existing on the Closing Date and any other Subsidiary which shall become a party
to the Guaranty at any time after the Closing Date.
"Guaranty" means the Guaranty Agreement dated as of even date herewith
executed by each Guarantor in favor of the Administrative Agent, substantially
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit K, as modified, amended, supplemented or
restated from time to time.
"Hazardous Materials" includes, without limitation, (a) solid or
hazardous waste, as defined in the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of
1980, or in any applicable state or local law or regulation, (b) hazardous
substances, as defined in CERCLA, or in any applicable state or local law or
regulation, (c) gasoline, or any other petroleum product or by-product, (d)
toxic substances, as defined in the Toxic Substances Control Act of 1976, or in
any applicable state or local law or regulation or (e) insecticides, fungicides,
or rodenticides, as defined in the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and
Rodenticide Act of 1975, or in any applicable state or local law or regulation,
as each such Act, statute or regulation may be amended from time to time.
"Income Available for Fixed Charges" means for any period the sum of
(a) Consolidated Net Income for such period, (b) Consolidated Interest Expense
for such period, (c) income taxes of the Borrower and its Consolidated
Subsidiaries for such period, and (d) all payment obligations of the Borrower
and its Consolidated Subsidiaries for such period under all operating leases and
rental agreements (which payment obligations shall be deemed to include, without
duplication, the payment obligations of any Person for such period under any
operating lease or rental agreement Guaranteed by the Borrower or any
Consolidated Subsidiary).
"Indemnity, Subrogation and Contribution Agreement" means the
Indemnity, Subrogation and Contribution Agreement among the Borrower, the
Guarantors and the Administrative Agent, substantially in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit L, as modified, amended, supplemented or restated from time to
time.
"Interest Period" means:
(1) with respect to each Euro-Dollar Borrowing, the period commencing
on the date of such Borrowing and ending on the numerically corresponding day in
the first, second, third or sixth month thereafter, as the Borrower may elect in
the applicable Notice of Borrowing; provided that:
(a) any Interest Period (subject to clause (c) below) which
would otherwise end on a day which is not a Euro-Dollar Business Day
shall be extended to the next succeeding Euro-Dollar Business Day
unless such Euro-Dollar Business Day falls in another calendar month,
in which case such Interest Period shall end on the next preceding
Euro-Dollar Business Day;
(b) any Interest Period which begins on the last Euro-Dollar
Business Day of a calendar month (or on a day for which there is no
numerically corresponding day in the appropriate subsequent calendar
month) shall, subject to clause (c) below, end on the last Euro-Dollar
Business Day of the appropriate subsequent calendar month; and
(c) no Interest Period may be selected which begins before the
Termination Date and would otherwise end after the Termination Date.
(2) with respect to each Money Market Borrowing, the period commencing
on the date of such Borrowing and ending seven (7) to one hundred eighty (180)
days thereafter, as the Borrower may indicate in the applicable Money Market
Quote Request; provided that:
(a) any Interest Period (subject to clause (b) below) which
would otherwise end on a day which is not a Domestic Business Day shall
be extended to the next succeeding Domestic Business Day; and
(b) no Interest Period may be selected which begins before the
Termination Date and would otherwise end after the Termination Date.
"Investment" means any investment in any Person, whether by means of
purchase or acquisition of obligations or securities of such Person, capital

contribution to such Person, loan or advance to such Person, making of a time
deposit with such Person, Guarantee or assumption of any obligation of such
Person or otherwise (but excluding any amount in respect of Guarantees of Debt
of La-Z-Boy gallery stores or of payment obligations of La-Z-Boy gallery stores
under operating leases and rental agreements to the extent such amount is
otherwise included within the definition of Debt or Consolidated Fixed Charges).
"Lead Arranger" means Wachovia Securities, Inc. and its successors.
"Lending Office" means, as to each Bank, its office located at its
address set forth on the signature pages hereof (or identified on the signature
pages hereof as its Lending Office) or such other office as such Bank may
hereafter designate as its Lending Office by notice to the Borrower and the
Administrative Agent.
"Lien" means, with respect to any asset, any mortgage, lien, pledge,
charge, security interest or encumbrance of any kind in respect of such asset.
For the purpose of this Agreement, a Person shall be deemed to own subject to a
Lien any proceeds of a sale with recourse of accounts receivable, any asset
leased under any "sale and lease back" or similar arrangement and any asset
which it has acquired or holds subject to the interest of a vendor or lessor
under any conditional sale agreement, capital lease or other title retention
agreement relating to such asset.
"Loan" means a Syndicated Loan or a Money Market Loan and "Loans" means
Syndicated Loans or Money Market Loans, or any or all of them as the context
shall require.
"Loan Documents" means this Agreement, the Notes, the Guaranty, the
Pledge Agreement, the Indemnity, Subrogation and Contribution Agreement, any
other document evidencing, relating to or securing the Loans, and any other
document or instrument delivered from time to time in connection with this
Agreement, the Notes or the Loans, as such documents and instruments may be
amended or supplemented from time to time.
"London Interbank Offered Rate" has the meaning set forth in Section
2.06(c).
"Margin Stock" means "margin stock" as defined in Regulation T, U or X
of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, as in effect from time
to time, together with all official rulings and interpretations issued
thereunder.
"Material Adverse Effect" means, with respect to any event, act,
condition or occurrence of whatever nature (including any adverse determination
in any litigation, arbitration, or governmental investigation or proceeding),
whether singly or in conjunction with any other event or events, act or acts,
condition or conditions, occurrence or occurrences, whether or not related, a
material adverse change in, or a material adverse effect upon, any of (a) the
financial condition, operations, business, properties or prospects of the
Borrower and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, (b) the rights and remedies of
the Administrative Agent or the Banks under the Loan Documents, or the ability
of the Borrower to perform its obligations under the Loan Documents to which it
is a party, as applicable, or (c) the legality, validity or enforceability of
any Loan Document.
"Money Market Loan" means a Loan that bears or is to bear interest at a
Money Market Rate.
"Money Market Notes" means promissory notes of the Borrower,
substantially in the form of Exhibit B hereto, evidencing the obligation of the
Borrower to repay the Money Market Loans, together with all amendments,
consolidations, modifications, renewals and supplements thereto and "Money
Market Note" means any one of such Money Market Notes.
"Money Market Quote" means an offer by a Bank to make a Money Market
Loan in accordance with Section 2.03(c).
"Money Market Quote Request" has the meaning set forth in Section
2.03(b).
"Money Market Rate" has the meaning set forth in Section
2.03(c)(ii)(C).
"Multiemployer Plan" shall have the meaning set forth in Section
4001(a)(3) of ERISA.
"Notes" means any or all of the Syndicated Notes and the Money Market
Notes and all promissory notes delivered in substitution or exchange therefor,
in each case as the same shall be modified, amended, supplemented, restated,
extended, consolidated, renewed or replaced and in effect from time to time.
"Notice of Borrowing" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.02.
"Officer's Certificate" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.01(f).
"Operating Profits" means, as applied to any Person for any period, the
operating income of such Person for such period, as determined in accordance
with GAAP.
"Participant" has the meaning set forth in Section 9.07(b).
"Participating Subsidiary" means any Subsidiary of the Borrower that is
a participant in a Permitted Securitization.
"PBGC" means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation or any entity

succeeding to any or all of its functions under ERISA.
"Permitted Acquisition" means any Acquisition (a) which is of a Person
engaged in the same or similar line or lines of business as the Borrower or any
of its Subsidiaries, (b) which has been approved by the Board of Directors of
the Person to be acquired in connection with such Acquisition, and (c) as to
which the Borrower has delivered to the Banks a certificate of the chief
financial officer or the chief accounting officer of the Borrower certifying
(and, in the case of Sections 5.19 and 5.20, including calculations evidencing)
pro-forma compliance with the terms of this Agreement after giving effect to
such Acquisition.
"Permitted Securitization" mean any financing program providing for the
sale or transfer of Securitization Assets by the Borrower and its Participating
Subsidiaries, in transactions purporting to be sales (and treated as sales for
GAAP purposes), to one or more limited purpose financing companies, special
purpose entities and/or financial institutions (whether acting as agent, trustee
or individually), in each case, on a limited recourse basis as to the Borrower
and the Participating Subsidiaries.
"Person" means an individual, a corporation, a limited liability
company, a partnership (including without limitation, a joint venture), an
unincorporated association, a trust or any other entity or organization,
including, but not limited to, a government or political subdivision or an
agency or instrumentality thereof.
"Plan" means at any time an employee pension benefit plan which is
covered by Title IV of ERISA or subject to the minimum funding standards under
Section 412 of the Code and is either (i) maintained by a member of the
Controlled Group for employees of any member of the Controlled Group or (ii)
maintained pursuant to a collective bargaining agreement or any other
arrangement under which more than one employer makes contributions and to which
a member of the Controlled Group is then making or accruing an obligation to
make contributions or has within the preceding 5 plan years made contributions.
"Pledge Agreement" means the Pledge Agreement dated as of even date
herewith executed by the Borrower for the benefit of the Administrative Agent,
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit M, as modified, amended,
supplemented or restated from time to time.
"Pledged Shares" means the shares of stock of Subsidiaries pledged to
the Administrative Agent, pursuant to and as such shares are identified in the
Pledge Agreement.
"Prime Rate" refers to that interest rate so denominated and set by
Wachovia from time to time as an interest rate basis for borrowings. The Prime
Rate is but one of several interest rate bases used by Wachovia. Wachovia lends
at interest rates above and below the Prime Rate.
"Priority Debt" means (a) any Debt of the Borrower or any Subsidiary
secured by a Lien permitted pursuant to Section 5.06(1) and (b) any Debt of any
Subsidiary which is not a Guarantor; provided, however, that Priority Debt shall
not include any Debt owed by any Subsidiary to the Borrower or any Guarantor.
"Properties" means all real property owned, leased or otherwise used or
occupied by the Borrower or any Subsidiary, wherever located.
"Rate Determination Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.06(a).
"Receivables Subsidiary" means a special purpose, bankruptcy remote
Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Borrower which may be formed for the sole and
exclusive purpose of engaging in activities in connection with the purchase,
sale and financing of Securitization Assets in connection with and pursuant to a
Permitted Securitization.
"Redeemable Preferred Stock" of any Person means any preferred stock
issued by such Person which is at any time prior to the Termination Date either
(i) mandatorily redeemable (by sinking fund or similar payments or otherwise) or
(ii) redeemable at the option of the holder thereof.
"Rentals" with respect to any Person shall mean and include all fixed
rents (including as such all payments which the lessee is obligated to make to
the lessor on termination of the lease or surrender of the property) payable by
such Person, as lessee or sublessee under a lease of real or personal property,
but shall be exclusive of any amounts required to be paid by such person
(whether or not designated as rents or additional rents) on account of
maintenance, repairs, insurance, taxes and similar charges.
"Required Banks" means at any time Banks having at least 51% of the
aggregate amount of the Commitments or, if the Commitments are no longer in
effect, Banks holding at least 51% of the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of the Notes.
"Restricted Payment" means (i) any dividend or other distribution on
any shares of the Borrower's capital stock (except dividends payable solely in
shares of its capital stock) or (ii) any payment on account of the purchase,
redemption, retirement or acquisition of (a) any shares of the Borrower's
capital stock (except shares acquired upon the conversion thereof into other
shares of its capital stock) or (b) any option, warrant or other right to
acquire shares of the Borrower's capital stock.
"Securitization Assets" means all accounts receivable, general
intangibles, instruments, documents, chattel paper and investment property
(whether now existing or arising in the future) of the Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries which are sold or transferred pursuant to a Permitted
Securitization, and any assets related thereto, including without limitation (i)

all collateral given by any of the foregoing, (ii) all contracts and all
guarantees (but not by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries) or other
obligations directly related to any of the foregoing, (iii) other related assets
including those set forth in the Securitization Documents, and (iv) proceeds of
all of the foregoing.
"Securitization Documents" shall mean all documentation relating to any
Permitted Securitization.
"Securitization Facility Attributed Debt" at any time shall mean the
aggregate net outstanding amount theretofore paid to the Receivables Subsidiary,
the Borrower or Participating Subsidiaries (but without duplication) in respect
of the Securitization Assets sold or transferred by it in connection with a
Permitted Securitization (it being the intent of the parties that the amount of
Securitization Facility Attributed Debt at any time outstanding approximate as
closely as possible the principal amount of Debt which would be outstanding at
such time under the Permitted Securitization if the same were structured as a
secured lending agreement rather than a purchase agreement).
"Security" has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2(1) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
"Significant Subsidiary" means (i) on the Closing Date, each of the
Subsidiaries listed on Schedule 1.01 hereto and (ii) on any date after the
Closing Date, any Subsidiary of the Borrower which has either (i) Total Assets
on the last day of the Fiscal Quarter most recently ended equal to or greater
than 5% of Consolidated Total Assets on the last day of the Fiscal Quarter most
recently ended, or (ii) Operating Profits for the period of 4 consecutive Fiscal
Quarters most recently ended prior to such date equal to or greater than 5% of
Consolidated Operating Profits for such period of 4 consecutive Fiscal Quarters.
"SPV" has the meaning set forth in Section 9.17(a).
"Stock" of any Person means any capital stock or other equity Security,
of any classification, of such Person.
"Subsidiary" means any corporation or other entity of which securities
or other ownership interests having ordinary voting power to elect a majority of
the board of directors or other persons performing similar functions are at the
time directly or indirectly owned by the Borrower.
"Syndicated Loan" means a Base Rate Loan or a Euro-Dollar Loan and
"Syndicated Loans" means Base Rate Loans or Euro-Dollar Loans, or any or all of
them, as the context shall require.
"Syndicated Notes" means promissory notes of the Borrower,
substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto, evidencing the obligation of the
Borrower to repay the Syndicated Loans, together with all amendments,
consolidations, modifications, renewals and supplements thereto and "Syndicated
Note" means any one of such Syndicated Notes.
"Taxes" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.12(c).
"Termination Date" means May 12, 2005.
"Third Parties" means all lessees, sublessees, licensees and other
users of the properties of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, excluding those
users of such properties in the ordinary course of the Borrower's and its
Subsidiaries' business and on a temporary basis.
"Total Assets" of any Person means, at any time, the total assets of
such Person, as set forth or reflected or as should be set forth or reflected on
the most recent balance sheet of such Person, prepared in accordance with GAAP.
"Transferee" has the meaning set forth in Section 9.07(d).
"Unused Commitment" means at any date, with respect to any Bank, an
amount equal to its Commitment less the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of its Loans.
"Utilization Fee Determination Date" has the meaning set forth in
Section 2.07(b).
"Wachovia" means Wachovia Bank, N.A., a national banking association
and its successors.
"Wholly Owned Subsidiary" means any Subsidiary all of the shares of
capital stock or other ownership interests of which (except directors'
qualifying shares) are at the time directly or indirectly owned by the Borrower.
SECTION 1.02 Accounting Terms and Determinations. Unless otherwise specified
herein, all terms of an accounting character used herein shall be interpreted,
all accounting determinations hereunder shall be made, and all financial
statements required to be delivered hereunder shall be prepared in accordance
with GAAP, applied on a basis consistent (except for changes concurred in by the
Borrower's independent public accountants or otherwise required by a change in
GAAP) with the most recent audited consolidated financial statements of the
Borrower and its Subsidiaries delivered to the Banks, unless with respect to any
such change concurred in by the Borrower's independent public accountants or
required by GAAP, in determining compliance with any of the provisions of this
Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents: (i) the Borrower shall have
objected to determining such compliance on such basis at the time of delivery of
such financial statements, or (ii) the Required Banks shall so object in writing
within 30 days after the delivery of such financial statements, in either of
which events such calculations shall be made on a basis consistent with those
used in the preparation of the latest financial statements as to which such

objection shall not have been made (which, if objection is made in respect of
the first financial statements delivered under Section 5.01 hereof, shall mean
the financial statements referred to in Section 4.04).
SECTION 1.03 Use of Defined Terms. All terms defined in this Agreement shall
have the same meanings when used in any of the other Loan Documents, unless
otherwise defined therein or unless the context shall otherwise require.
SECTION 1.04 Terminology. All personal pronouns used in this Agreement, whether
used in the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, shall include all other
genders; the singular shall include the plural and the plural shall include the
singular. Titles of Articles and Sections in this Agreement are for convenience
only, and neither limit nor amplify the provisions of this Agreement.
SECTION 1.05 References. Unless otherwise indicated, references in this
Agreement to "Articles", "Exhibits", "Schedules", and "Sections" are references
to articles, exhibits, schedules and sections hereof.
ARTICLE II.
THE CREDITS
SECTION 2.01 Commitments to Make Syndicated Loans. Each Bank severally agrees,
on the terms and conditions set forth herein, to make Syndicated Loans to the
Borrower from time to time before the Termination Date; provided that,
immediately after each such Syndicated Loan is made, the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of Syndicated Loans by such Bank shall not exceed the amount of
its Commitment, provided further that the aggregate principal amount of all
Syndicated Loans, together with the aggregate principal amount of all Money
Market Loans, at any one time outstanding shall not exceed the aggregate amount
of the Commitments of all of the Banks at such time. Each Borrowing under this
Section shall be in an aggregate principal amount (i) in the case of Euro-Dollar
Loans, of $5,000,000 or any larger multiple of $1,000,000 and (ii) in the case
of Base Rate Loans, of $1,000,000 or any larger multiple of $500,000 (except
that any such Borrowing may be in the aggregate amount of the Unused
Commitments) and shall be made from the several Banks ratably in proportion to
their respective Commitments. Within the foregoing limits, the Borrower may
borrow under this Section, repay or, to the extent permitted by Section 2.10,
prepay Syndicated Loans and reborrow under this Section at any time before the
Termination Date.
SECTION 2.02 Method of Borrowing Syndicated Loans.The Borrower shall give the
Administrative Agent notice in the form attached hereto as Exhibit J (a "Notice
of Borrowing") prior to 11:00 A.M. (Atlanta, Georgia time) on the Domestic
Business Day of each Base Rate Borrowing and at least 3 Euro-Dollar Business
Days before each Euro-Dollar Borrowing, specifying:
(i)

the date of such Syndicated Borrowing, which shall be a Domestic
Business Day in the case of a Base Rate Borrowing or a Euro-Dollar
Business Day in the case of a Euro-Dollar Borrowing,

(ii)

the aggregate amount of such Syndicated Borrowing,

(iii)

whether the Syndicated Loans comprising such Syndicated Borrowing are
to be Base Rate Loans or Euro-Dollar Loans, and

(iv)

in the case of a Euro-Dollar Borrowing, the duration of the Interest
Period applicable thereto, subject to the provisions of the definition
of Interest Period.

(b) Upon receipt of a Notice of Borrowing, the Administrative Agent shall
promptly notify each Bank of the contents thereof and of such Bank's ratable
share of such Syndicated Borrowing and such Notice of Borrowing shall not
thereafter be revocable by the Borrower.
(c) Not later than 1:00 P.M. (Atlanta, Georgia time) on the date of each
Syndicated Borrowing, each Bank shall (except as provided in subsection (d) of
this Section) make available its ratable share of such Syndicated Borrowing, in
Federal or other funds immediately available in Atlanta, Georgia, to the
Administrative Agent at its address referred to in or specified pursuant to
Section 9.01. Unless the Administrative Agent determines that any applicable
condition specified in Article III has not been satisfied, the Administrative
Agent will make the funds so received from the Banks available to the Borrower
at the Administrative Agent's aforesaid address. Unless the Administrative Agent
receives notice from a Bank, at the Administrative Agent's address referred to
in Section 9.01, no later than 4:00 P.M. (local time at such address) on the
Domestic Business Day before the date of a Syndicated Borrowing stating that
such Bank will not make a Syndicated Loan in connection with such Syndicated
Borrowing, the Administrative Agent shall be entitled to assume that such Bank
will make a Syndicated Loan in connection with such Syndicated Borrowing and, in
reliance on such assumption, the Administrative Agent may (but shall not be
obligated to) make available such Bank's ratable share of such Syndicated
Borrowing to the Borrower for the account of such Bank. If the Administrative
Agent makes such Bank's ratable share available to the Borrower and such Bank
does not in fact make its ratable share of such Syndicated Borrowing available
on such date, the Administrative Agent shall be entitled to recover such Bank's
ratable share from such Bank or the Borrower (and for such purpose shall be
entitled to charge such amount to any account of the Borrower maintained with
the Administrative Agent), together with interest thereon for each day during
the period from the date of such Syndicated Borrowing until such sum shall be
paid in full at a rate per annum equal to the rate at which the Administrative
Agent determines that it obtained (or could have obtained) overnight Federal
funds to cover such amount for each such day during such period, provided that
any such payment by the Borrower of such Bank's ratable share and interest
thereon shall be without prejudice to any rights that the Borrower may have
against such Bank. If such Bank shall repay to the Administrative Agent such

corresponding amount, such amount so repaid shall constitute such Bank's
Syndicated Loan included in such Syndicated Borrowing for purposes of this
Agreement.
(d) If any Bank makes a new Syndicated Loan hereunder on a day on which the
Borrower is to repay all or any part of an outstanding Syndicated Loan from such
Bank, such Bank shall apply the proceeds of its new Syndicated Loan to make such
repayment and only an amount equal to the difference (if any) between the amount
being borrowed and the amount being repaid shall be made available by such Bank
to the Administrative Agent as provided in subsection (c) of this Section, or
remitted by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent as provided in Section
2.12, as the case may be.
(e) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, no
Euro-Dollar Borrowing may be made if there shall have occurred a Default or an
Event of Default, which Default or Event of Default shall not have been cured or
waived in writing.
(f) In the event that a Notice of Borrowing fails to specify whether the
Syndicated Loans comprising such Borrowing are to be Base Rate Loans or
Euro-Dollar Loans, such Syndicated Loans shall be made as Base Rate Loans. If
the Borrower is otherwise entitled under this Agreement to repay any Loans
maturing at the end of an Interest Period applicable thereto with the proceeds
of a new Borrowing, and the Borrower fails to repay such Loans using its own
moneys and fails to give a Notice of Borrowing in connection with such new
Borrowing, a new Syndicated Borrowing shall be deemed to be made on the date
such Loans mature in an amount equal to the principal amount of the Loans so
maturing, and the Syndicated Loans comprising such new Syndicated Borrowing
shall be Base Rate Loans.
(g) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein,
be more than (8) different Interest Periods outstanding at the
which purpose Interest Periods described in different numbered
definition of the term "Interest Period" shall be deemed to be
Interest Periods even if they are coterminous).
SECTION 2.03.

there shall not
same time (for
clauses of the
different

Money Market Loans.

(a) In addition to making Syndicated Borrowings, at any time the ratio of
Consolidated Total Funded Debt to Consolidated Total Capital is less than 40%
(determined in accordance with Section 2.06(a)), the Borrower may, as set forth
in this Section, request the Banks to make offers to make Money Market Loans to
the Borrower. The Banks may, but shall have no obligation to, make such offers
and the Borrower may, but shall have no obligation to, accept any such offers in
the manner set forth in this Section, provided that:
(i)

there may be no more than eight (8) different Interest Periods for both
Syndicated Loans and Money Market Loans outstanding at the same time
(for which purpose Interest Periods described in different numbered
clauses of the definition of the term "Interest Period" shall be deemed
to be different Interest Periods even if they are coterminous); and

(ii)

the aggregate principal amount (A) of all Money Market Loans at any one
time outstanding shall not exceed 50% of the aggregate amount of the
Commitments of all of the Banks at such time, and (B) of all Money
Market Loans, together with the aggregate principal amount of all
Syndicated Loans, at any one time outstanding shall not exceed the
aggregate amount of the Commitments of all of the Banks at such time.

(b) When the Borrower wishes to request offers to make Money Market Loans, it
shall give the Administrative Agent (which shall promptly notify the Banks)
notice substantially in the form of Exhibit E hereto (a "Money Market Quote
Request") so as to be received no later than 11:00 A.M. (Atlanta, Georgia time)
on the second (2nd) Domestic Business Day prior to the date of the Money Market
Borrowing proposed therein (or such other time and date as the Borrower and the
Administrative Agent, with the consent of the Required Banks, may agree),
specifying:
(i)

the proposed date of such Money Market Borrowing, which shall be a
Domestic Business Day (the "Quotation Date");

(ii)

the aggregate amount of such Money Market Borrowing, which shall be at
least $5,000,000 (and in larger multiples of $1,000,000) but shall not
cause the limits specified in Section 2.03(a) to be violated; and

(iii)

the duration of the Interest Period applicable thereto, which shall be
seven (7) to one hundred eighty (180) days.

The Borrower may request offers to make Money Market Loans for up to
three (3) different Interest Periods in a single Money Market Quote Request;
provided that the request for each separate Interest Period shall be deemed to
be a separate Money Market Quote Request for a separate Money Market Borrowing.
Except as otherwise provided in the immediately preceding sentence, the Borrower
shall not deliver a Money Market Quote Request more frequently than once every
five (5) Domestic Business Days.

(c)
(i)

Each Bank may, but shall have no obligation to, submit a Money Market
Quote containing an offer to make a Money Market Loan in response to
any Money Market Quote Request; provided that, if the Borrower's
request under Section 2.03(b) specified more than one Interest Period,
such Bank may, but shall have no obligation to, make a single
submission containing a separate offer for each such Interest Period

and each such separate offer shall be deemed to be a separate Money
Market Quote. Each Money Market Quote must be submitted to the
Administrative Agent not later than 10:00 A.M. (Atlanta, Georgia time)
on the Quotation Date (or such other time and date as the Borrower and
the Administrative Agent, with the consent of the Required Banks, may
agree); provided that as long as Wachovia is the Administrative Agent
any Money Market Quote submitted by Wachovia may be submitted, and may
only be submitted, if Wachovia notifies the Borrower of the terms of
the offer contained therein not later than 9:45 A.M. (Atlanta, Georgia
time) on the Quotation Date. Subject to Section 6.01, any Money Market
Quote so made shall be irrevocable except with the written consent of
the Administrative Agent given on the instructions of the Borrower.
(ii) Each Money Market Quote shall be in substantially the form of Exhibit F
hereto and shall specify:
(A)

the proposed date of the Money Market Borrowing and the
duration of the Interest Period therefor, which shall be seven
(7) to one hundred eighty (180) days;

(B)

the maximum principal amount of the Money Market Loan which
the quoting Bank is willing to make for the applicable
Interest Period, which principal amount (x) may be greater
than or less than the Commitment of the quoting Bank, (y)
shall be at least $5,000,000 or a larger multiple of
$1,000,000, and (z) may not exceed the principal amount of the
Money Market Borrowing for which offers were requested;

(C)

the rate of interest per annum (rounded, if necessary, to the
nearest 1/100th of 1%) (the "Money Market Rate") offered for
each such Money Market Loan; and

(D) the identity of the quoting Bank.
Unless otherwise agreed by the Administrative Agent and the Borrower,
no Money Market Quote shall contain qualifying, conditional or similar
language or propose terms other than or in addition to those set forth
in the applicable Money Market Quote Request (other than setting forth
the maximum principal amount of the Money Market Loan which the quoting
Bank is willing to make for the applicable Interest Period).
(d) The Administrative Agent shall as promptly as practicable after the Money
Market Quote is submitted (but in any event not later than 10:30 A.M. (Atlanta,
Georgia time)) notify the Borrower of the terms (i) of any Money Market Quote
submitted by a Bank that is in accordance with Section 2.03(c) and (ii) of any
Money Market Quote that amends, modifies or is otherwise inconsistent with a
previous Money Market Quote submitted by such Bank with respect to the same
Money Market Quote Request. Any such subsequent Money Market Quote shall be
disregarded by the Administrative Agent unless such subsequent Money Market
Quote is submitted solely to correct a manifest error in such former Money
Market Quote. The Administrative Agent's notice to the Borrower shall specify
(A) the maximum aggregate principal amount of the Money Market Borrowing for
which offers have been received and (B) the maximum principal amount and Money
Market Rates so offered by each Bank (identifying the Bank that made each Money
Market Quote).
(e) Not later than 11:00 A.M. (Atlanta, Georgia time) on the Quotation Date (or
such other time and date as the Borrower and the Administrative Agent, with the
consent of the Required Banks, may agree), the Borrower shall notify the
Administrative Agent of its acceptance or nonacceptance of the offers so
notified to it pursuant to Section 2.03(d) and the Administrative Agent shall
promptly notify each Bank that has submitted a Money Market Quote. The Borrower
may decline to accept such offers for any reason. In the case of acceptance,
such notice shall specify the aggregate principal amount of offers for each
Interest Period that are accepted. The Borrower may accept any Money Market
Quote in whole or in part (provided that any Money Market Quote accepted in part
from any Bank shall not be less than the amount set forth in the Money Market
Quote of such Bank as the minimum principal amount of the Money Market Loan such
Bank was willing to make for the applicable Interest Period); provided that:
(i)

the aggregate principal amount of each Money Market Borrowing may not
exceed the applicable amount set forth in the related Money Market
Quote Request;

(ii)

the aggregate principal amount of each Money Market Borrowing shall be
at least $5,000,000 (and in larger multiples of $1,000,000) but shall
not cause the limits specified in Section 2.03(a) to be violated;

(iii)

acceptance of offers may only be made in ascending order of Money
Market Rates; and

(iv)

the Borrower may not accept any offer where the Administrative Agent
has advised the Borrower that such offer fails to comply with Section
2.03(c)(ii) or otherwise fails to comply with the requirements of this
Agreement (including, without limitation, Section 2.03(a)).

If offers are made by two or more Banks with the same Money Market Rates for a
greater aggregate principal amount than the amount in respect of which offers
are accepted for the related Interest Period, the principal amount of Money
Market Loans in respect of which such offers are accepted shall be allocated by
the Borrower among such Banks as nearly as possible (in multiples of $100,000)
in proportion to the aggregate principal amount of such offers. Determinations
by the Borrower of the amounts of Money Market Loans shall be conclusive in the
absence of manifest error.
(f) Any Bank whose offer to make any Money Market Loan has been accepted shall,

not later than 12:00 P.M. (Atlanta, Georgia time) on the Quotation Date, make
the amount of such Loan available to the Administrative Agent at its address
referred to in Section 9.01 in immediately available funds. The amount so
received by the Administrative Agent shall, subject to the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, be made available to the Borrower on such date by depositing
the same, in immediately available funds, in an account of such Borrower
maintained with Wachovia.
SECTION 2.04.

Notes.

(a) The Syndicated Loans of each Bank shall be evidenced by a single Syndicated
Note payable to the order of such Bank for the account of its Lending Office in
an amount equal to the original principal amount of such Bank's Commitment.
(b) The Money Market Loans made by any Bank to the Borrower shall be evidenced
by a single Money Market Note payable to the order of such Bank for the account
of its Lending Office.
(c) Upon receipt of each Bank's Notes pursuant to Section 3.01, the
Administrative Agent shall deliver such Notes to such Bank. Each Bank shall
record, and prior to any transfer of its Notes shall endorse on the schedule
forming a part thereof appropriate notations to evidence, the date, amount and
maturity of, and effective interest rate for, each Loan made by it, the date and
amount of each payment of principal made by the Borrower with respect thereto
and whether, in the case of such Bank's Syndicated Note, such Syndicated Loan is
a Base Rate Loan or Euro-Dollar Loan, and such schedule shall constitute
rebuttable presumptive evidence of the principal amount owing and unpaid on such
Bank's Note; provided that the failure of any Bank to make, or any error in
making, any such recordation or endorsement shall not affect the obligation of
the Borrower hereunder or under the Notes or the ability of any Bank to assign
its Notes. Each Bank is hereby irrevocably authorized by the Borrower so to
endorse its Notes and to attach to and make a part of any Note a continuation of
any such schedule as and when required.
SECTION 2.05.
Maturity of Loans. Each Loan included in any Borrowing shall
mature, and the principal amount thereof shall be due and payable, on the last
day of the Interest Period applicable to such Borrowing.
SECTION 2.06.

Interest Rates.

(a) The "Applicable Margin" for Syndicated Loans shall be determined
quarterly based upon the ratio of Consolidated Total Funded Debt to Consolidated
Total Capital (calculated as of the last day of each Fiscal Quarter), as
follows:
Ratio of Consolidated Total Funded
Debt to Consolidated Total Capital
Base Rate Loans
-----------------------------------------------Greater than or equal to 40%
0%
Greater than or equal to 30% but less than 40%
0%
Greater than or equal to 20% but less than 30%
0%
Less than 20%
0%

Euro-Dollar Loans
----------------0.80%
0.625%
0.55%
0.475%

The Applicable Margin shall be determined effective as of the date (herein, the
"Rate Determination Date") which is 45 days after the last day of the Fiscal
Quarter as of the end of which the foregoing ratio is being determined, based on
the quarterly financial statements for such Fiscal Quarter, and the Applicable
Margin so determined shall remain effective from such Rate Determination Date
until the date which is 45 days after the last day of the Fiscal Quarter in
which such Rate Determination Date falls (which latter date shall be a new Rate
Determination Date); provided that (i) for the period from and including the
Closing Date to but excluding the Rate Determination Date next following the
Fiscal Quarter ending October 28, 2000, the Applicable Margin shall be 0% for
Base Rate Loans and 0.55% for Euro-Dollar Loans, (ii) in the case of any
Applicable Margin determined for the fourth and final Fiscal Quarter of a Fiscal
Year, the Rate Determination Date shall be the date which is 90 days after the
last day of such final Fiscal Quarter and such Applicable Margin shall be
determined based upon the annual audited financial statements for the Fiscal
Year ended on the last day of such final Fiscal Quarter, and (iii) if on any
Rate Determination Date the Borrower shall have failed to deliver to the Banks
the financial statements required to be delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or
Section 5.01(b) with respect to the Fiscal Year or Fiscal Quarter, as the case
may be, most recently ended prior to such Rate Determination Date, then for the
period beginning on such Rate Determination Date and ending on the earlier of
(A) the date on which the Borrower shall deliver to the Banks the financial
statements to be delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(b) with respect to such
Fiscal Quarter or any subsequent Fiscal Quarter, or (B) the date on which the
Borrower shall deliver to the Banks annual financial statements required to be
delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) with respect to the Fiscal Year which
includes such Fiscal Quarter or any subsequent Fiscal Year, the Applicable
Margin shall be determined as if the ratio of Consolidated Total Funded Debt to
Consolidated Total Capital was more than 40% at all times during such period.
Any change in the Applicable Margin on any Rate Determination Date shall result
in a corresponding change, effective on and as of such Rate Determination Date,
in the interest rate applicable to each Loan (other than Money Market Loans)
outstanding on such Rate Determination Date, provided that: (i) for Euro-Dollar
Loans, changes in the Applicable Margin shall only be effective for Interest
Periods commencing on or after the Rate Determination Date; and (ii) no
Applicable Margin shall be decreased pursuant to this Section 2.06 if a Default
is in existence on the Rate Determination Date.
(b) Each Base Rate Loan shall
principal amount thereof, for each day
becomes due, at a rate per annum equal
Applicable Margin. Such interest shall

bear interest on the outstanding
from the date such Loan is made until it
to the Base Rate for such day plus the
be payable on the first Domestic Business

Day of each month. Any overdue principal of and, to the extent permitted by
applicable law, overdue interest on any Base Rate Loan shall bear interest,
payable on demand, for each day until paid at a rate per annum equal to the
Default Rate.
(c) Each Euro-Dollar Loan shall bear interest on the outstanding
principal amount thereof, for the Interest Period applicable thereto, at a rate
per annum equal to the sum of the Applicable Margin plus the applicable Adjusted
London Interbank Offered Rate for such Interest Period; provided that if any
Euro-Dollar Loan shall, as a result of clause (1)(c) of the definition of
Interest Period, have an Interest Period of less than one month, such
Euro-Dollar Loan shall bear interest during such Interest Period at the rate
applicable to Base Rate Loans during such period. Such interest shall be payable
for each Interest Period on the last day thereof and, if such Interest Period is
longer than 3 months, at intervals of 3 months after the first day thereof. Any
overdue principal of and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, overdue
interest on any Euro-Dollar Loan shall bear interest, payable on demand, for
each day until paid at a rate per annum equal to the Default Rate.
The "Adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate" applicable to any Interest
Period means a rate per annum equal to the quotient obtained (rounded upward, if
necessary, to the next higher 1/100th of 1%) by dividing (i) the applicable
London Interbank Offered Rate for such Interest Period by (ii) 1.00 minus the
Euro-Dollar Reserve Percentage.
The "London Interbank Offered Rate" applicable to any Euro-Dollar Loan
means for the Interest Period of such Euro-Dollar Loan the rate per annum
determined on the basis of the offered rate for deposits in Dollars of amounts
equal or comparable to the principal amount of such Euro-Dollar Loan offered for
a term comparable to such Interest Period, which rate appears on the display
designated as Page "3750" of the Telerate Service (or such other page as may
replace page 3750 of that service or such other service or services as may be
nominated by the British Banker's Association for the purpose of displaying
London Interbank Offered Rates for U.S. dollar deposits) determined as of 1:00
p.m. New York City time, 2 Euro-Dollar Business Days prior to the first day of
such Interest Period.
"Euro-Dollar Reserve Percentage" means for any day that percentage
(expressed as a decimal) which is in effect on such day, as prescribed by the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (or any successor) for
determining the maximum reserve requirement for a member bank of the Federal
Reserve System in respect of "Eurocurrency liabilities" (or in respect of any
other category of liabilities which includes deposits by reference to which the
interest rate on Euro-Dollar Loans is determined or any category of extensions
of credit or other assets which includes loans by a non-United States office of
any Bank to United States residents). The Adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate
shall be adjusted automatically on and as of the effective date of any change in
the Euro-Dollar Reserve Percentage.
(d) Each Money Market Loan shall bear interest on the outstanding
principal amount thereof, for the Interest Period applicable thereto, at a rate
per annum equal to the Money Market Rate for such Loan quoted by the Bank making
such Loan in accordance with Section 2.03. Such interest shall be payable for
such Interest Period on the last day thereof and, if such Interest Period is
longer than 90 days, at intervals of 90 days after the first day thereof. Any
overdue principal of and, to the extent permitted by law, overdue interest on
any Money Market Loan shall bear interest, payable on demand, for each day until
paid at a rate per annum equal to the Default Rate.
(e) The Administrative Agent shall determine each interest rate
applicable to the Loans hereunder. The Administrative Agent shall give prompt
notice to the Borrower and the Banks by telecopy of each rate of interest so
determined, and its determination thereof shall be conclusive in the absence of
manifest error.
(f) After the occurrence and during the continuance of a Default, the
principal amount of the Loans (and, to the extent permitted by applicable law,
all accrued interest thereon not paid when due) may, at the election of the
Required Banks, bear interest at the Default Rate; provided, however, that
automatically, whether or not the Required Banks elect to do so, any overdue
principal of and, to the extent permitted by law, overdue interest on any Loan
shall bear interest payable on demand, for each day until paid at a rate per
annum equal to the Default Rate.
SECTION 2.07.

Fees.

(a) The Borrower shall pay to the Administrative Agent for the ratable
account of each Bank a facility fee equal to the product of: (i) the aggregate
of the daily average amounts of such Bank's Commitment, times (ii) a per annum
percentage equal to the Applicable Facility Fee Rate. Such facility fee shall
accrue from and including the Closing Date to and including the Termination
Date. Facility fees shall be payable quarterly in arrears on the first Facility
Fee Payment Date following each Facility Fee Determination Date and on the
Termination Date; provided that should the Commitments be terminated at any time
prior to the Termination Date for any reason, the entire accrued and unpaid
facility fee shall be paid on the date of such termination. The "Applicable
Facility Fee Rate" shall be determined quarterly based upon the ratio of
Consolidated Total Funded Debt to Consolidated Total Capital (calculated as of
the last day of each Fiscal Quarter) as follows:
Ratio of Consolidated Total
Funded Debt to
Consolidated Total Capital
--------------------------Greater than or equal to 40%

Applicable Facility
Fee Rate
------------------0.30%

Greater than or equal to 30% but less
than .40%

0.25%

Greater than or equal to 20% but less
than 30%

0.20%

Less than 20%

0.15%

The Applicable Facility Fee Rate shall be determined effective as of the date
(herein, the "Facility Fee Determination Date") which is 45 days after the last
day of the Fiscal Quarter as of the end of which the foregoing ratio is being
determined, based on the quarterly financial statements for such Fiscal Quarter,
and the Applicable Facility Fee Rate so determined shall remain effective from
such Facility Fee Determination Date until the date which is 45 days after the
last day of the Fiscal Quarter in which such Facility Fee Determination Date
falls (which latter date shall be a new Facility Fee Determination Date);
provided that (i) for the period from and including the Closing Date to but
excluding the Facility Fee Determination Date next following the Fiscal Quarter
ending October 28, 2000, the Applicable Facility Fee Rate shall be 0.20%; (ii)
in the case of any Applicable Facility Fee Rate determined for the fourth and
final Fiscal Quarter of a Fiscal Year, the Facility Fee Determination Date shall
be the date which is 90 days after the last day of such final Fiscal Quarter and
such Applicable Facility Fee Rate shall be determined based upon the annual
audited financial statements for the Fiscal Year ended on the last day of such
final Fiscal Quarter, and (iii) if on any Facility Fee Determination Date the
Borrower shall have failed to deliver to the Banks the financial statements
required to be delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or Section 5.01(b) with
respect to the Fiscal Year or the Fiscal Quarter, as the case may be, most
recently ended prior to such Facility Fee Determination Date, then for the
period beginning on such Facility Fee Determination Date and ending on the
earlier of (A) the date on which the Borrower shall deliver to the Banks the
financial statements to be delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(b) with respect to
such Fiscal Quarter or any subsequent Fiscal Quarter, and (B) the date on which
the Borrower shall deliver to the Banks annual financial statements required to
be delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) with respect to the Fiscal Year which
includes such Fiscal Quarter or any subsequent Fiscal Year, the Applicable
Facility Fee Rate shall be determined as if the ratio of Consolidated Total
Funded Debt to Consolidated Total Capital was more than 40% at all times during
such period; provided that the Applicable Facility Fee Rate shall not be
decreased pursuant to this Section 2.07(a) if a Default is in existence on the
related Facility Fee Determination Date.
(b) The Borrower shall pay to the Administrative Agent for the ratable
account of each Bank a utilization fee equal to the product of: (i) the
aggregate of the daily average outstanding amounts of Syndicated Loans,
multiplied by (ii) a per annum percentage equal to the Applicable Utilization
Fee Rate. The Applicable Utilization Fee Rate may vary daily in accordance with
the percentage of the Commitments that is currently outstanding as Loans. Such
utilization fee shall accrue from and including the Closing Date to and
including the Termination Date. Utilization fees shall be payable quarterly in
arrears on each Facility Fee Payment Date and on the Termination Date; provided
that should the Commitments be terminated at any time prior to the Termination
Date for any reason, the entire accrued and unpaid utilization fee shall be paid
on the date of such termination. The "Applicable Utilization Fee Rate" shall be
determined quarterly based upon the ratio of Consolidated Total Funded Debt to
Consolidated Total Capital (calculated as of the last day of each Fiscal
Quarter) as follows:
Applicable Utilization Fee Rate
Ratio of Consolidated
Total Funded Debt to
Consolidated Total Capital
--------------------------

Percentage of Commitments
Currently outstanding as Loans
-----------------------------Less than or equal to 50%
-------------------------

Greater than 50%
----------------

Greater than or equal to 40%

0%

0.125%

Greater than or equal to 30% but
less than 40%

0%

0.125%

Greater than or equal to 20% but
less than 30%

0%

0.100%

Less than 20%

0%

0.100%

The Applicable Utilization Fee Rate (which may vary daily in accordance with the
second sentence of this paragraph (b)) shall be determined effective as of the
date (herein, the "Utilization Fee Determination Date") which is 45 days after
the last day of the Fiscal Quarter as of the end of which the foregoing ratio is
being determined, based on the quarterly financial statements for such Fiscal
Quarter, and the Applicable Utilization Fee Rate so determined shall remain
effective from such Utilization Fee Determination Date until the date which is
45 days after the last day of the Fiscal Quarter in which such Utilization Fee
Determination Date falls (which latter date shall be a new Utilization Fee
Determination Date); provided that (i) for the period from and including the
Closing Date to but excluding the Utilization Fee Determination Date next
following the Fiscal Quarter ending October 28, 2000, the Applicable Utilization
Fee Rate shall be 0.100%; (ii) in the case of any Applicable Utilization Fee
Rate determined for the fourth and final Fiscal Quarter of a Fiscal Year, the
Utilization Fee Determination Date shall be the date which is 90 days after the
last day of such final Fiscal Quarter and such Applicable Utilization Fee Rate
shall be determined based upon the annual audited financial statements for the

Fiscal Year ended on the last day of such final Fiscal Quarter, and (iii) if on
any Utilization Fee Determination Date the Borrower shall have failed to deliver
to the Banks the financial statements required to be delivered pursuant to
Section 5.01(a) or Section 5.01(b) with respect to the Fiscal Year or the Fiscal
Quarter, as the case may be, most recently ended prior to such Utilization Fee
Determination Date, then for the period beginning on such Utilization Fee
Determination Date and ending on the earlier of (A) the date on which the
Borrower shall deliver to the Banks the financial statements to be delivered
pursuant to Section 5.01(b) with respect to such Fiscal Quarter or any
subsequent Fiscal Quarter, and (B) the date on which the Borrower shall deliver
to the Banks annual financial statements required to be delivered pursuant to
Section 5.01(a) with respect to the Fiscal Year which includes such Fiscal
Quarter or any subsequent Fiscal Year, the Applicable Utilization Fee Rate shall
be determined as if the ratio of Consolidated Total Funded Debt to Consolidated
Total Capital was more than 40% at all times during such period; provided that
the Applicable Utilization Fee Rate shall not be decreased pursuant to this
Section 2.07(b) if a Default is in existence on the related Utilization Fee
Determination Date.
(c) The Borrower shall pay to the Administrative Agent, on the Closing
Date, for the account of each Bank, the up-front fees in the amounts set forth
on Schedule 2.07 hereto.
(d) The Borrower shall pay to the Administrative Agent and the Lead
Arranger, for the account and sole benefit of the Administrative Agent and the
Lead Arranger, such fees and other amounts at such times as set forth in the
Administrative Agent's Letter Agreement.
SECTION 2.08. Optional Termination or Reduction of Commitments. The Borrower
may, upon at least 3 Domestic Business Days' notice to the Administrative Agent,
terminate at any time, or proportionately and ratably among the Banks reduce
from time to time by an aggregate amount of at least $5,000,000 or any larger
multiple of $1,000,000, the Commitments; provided, however, no such termination
or reduction shall be in an amount greater than the total Unused Commitments on
the date of such termination or reduction. If the Commitments are terminated in
their entirety, all accrued fees (as provided under Section 2.07) shall be
payable on the effective date of such termination.
SECTION 2.09. Mandatory Reduction and Termination of Commitments. The
Commitments shall terminate on the Termination Date and any Loans then
outstanding (together with accrued interest thereon) shall be due and payable on
such date.
SECTION 2.10. Optional Prepayments. (a) The Borrower may, upon at least 1
Domestic Business Day's notice to the Administrative Agent, prepay any Base Rate
Borrowing in whole at any time, or from time to time in part in amounts
aggregating at least $1,000,000, or any larger multiple of $500,000, by paying
the principal amount to be prepaid together with accrued interest thereon to the
date of prepayment. Each such optional prepayment shall be applied to prepay
ratably the Base Rate Loans of the several Banks included in such Base Rate
Borrowing.
(b) The Borrower may, upon at least 3 Euro-Dollar Business Days' notice to the
Administrative Agent, prepay the principal amount of any Euro-Dollar Loan or
Money Market Loan prior to the last day of an Interest Period applicable
thereto, upon payment of the principal amount of, accrued interest on and other
amounts due under Section 8.05 in respect of such Loan.
(c) Upon receipt of a notice of prepayment pursuant to this Section, the
Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Bank of the contents thereof and
of such Bank's ratable share of such prepayment and such notice shall not
thereafter be revocable by the Borrower.
SECTION 2.11. Mandatory Prepayments. On each date on which the Commitments are
reduced or terminated pursuant to Section 2.08 or Section 2.09, the Borrower
shall repay or prepay such principal amount of the outstanding Loans, if any
(together with interest accrued thereon and any amounts due under Section
8.05(a)), as may be necessary so that after such payment the aggregate unpaid
principal amount of the Loans does not exceed the aggregate amount of the
Commitments as then reduced. Each such payment or prepayment shall be applied to
repay or prepay ratably the Loans of the several Banks; provided that such
prepayment shall be applied, first, to Syndicated Loans outstanding on the date
of such prepayment (in direct order of maturity) and then, to the extent
necessary, to Money Market Loans outstanding on the date of such prepayment (in
direct order of maturity).
SECTION 2.12.

General Provisions as to Payments.

(a) The Borrower shall make each payment of principal of, and interest on, the
Loans and of all fees hereunder, not later than 11:00 A.M. (Atlanta, Georgia
time) on the date when due, in Federal or other funds immediately available in
Atlanta, Georgia, to the Administrative Agent at its address referred to in
Section 9.01. The Administrative Agent will promptly distribute to each Bank its
ratable share of each such payment received by the Administrative Agent for the
account of the Banks.
(b) Whenever any payment of principal of, or interest on, the Base Rate Loans or
the Money Market Loans or of fees shall be due on a day which is not a Domestic
Business Day, the date for payment thereof shall be extended to the next
succeeding Domestic Business Day. Whenever any payment of principal of, or
interest on, the Euro-Dollar Loans shall be due on a day which is not a
Euro-Dollar Business Day, the date for payment thereof shall be extended to the
next succeeding Euro-Dollar Business Day unless such Euro-Dollar Business Day
falls in another calendar month, in which case the date for payment thereof
shall be the next preceding Euro-Dollar Business Day. If the date for any
payment of principal is extended by operation of law or otherwise, interest

thereon shall be payable for such extended time.
(c) Subject to the immediately succeeding sentence, all payments of principal,
interest and fees and all other amounts to be made by the Borrower pursuant to
this Agreement with respect to any Loan or fee relating thereto shall be paid
without deduction for any tax, imposts, levies, duties, deductions, or
withholdings of any nature now or at anytime hereafter imposed by any
governmental authority or by any taxing authority thereof or therein excluding
in the case of each Bank, taxes imposed on or measured by its net or gross
income (in the nature of an income tax), and franchise taxes imposed on it, by
the jurisdiction under the laws of which such Bank is organized or by any
jurisdiction to which the Bank is subject to pay taxes for reasons other than
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any Loan Document or any
political subdivision thereof and, in the case of each Bank, taxes imposed on
its net or gross income (in the nature of an income tax), and franchise taxes
imposed on it, by the jurisdiction of such Bank's applicable Lending Office or
any political subdivision thereof or of any jurisdiction to which it is subject
to pay taxes for reasons other than the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement or any Loan Document (all such non-excluded taxes, imposts, levies,
duties, deductions or withholdings of any nature being "Taxes"). In the event
that the Borrower is required by applicable law to make any such withholding or
deduction of Taxes with respect to any Loan or fee or other amount, the Borrower
shall pay such deduction or withholding to the applicable taxing authority,
shall promptly furnish to any Bank in respect of which such deduction or
withholding is made all receipts and other documents evidencing such payment and
shall pay to such Bank additional amounts as may be necessary in order that the
amount received by such Bank after the required withholding or other payment
shall equal the amount such Bank would have received had no such withholding or
other payment been made.
In the event any Bank receives a refund of any Taxes paid by the
Borrower pursuant to this Section 2.12, it will pay to the Borrower the amount
of such refund promptly upon receipt thereof; provided, however, if at any time
thereafter it is required to return such refund, the Borrower shall promptly
repay to it the amount of such refund.
(d) Each Bank (or Assignee) that is organized under the laws of a
jurisdiction other than the United States, any State thereof or the District of
Columbia (a "Non-U.S. Bank") shall deliver to the Borrower and the
Administrative Agent two copies of either United States Internal Revenue Service
Form 1001 or Form 4224, or, in the case of a Non-U.S. Bank claiming exemption
from U.S. Federal withholding tax under Section 871(h) or 881(c) of the Code
with respect to payments of "portfolio interest," a Form W-8, or any subsequent
versions thereof or successors thereto (and, if such Non-U.S. Bank delivers a
Form W-8, a certificate representing that such Non-U.S. Bank is not a bank for
purposes of Section 881(c) of the Code, is not a 10-percent shareholder (within
the meaning of Section 871(h)(3)(B) of the Code) of the Borrower and is not a
controlled foreign corporation related to the Borrower (within the meaning of
Section 864(d)(4) of the Code)), properly completed and duly executed by such
Non-U.S. Bank claiming complete exemption from U.S. Federal withholding tax on
payments by the Borrower under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents. Such
forms shall be delivered by each Non-U.S. Bank on or before the date it becomes
a party to this Agreement and on or before the date, if any, such Non-U.S. Bank
changes its applicable Lending Office by designating a different Lending Office
(a "New Lending Office"). In addition, each Non-U.S. Bank shall deliver such
forms promptly upon the obsolescence or invalidity of any form previously
delivered by such Non-U.S. Bank. If as a result of a change in applicable law or
treaty a Non-U.S. Bank may not qualify for the exemptions as evidenced under the
foregoing forms, the relevant Non-U.S. Bank shall notify the Borrower thereof as
soon as it is aware thereof and the Borrower shall have the right to compel the
Non-U.S. Bank to sell, transfer and assign its Loans in accordance with Section
9.07(c) to a financial institution designated by the Borrower and reasonably
acceptable to the Administrative Agent, provided that the Borrower shall have
paid to such Non-U.S. Bank any amounts owed to it hereunder for the period prior
to such assignment. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 2.12(d),
subsequent to becoming a Bank hereunder, a Non-U.S. Bank shall not be required
to deliver any form pursuant to this Section 2.12(d) that such Non-U.S. Bank is
not legally able to deliver, but it cannot become a Bank hereunder initially
unless it supplies the relevant form.
(e) The Borrower shall not be required to indemnify any Non-U.S. Bank,
or to pay any additional amounts to any Non-U.S. Bank, in respect of United
States Federal withholding tax pursuant to paragraph (c) above to the extent
that (i) the obligation to withhold amounts with respect to United States
Federal withholding tax existed on the date such Non-U.S. Bank became a party to
this Agreement or, with respect to payments to a New Lending Office, the date
such Non-U.S. Bank designated such New Lending Office with respect to a Loan;
provided, however, that this paragraph (e) shall not apply (x) to any Assignee
or New Lending Office that becomes an Assignee or New Lending Office as a result
of an assignment, transfer or designation made at the written request of the
Borrower and (y) to the extent the indemnity payment or additional amounts any
Assignee, or any Bank (or Assignee) acting through a New Lending Office, would
be entitled to receive (without regard to this paragraph (e)) do not exceed the
indemnity payment or additional amounts that the Person making the assignment or
transfer to such Assignee, or Bank (or Assignee) making the designation of such
New Lending Office, would have been entitled to receive in the absence of such
assignment, transfer or designation or (ii) the obligation to pay such
additional amounts would not have arisen but for a failure by such Non-U.S. Bank
to comply with the provisions of paragraph (d) above.
(f) Without prejudice to the survival of any other agreement of the
Borrower hereunder, the agreements and obligations of the Borrower contained in
this Section 2.12 shall be applicable with respect to any Participant, Assignee
or other Transferee, and any calculations required by such provisions (i) shall
be made based upon the circumstances of such Participant, Assignee or other
Transferee, and (ii) constitute a continuing agreement and shall survive the

termination of this Agreement and the payment in full or cancellation of the
Notes.
SECTION 2.13. Computation of Interest and Fees. Interest on Base Rate Loans
shall be computed on the basis of a year of 360 days and paid for the actual
number of days elapsed (including the first day but excluding the last day).
Interest on Euro-Dollar Loans and Money Market Loans shall be computed on the
basis of a year of 360 days and paid for the actual number of days elapsed,
calculated as to each Interest Period from and including the first day thereof
to but excluding the last day thereof. Facility fees and any other fees payable
hereunder shall be computed on the basis of a year of 360 days and paid for the
actual number of days elapsed (including the first day but excluding the last
day).
ARTICLE III.
CONDITIONS
SECTION 3.01. Conditions to First Borrowing. The obligations of each Bank to
make a Loan on the occasion of the first Borrowing is subject to the
satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Section 3.02 and the following
additional conditions:
(a) receipt by the Administrative Agent from each of the parties hereto of (i) a
duly executed counterpart of this Agreement signed by such party or a facsimile
transmission stating that such party has duly executed a counterpart of this
Agreement and sent such counterpart to the Administrative Agent, (ii) a duly
executed counterpart of the Guaranty and the Indemnity, Subrogation and
Contribution Agreement signed by such party or a facsimile transmission stating
that such party has duly executed a counterpart of the Guaranty and the
Indemnity, Subrogation and Contribution Agreement and sent such counterpart to
the Administrative Agent, and (iii) a duly executed counterpart of the Pledge
Agreement signed by such party or a facsimile transmission stating that such
party has duly executed a counterpart of the Pledge Agreement and sent such
counterpart to the Administrative Agent (provided that if there are no Foreign
Significant Subsidiaries on the Closing Date and on the date of the first
Borrowing, the condition set forth in this clause (iii) shall not apply);
(b) receipt by the Administrative Agent of a duly executed Syndicated Note and
Money Market Note for the account of each Bank complying with the provisions of
Section 2.04;
(c) receipt by the Administrative Agent of an opinion (together with any
opinions of local counsel relied on therein) of Miller, Canfield, Paddock and
Stone, P.L.C., counsel for the Borrower and the Guarantors, dated as of the
Closing Date, substantially in the form of Exhibit C hereto;
(d) receipt by the Administrative Agent of an opinion of Womble Carlyle
Sandridge & Rice, PLLC, special counsel for the Administrative Agent, dated as
of the Closing Date, substantially in the form of Exhibit D hereto and covering
such additional matters relating to the transactions contemplated hereby as the
Administrative Agent may reasonably request;
(e) receipt by the Administrative Agent of a certificate (the "Closing
Certificate"), dated the date of the first Borrowing, substantially in the form
of Exhibit G hereto, signed by a principal financial officer of the Borrower to
the effect that (i) no Default has occurred and is continuing on the date of the
first Borrowing, and (ii) the representations and warranties of the Borrower
contained in Article IV and of each Guarantor contained in Section 9 of the
Guaranty are true in all material respects on and as of the date of the first
Borrowing;
(f) receipt by the Administrative Agent of all documents which the
Administrative Agent may reasonably request relating to the existence of the
Borrower and the Guarantors, the corporate authority for and the validity of
this Agreement, the Notes and the other Loan Documents, and any other matters
relevant hereto, all in form and substance satisfactory to the Administrative
Agent, including without limitation a certificate of incumbency of the Borrower
and each Guarantor (each an "Officer's Certificate"), signed by the Secretary or
an Assistant Secretary of the Borrower or such Guarantor, substantially in the
form of Exhibit H hereto, certifying as to the names, true signatures and
incumbency of the officer or officers of the Borrower or such Guarantor
authorized to execute and deliver the Loan Documents, and certified copies of
the following items: (i) the Borrower's and each Guarantor's Certificate of
Incorporation, (ii) the Borrower's and each Guarantor's Bylaws, (iii) a
certificate of the Secretary of State of the State of Michigan as to the good
standing of the Borrower as a Michigan corporation, (iv) a certificate from the
Secretary of State (or comparable official) of each jurisdiction in which any
Guarantor is organized as to the good standing and/or existence of such
Guarantor in such jurisdiction, and (v) the action taken by the Board of
Directors of the Borrower and each Guarantor authorizing the Borrower's and such
Guarantor's execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Notes and
the other Loan Documents to which the Borrower or such Guarantor is a party;
(g) receipt by the Administrative Agent of (i) the Pledged Shares, together with
stock powers executed by the Borrower in blank, and (ii) satisfactory evidence
that the Administrative Agent has a perfected, first-priority Lien in all of the
Pledged Shares and that the Pledged Shares are not encumbered by any other Lien
(provided that if there are no Foreign Significant Subsidiaries on the Closing
Date and on the date of the first Borrowing, the conditions set forth in this
paragraph (g) shall not apply);
(h) receipt by the Administrative Agent of evidence satisfactory to the
Administrative Agent that immediately upon funding of the initial Borrowing (i)
the Debt outstanding under the Existing Comerica Credit Agreement and the
Existing Wachovia Credit Agreement will be repaid in full, and (ii) the Existing

Comerica Credit Agreement and the Existing Wachovia Credit Agreement will each
be terminated;
(i) receipt by the Administrative Agent and the Lead Arranger of all fees and
expenses payable on the Closing Date pursuant to the Administrative Agent's
Letter Agreement; and
(j) receipt by the Administrative Agent of such other documents or items as the
Administrative Agent or its counsel may reasonably request.
SECTION 3.02.
Conditions to All Borrowings. The obligation of each Bank
to make a Loan on the occasion of each Borrowing (including the first
Borrowing) is subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions:
(a) either (i) receipt by the Administrative Agent of Notice of Borrowing as
required by Section 2.02 (if such Borrowing is a Syndicated Borrowing) or (ii)
compliance with the provisions of Section 2.03 (if such Borrowing is a Money
Market Borrowing);
(b) the fact that, immediately before and after such Borrowing, no Default shall
have occurred and be continuing;
(c) the fact that the representations and warranties of the Borrower contained
in Article IV of this Agreement shall be true on and as of the date of such
Borrowing in all material respects; and
(d) the fact that, immediately after such Borrowing (i) the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of the Syndicated Loans of each Bank will not
exceed the amount of its Commitment and (ii) the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the Loans will not exceed the aggregate amount of the Commitments of
all of the Banks as of such date.
Each Borrowing hereunder shall be deemed to be a representation and warranty by
the Borrower on the date of such Borrowing as to the truth and accuracy of the
facts specified in clauses (b), (c) and (d) of this Section; provided that such
Borrowing shall not be deemed to be such a representation and warranty to the
effect set forth in Section 4.04(b) as to any event, act or condition having a
Material Adverse Effect which has theretofore been disclosed in writing by the
Borrower to the Banks if the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Loans
immediately after such Borrowing will not exceed the aggregate outstanding
principal amount thereof immediately before such Borrowing.
ARTICLE IV.
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
The Borrower represents and warrants that:
SECTION 4.01. Corporate Existence and Power. The Borrower is a corporation duly
organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the
jurisdiction of its incorporation, is duly qualified to transact business in
every jurisdiction where, by the nature of its business, such qualification is
necessary, and has all corporate powers and all governmental licenses,
authorizations, consents and approvals required to carry on its business as now
conducted (except where the failure to be so qualified or to have such licenses,
authorizations, consents and approvals could not, alone or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect).
SECTION 4.02. Corporate and Governmental Authorization; No Contravention. The
execution, delivery and performance by the Borrower of this Agreement, the Notes
and the other Loan Documents (i) are within the Borrower's corporate powers,
(ii) have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action, (iii) require
no action by or in respect of, or filing with, any governmental body, agency or
official, (iv) do not contravene, or constitute a default under, any provision
of applicable law or regulation or of the certificate of incorporation or
by-laws of the Borrower or of any agreement, judgment, injunction, order, decree
or other instrument binding upon the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, and
(v) do not result in the creation or imposition of any Lien on any asset of the
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries.
SECTION 4.03. Binding Effect. This Agreement constitutes a valid and binding
agreement of the Borrower enforceable in accordance with its terms, and the
Notes and the other Loan Documents, when executed and delivered in accordance
with this Agreement, will constitute valid and binding obligations of the
Borrower enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, provided that
the enforceability hereof and thereof is subject in each case to general
principles of equity and to bankruptcy, insolvency and similar laws affecting
the enforcement of creditors' rights generally.
SECTION 4.04. Financial Information. The consolidated balance sheet of the
Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries as of April 24, 1999, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholders' equity and cash flows for the
Fiscal Year then ended, reported on by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, copies of
which have been delivered to each of the Banks, and the unaudited consolidated
financial statements of the Borrower for the interim period ended January 22,
2000, copies of which have been delivered to each of the Banks, fairly present,
in conformity with GAAP, the consolidated financial position of the Borrower and
its Consolidated Subsidiaries as of such dates and their consolidated results of
operations and cash flows for such periods stated.
(b) Since April 24, 1999, there has been no event, act, condition or occurrence
having a Material Adverse Effect.
SECTION 4.05. Litigation. There is no action, suit or proceeding pending, or to
the knowledge of the Borrower threatened, against or affecting the Borrower or
any of its Subsidiaries before any court or arbitrator or any governmental body,

agency or official which could have a Material Adverse Effect or which in any
manner draws into question the validity or enforceability of, or could impair
the ability of the Borrower or any Guarantor to perform its obligations under,
this Agreement, the Notes or any of the other Loan Documents.
SECTION 4.06. Compliance with ERISA. The Borrower and each member of the
Controlled Group have fulfilled their obligations under the minimum funding
standards of ERISA and the Code with respect to each Plan and are in compliance
in all material respects with the presently applicable provisions of ERISA and
the Code, and have not incurred any liability to the PBGC or a Plan under Title
IV of ERISA.
(b) Neither the Borrower nor any member of the Controlled Group is or ever has
been obligated to contribute to any Multiemployer Plan.
SECTION 4.07. Taxes. There have been filed on behalf of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries all Federal, state and local income, excise, property and other tax
returns which are required to be filed by them (or the Borrower or its
Subsidiary, as relevant, has a valid extension for the filing thereof) and all
taxes due pursuant to such returns or pursuant to any assessment received by or
on behalf of the Borrower or any Subsidiary have been paid. The charges,
accruals and reserves on the books of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries in
respect of taxes or other governmental charges are, in the opinion of the
Borrower, adequate. United States income tax returns of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries have been examined and closed through the Fiscal Year ended April
29, 1995.
SECTION 4.08. Subsidiaries. Each of the Borrower's Subsidiaries is a corporation
duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its
jurisdiction of incorporation, is duly qualified to transact business in every
jurisdiction where, by the nature of its business, such qualification is
necessary, and has all corporate powers and all governmental licenses,
authorizations, consents and approvals required to carry on its business as now
conducted (except where the failure to be so qualified or to have such licenses,
authorizations, consents and approvals could not, alone or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect). The Borrower has no
Subsidiaries except those Subsidiaries listed on Schedule 4.08, which accurately
sets forth each such Subsidiary's complete name and jurisdiction of
organization.
SECTION 4.09.
Not an Investment Company. Neither the Borrower nor any of
its Subsidiaries is an "investment company" within the meaning of the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.
SECTION 4.10. Public Utility Holding Company Act. Neither the Borrower nor any
of its Subsidiaries is a "holding company", or a "subsidiary company" of a
"holding company", or an "affiliate" of a "holding company" or of a "subsidiary
company" of a "holding company", as such terms are defined in the Public Utility
Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended.
SECTION 4.11. Ownership of Property; Liens. Each of the Borrower and its
Consolidated Subsidiaries has title to its properties sufficient for the conduct
of its business, and none of such property is subject to any Lien except as
permitted in Section 5.06.
SECTION 4.12. No Default. Neither the Borrower nor any of its Consolidated
Subsidiaries is in default under or with respect to any agreement, instrument or
undertaking to which it is a party or by which it or any of its property is
bound which could have or cause a Material Adverse Effect. No Default or Event
of Default has occurred and is continuing.
SECTION 4.13. Full Disclosure. All information heretofore furnished in writing,
taken as a whole, by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent or any Bank for
purposes of or in connection with this Agreement or any transaction contemplated
hereby is, and all such information hereafter furnished in writing, taken as a
whole, by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent or any Bank will be, true,
accurate and complete in every material respect or based on reasonable estimates
on the date as of which such information is stated or certified.
SECTION 4.14.

Environmental Matters.

(a) Neither the Borrower nor any Subsidiary is subject to any Environmental
Liability which could have or cause a Material Adverse Effect and neither the
Borrower nor any Subsidiary has been designated as a potentially responsible
party under CERCLA or under any state statute similar to CERCLA which could have
a Material Adverse Effect. Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.14, none of the
Properties has been identified on any current or proposed (i) National
Priorities List under 40 C.F.R. ss. 300, (ii) CERCLIS list or (iii) any list
arising from a state statute similar to CERCLA.
(b) No Hazardous Materials have been or are being used, produced, manufactured,
processed, treated, recycled, generated, stored, disposed of, managed or
otherwise handled at, or shipped or transported to or from the Properties or are
otherwise present at, on, in or under the Properties, or, to the best of the
knowledge of the Borrower, at or from any adjacent site or facility, except in
material compliance with all applicable Environmental Requirements.
(c) The Borrower, and each of its Subsidiaries and Affiliates, has
procured all material Environmental Authorizations necessary for the conduct of
its business, and is in material compliance with all Environmental Requirements
in connection with the operation of the Properties and the Borrower's, and each
of its Subsidiary's and Affiliate's, respective businesses.
SECTION 4.15. Compliance with Laws. The Borrower and each Subsidiary is in
compliance with all applicable laws, including, without limitation, all
Environmental Laws, except where any failure to comply with any such laws would

not, alone or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect.
SECTION 4.16. Capital Stock. All Capital Stock, debentures, bonds, notes and all
other securities of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries presently issued and
outstanding are validly and properly issued in accordance with all applicable
laws, including, but not limited to, the "Blue Sky" laws of all applicable
states and the federal securities laws. The issued shares of Capital Stock of
the Borrower's Wholly Owned Subsidiaries are owned by the Borrower free and
clear of any Lien or adverse claim. At least a majority of the issued shares of
capital stock of each of the Borrower's other Subsidiaries (other than Wholly
Owned Subsidiaries) is owned by the Borrower free and clear of any Lien or
adverse claim.
SECTION 4.17. Margin Stock. Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is
engaged principally, or as one of its important activities, in the business of
purchasing or carrying any Margin Stock, and no part of the proceeds of any Loan
will be used to purchase or carry any Margin Stock or to extend credit to others
for the purpose of purchasing or carrying any Margin Stock, or be used for any
purpose which violates, or which is inconsistent with, the provisions of
Regulation X.
SECTION 4.18. Insolvency. After giving effect to the execution and delivery of
the Loan Documents and the making of the Loans under this Agreement, the
Borrower will not be "insolvent," within the meaning of such term as used in
O.C.G.A. ss. 18-2-22 or as defined in ss. 101 of Title 11 of the United States
Code or Section 2 of the Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act, or any other
applicable state law pertaining to fraudulent transfers, as each may be amended
from time to time, or be unable to pay its debts generally as such debts become
due, or have an unreasonably small capital to engage in any business or
transaction, whether current or contemplated.
SECTION 4.19. Insurance. The Borrower will maintain, and will cause each of its
Subsidiaries to maintain (either in the name of the Borrower or in such
Subsidiary's own name), with financially sound and reputable insurance
companies, insurance on all its property in at least such amounts and against at
least such risks as are usually insured against in the same general area by
companies of established repute engaged in the same or similar business.
ARTICLE V.
COVENANTS
The Borrower agrees that, so long as any Bank has any Commitment
hereunder or any amount payable under any Note remains unpaid:
SECTION 5.01.

Information.

The Borrower will deliver to each of the Banks

(a) as soon as available and in any event within 90 days after the end of each
Fiscal Year, a consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower and its Consolidated
Subsidiaries as of the end of such Fiscal Year and the related consolidated
statements of income, shareholders' equity and cash flows for such Fiscal Year,
setting forth in each case in comparative form the figures for the previous
fiscal year, all certified by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP or other independent
public accountants of nationally recognized standing, with such certification to
be free of exceptions and qualifications not acceptable to the Required Banks;
(b) as soon as available and in any event within 45 days after the end of each
of the first 3 Fiscal Quarters of each Fiscal Year, a consolidated balance sheet
of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries as of the end of such Fiscal
Quarter and the related statement of income and statement of cash flows for such
Fiscal Quarter and for the portion of the Fiscal Year ended at the end of such
Fiscal Quarter, setting forth in each case in comparative form the figures for
the corresponding Fiscal Quarter and the corresponding portion of the previous
Fiscal Year, all certified (subject to normal year-end adjustments) as to
fairness of presentation, GAAP and consistency by the chief financial officer or
the chief accounting officer of the Borrower;
(c) simultaneously with the delivery of each set of financial statements
referred to in clauses (a) and (b) above, a certificate, substantially in a form
acceptable to the Administrative Agent (a "Compliance Certificate"), of the
chief financial officer or the chief accounting officer of the Borrower (i)
setting forth in reasonable detail the calculations required to establish
whether the Borrower was in compliance with the requirements of Sections 5.19
and 5.20 on the date of such financial statements and (ii) stating whether any
Default exists on the date of such certificate and, if any Default then exists,
setting forth the details thereof and the action which the Borrower is taking or
proposes to take with respect thereto;
(d) within 5 Domestic Business Days after the Borrower becomes aware of the
occurrence of any Default, a certificate of the chief financial officer or the
chief accounting officer of the Borrower setting forth the details thereof and
the action which the Borrower is taking or proposes to take with respect
thereto;
(e) promptly upon the mailing thereof to the shareholders of the Borrower
generally, copies of all financial statements, reports and proxy statements so
mailed;
(f) promptly upon the filing thereof, copies of all registration statements
(other than the exhibits thereto and any registration statements on Form S-8 or
its equivalent) and annual, quarterly or monthly reports which the Borrower
shall have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission;
(g) if and when the Borrower or any member of the Controlled Group (i) gives or
is required to give notice to the PBGC of any "reportable event" (as defined in

Section 4043 of ERISA) with respect to any Plan which might constitute grounds
for a termination of such Plan under Title IV of ERISA, or knows that the plan
administrator of any Plan has given or is required to give notice of any such
reportable event, a copy of the notice of such reportable event given or
required to be given to the PBGC; or (ii) receives notice from the PBGC under
Title IV of ERISA of an intent to terminate or appoint a trustee to administer
any Plan, a copy of such notice;
(h) if and when the Borrower or any member of the Controlled Group shall enter
into, contribute or be obligated to contribute to, terminate or incur any
withdrawal liability with respect to a Multiemployer Plan, prompt notice of such
occurrence (together with an explanation in reasonable detail of the
circumstances of such occurrence);
(i) promptly after the Borrower knows of the commencement thereof, notice of any
litigation or proceeding involving a claim against the Borrower and/or any
Subsidiary with a stated demand or claim for $5,000,000 or more in excess of
amounts covered in full by applicable insurance; and
(j) from time to time such additional information regarding the financial
position or business of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as the Administrative
Agent, at the request of any Bank, may reasonably request.
SECTION 5.02. Inspection of Property, Books and Records. The Borrower will (i)
keep, and will cause each Subsidiary to keep, proper books of record and account
in which full, true and correct entries in conformity with GAAP shall be made of
all dealings and transactions in relation to its business and activities; and
(ii) permit, and will cause each Subsidiary to permit, upon reasonable prior
notice, representatives of the Agent at its or the Banks' expense prior to the
occurrence of an Event of Default and at the Borrower's expense after the
occurrence of an Event of Default to visit and reasonably inspect any of their
respective properties, to reasonably examine and make abstracts from any of
their respective books and records and to discuss, within reason, their
respective affairs, finances and accounts with their respective officers,
employees and independent public accountants. The Borrower agrees to cooperate
and assist in such visits and inspections, in each case at such reasonable times
and as often as may reasonably be desired.
SECTION 5.03.
Restricted Payments. The Borrower will not declare or make
any Restricted Payment during any Fiscal Year unless, after giving effect
thereto, no Default shall have occurred and be continuing.
SECTION 5.04. Loans or Advances. Neither the Borrower nor any of its
Subsidiaries shall make loans or advances to any Person except: (i) loans or
advances to employees not exceeding Two Million and No/100 Dollars ($2,000,000)
in the aggregate outstanding made in the ordinary course of business and
consistently with practices existing on the closing date; (ii) deposits required
by government agencies or public utilities; (iii) loans or advances to any
Guarantor; (iv) loans in the form of deposits into checking and time accounts
with financial institutions whose credit is satisfactory to the Administrative
Agent; (v) loans and advances in the nature of trade credit in the ordinary
course of business; and (vi) loans or advances consisting of Investments
permitted under Section 5.05, provided that after giving effect to the making of
any loans, advances or deposits permitted by clause (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v)
or (vi) of this Section, no Default shall have occurred and be continuing.
SECTION 5.05. Investments. (a) Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries
shall make Investments in any Person except as permitted by Section 5.04 and
except Investments (i) in direct obligations of the United States Government
maturing within one year, (ii) in certificates of deposit issued by a commercial
bank whose credit is satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, (iii) in
commercial paper rated A-1 or the equivalent thereof by Standard & Poor's
Corporation or P-1 or the equivalent thereof by Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
and in either case maturing within 6 months after the date of acquisition, (iv)
in tender bonds the payment of the principal of and interest on which is fully
supported by a letter of credit issued by a United States bank whose long-term
certificates of deposit are rated at least AA or the equivalent thereof by
Standard & Poor's Corporation and Aa or the equivalent thereof by Moody's
Investors Service, Inc., (v) existing on the Closing Date, (vi) in any Guarantor
made after the Closing Date, (vii) constituting Permitted Acquisitions, and
(viii) in addition to those described in the foregoing clauses (i) through (vii)
in an aggregate amount not exceeding an amount equal to 7.5% of Consolidated
Tangible Net Worth.
(b) Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries shall consummate
any Acquisition except for Permitted Acquisitions.
SECTION 5.06.
Negative Pledge. Neither the Borrower nor any Consolidated
Subsidiary will create, assume or suffer to exist any Lien on any asset now
owned or hereafter acquired by it, except:
(a) Liens existing on the date of this Agreement securing Debt outstanding on
the date of this Agreement and identified on Schedule 5.06 hereto;
(b) any Lien existing on any asset of any corporation at the time such
corporation becomes a Consolidated Subsidiary and not created in contemplation
of such event;
(c) any Lien on any asset securing Debt incurred or assumed for the purpose of
financing all or any part of the cost of acquiring or constructing such asset,
provided that such Lien attaches to such asset concurrently with or within 18
months after the acquisition or completion of construction thereof (or on
replacements therefor, upon such replacements coming into existence);
(d) any Lien on any asset of any corporation existing at the time such
corporation is merged or consolidated with or into the Borrower or a

Consolidated Subsidiary and not created in contemplation of such event;
(e) any Lien existing on any asset prior to the acquisition thereof by the
Borrower or a Consolidated Subsidiary and not created in contemplation of such
acquisition;
(f) Liens securing Debt owing by any Subsidiary to the Borrower;
(g) any Lien arising out of the refinancing, extension, renewal or refunding of
any Debt secured by any Lien permitted by any of the foregoing clauses of this
Section, provided that (i) such Debt is not secured by any additional assets,
and (ii) the amount of such Debt secured by any such Lien is not increased;
(h) Liens incidental to the conduct of its business or the ownership of its
assets which (i) do not secure Debt and (ii) do not in the aggregate materially
detract from the value of its assets or materially impair the use thereof in the
operation of its business;
(i)

any Lien on Margin Stock;

(j)
Liens on Securitization Assets sold or transferred pursuant to a
Permitted Securitization;
(k) Liens arising on accounts receivable (and proceeds thereof) sold by
Subsidiaries of the Borrower to a factor pursuant to factoring arrangements
consistent with practices in existence on the Closing Date; and
(l) Liens not otherwise permitted by the foregoing clauses of this Section
securing Debt (other than indebtedness represented by the Notes) in an aggregate
principal amount at any time outstanding not to exceed 15% of Consolidated
Tangible Net Worth.
SECTION 5.07. Maintenance of Existence. The Borrower shall, and shall cause each
Subsidiary to, maintain its corporate existence and carry on its business in
substantially the same manner and in substantially the same fields as such
business is now carried on and maintained, except to the extent permitted by
Section 5.09.
SECTION 5.08. Dissolution. Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries
shall suffer or permit dissolution or liquidation either in whole or in part or
redeem or retire any shares of its own stock or that of any Subsidiary, except
through corporate reorganization to the extent permitted by Section 5.09.
SECTION 5.09. Consolidation, Mergers and Sales of Assets. The Borrower will not,
nor will it permit any Subsidiary to, consolidate or merge with or into, or
sell, lease or otherwise transfer all or any substantial part of its assets to,
any other Person, or discontinue or eliminate any business line or segment,
provided that (a) the Borrower may merge with another Person if (i) such Person
was organized under the laws of the United States of America or one of its
states, (ii) the Borrower is the corporation surviving such merger and (iii)
immediately after giving effect to such merger, no Default shall have occurred
and be continuing, (b) Subsidiaries of the Borrower may merge with one another,
and (c) the foregoing limitation on the sale, lease or other transfer of assets
and on the discontinuation or elimination of a business line or segment shall
not prohibit, during any Fiscal Quarter, a transfer of assets or the
discontinuance or elimination of a business line or segment (in a single
transaction or in a series of related transactions) unless the aggregate assets
to be so transferred or utilized in a business line or segment to be so
discontinued, when combined with all other assets transferred, and all other
assets utilized in all other business lines or segments discontinued, during
such Fiscal Quarter and the immediately preceding seven Fiscal Quarters, either
(x) constituted more than 10% of Consolidated Total Assets at the end of the
eighth Fiscal Quarter immediately preceding such Fiscal Quarter, or (y)
contributed more than 10% of Consolidated Operating Profits during the 8
consecutive Fiscal Quarters immediately preceding such Fiscal Quarter.
SECTION 5.10. Use of Proceeds. No portion of the proceeds of the Loans will be
used by the Borrower or any Subsidiary (i) in connection with, either directly
or indirectly, any tender offer for, or other acquisition of, stock of any
corporation with a view towards obtaining control of such other corporation
(other than a Permitted Acquisition), (ii) directly or indirectly, for the
purpose, whether immediate, incidental or ultimate, of purchasing or carrying
any Margin Stock, or (iii) for any purpose in violation of any applicable law or
regulation.
SECTION 5.11. Compliance with Laws; Payment of Taxes.The Borrower will, and will
cause each of its Subsidiaries and each member of the Controlled Group to,
materially comply with applicable laws (including but not limited to ERISA),
regulations and similar requirements of governmental authorities (including but
not limited to PBGC), except where the necessity of such compliance is being
contested in good faith through appropriate proceedings diligently pursued. The
Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, pay promptly when due
all taxes, assessments, governmental charges, claims for labor, supplies, rent
and other obligations which, if unpaid, might become a lien against the property
of the Borrower or any Subsidiary, except liabilities being contested in good
faith by appropriate proceedings diligently pursued and against which, if
requested by the Administrative Agent, the Borrower shall have set up reserves
in accordance with GAAP.
(b) The Borrower shall not permit the aggregate complete or partial withdrawal
liability under Title IV of ERISA with respect to Multiemployer Plans incurred
by the Borrower and members of the Controlled Group to exceed $2,000,000 at any
time. For purposes of this Section 5.11(b), the amount of withdrawal liability
of the Borrower and members of the Controlled Group at any date shall be the
aggregate present value of the amount claimed to have been incurred less any
portion thereof which the Borrower and members of the Controlled Group have paid

or as to which the Borrower reasonably believes, after appropriate consideration
of possible adjustments arising under Sections 4219 and 4221 of ERISA, it and
members of the Controlled Group will have no liability, provided that the
Borrower shall obtain prompt written advice from independent actuarial
consultants supporting such determination. The Borrower agrees (i) once in each
year, beginning with 2000, to request and obtain a current statement of the
withdrawal liability of the Borrower and members of the Controlled Group from
each Multiemployer Plan, if any, and (ii) to transmit a copy of such statement
to the Administrative Agent and the Banks within fifteen (15) days after the
Borrower receives the same.
SECTION 5.12. Insurance. The Borrower will maintain, and will cause each of its
Subsidiaries to maintain (either in the name of the Borrower or in such
Subsidiary's own name), with financially sound and reputable insurance
companies, insurance on all its Property in at least such amounts and against at
least such risks as are usually insured against in the same general area by
companies of established repute engaged in the same or similar business.
SECTION 5.13. Change in Fiscal Year. The Borrower will not change its
Fiscal Year without the consent of the Required Banks.
SECTION 5.14. Maintenance of Property. The Borrower shall, and shall cause each
Subsidiaries to, maintain all of its material properties and assets in good
condition, repair and working order consistent with past practices, ordinary
wear and tear excepted.
SECTION 5.15. Environmental Notices. The Borrower shall furnish to the Banks and
the Administrative Agent prompt written notice of each Environmental Liability
in an amount greater than (in the Borrower's reasonable opinion), or related
Environmental Liabilities aggregating an amount greater than (in the Borrower's
reasonable opinion), $2,000,000, and give prompt written notice of pending or
overtly threatened or (in the Borrower's reasonable opinion) anticipated
Environmental Proceedings, Environmental Notices, Environmental Judgments and
Orders, and Environmental Releases at, on, in, under or in any way affecting the
Properties, if such Environmental Proceedings, Environmental Notices,
Environmental Judgments and Orders or Environmental Releases are reasonably
expected by the Borrower to result in Environmental Liabilities in excess of
$2,000,000.
SECTION 5.16. Environmental Matters. The Borrower and its Subsidiaries will not,
and will not permit any Third Party (to the extent it has control over such
Third Party) to, use, produce, manufacture, process, treat, recycle, generate,
store, dispose of, manage at, or otherwise handle or ship or transport to or
from the Properties any Hazardous Materials except in material compliance with
all applicable Environmental Requirements.
SECTION 5.17. Environmental Release. The Borrower agrees that upon the
occurrence of an Environmental Release at or on any of the Properties it will
promptly investigate the extent of, and take appropriate remedial action to
eliminate, such Environmental Release, as legitimately required by any
Environmental Authority or Environmental Law.
SECTION 5.18. Transactions with Affiliates. Neither the Borrower nor any of its
Subsidiaries (with the Borrower and each of such Subsidiaries being referred to
as a "Bound Party" for purposes of this Section) shall enter into, or be a party
to, any transaction with any Affiliate of any Bound Party, except (i) as
permitted by law and in the ordinary course of business and pursuant to terms
which are no less favorable to the Bound Party than would be obtained in a
comparable arm's length transaction with a Person which is not an Affiliate, and
(ii) transactions entered into by a Bound Party with the Borrower or any
Guarantor (which transactions shall not be subject to this Section).
SECTION 5.19. Ratio of Consolidated Total Funded Debt to Consolidated Total
Capital. The Borrower shall maintain at all times a ratio of Consolidated Total
Funded Debt to Consolidated Total Capital of not more than 0.50 to 1.00.
SECTION 5.20. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio. At the end of each Fiscal Quarter,
commencing with the Fiscal Quarter ending April 29, 2000, the ratio of Income
Available for Fixed Charges for the period of 4 consecutive Fiscal Quarters then
ended to Consolidated Fixed Charges for the period of 4 consecutive Fiscal
Quarters then ended, shall be greater than 3.0 to 1.0.
SECTION 5.21. Significant Subsidiaries.
(a) The Borrower shall cause any Person which becomes a Domestic Significant
Subsidiary after the Closing Date to become a party to, and agree to be bound by
the terms of, the Guaranty and the Indemnity, Subrogation and Contribution
Agreement pursuant to an instrument in form and substance satisfactory to the
Administrative Agent executed and delivered to the Administrative Agent within
45 days after the last day of the Fiscal Quarter in which such Person becomes a
Domestic Subsidiary. The Borrower shall also cause the items specified in
Section 3.01(c) and (f) to be delivered to the Administrative Agent concurrently
with the instrument referred to above, modified appropriately to refer to such
instrument and such Domestic Significant Subsidiary.
(b) The Borrower shall, or shall cause any Subsidiary (the "Pledgor
Subsidiary") to, pledge 65% of the shares of capital stock owned by the Borrower
or such Pledgor Subsidiary in any Person which becomes a Foreign Significant
Subsidiary after the Closing Date pursuant to a pledge agreement in form and
substance substantially identical to the Pledge Agreement executed and delivered
by the Borrower or such Pledgor Subsidiary to the Administrative Agent within 45
days after the last day of the Fiscal Quarter in which such Person becomes a
Foreign Significant Subsidiary and shall deliver to the Administrative Agent
such shares of capital stock together with stock powers executed in blank. The
Borrower shall also cause the items specified in Section 3.01(c) and (f) to be
delivered to the Administrative Agent concurrently with such pledge agreement,

modified appropriately to refer to such pledge agreement and, if applicable, the
Pledgor Subsidiary.
(c) After the Closing Date, the Borrower may cause any Subsidiary that
is not a Domestic Significant Subsidiary to become a party to the Guaranty and
the Indemnity, Subrogation and Contribution Agreement in the manner described in
paragraph (a) of this Section (treating such Subsidiary as if it were a Domestic
Significant Subsidiary for purposes of such paragraph (a)).
(d) The Borrower may, or may cause any Subsidiary (which shall be a
Pledgor Subsidiary) to, pledge 65% of the shares of capital stock owned by the
Borrower or such Pledgor Subsidiary in any Subsidiary that is not a Foreign
Significant Subsidiary, in the manner described in paragraph (b) of this Section
(treating such Subsidiary as if it were a Foreign Significant Subsidiary for
purposes of such paragraph (b)).
SECTION 5.22. Limitation on Priority Debt. The Borrower shall not permit the
outstanding amount of Priority Debt to exceed, in the aggregate, more than 15%
of Consolidated Tangible Net Worth at any time.
SECTION 5.23. Permitted Securitization. The Borrower shall not, nor shall it
permit any of its Subsidiaries to, enter into any Securitization Documents other
than in connection with a Permitted Securitization (unless such Securitization
Documents have been approved by the Required Banks or are non-material
documentation entered into pursuant to such approved Securitization Documents)
or amend or modify in any material respect which is adverse to the Banks any of
such Securitization Documents unless such amendment or modification has been
approved by the Required Banks; provided, however, that if the Securitization
Documents, after giving effect to such amendment or modification, would
constitute a Permitted Securitization, then such approval of the Required Banks
shall not be required.
SECTION 5.24. No Restriction on Subsidiary Dividends. Neither the Borrower nor
any of its Subsidiaries will enter into any agreement which causes or permits to
exist or become effective any encumbrance or restriction on the ability of any
Subsidiary to pay dividends or make any other distributions on its capital stock
to the Borrower or any other Subsidiary.

ARTICLE VI.
DEFAULTS
SECTION 6.01.
Events of Default. If one or more of the following
("Events of Default") shall have occurred and be continuing:

events

(a) the Borrower shall fail to pay when due any principal of any Loan or shall
fail to pay any interest on any Loan within 5 Domestic Business Days after such
interest shall become due, or shall fail to pay any fee or other amount payable
hereunder within 5 Domestic Business Days after such fee or other amount becomes
due; or
(b) the Borrower shall fail to observe or perform any covenant contained in
Sections 5.01(c), 5.01(e), 5.02 to 5.13, inclusive, 5.16 or 5.18 to 5.24,
inclusive; or
(c) either (i) the Borrower shall fail to observe or perform any covenant,
restriction or agreement contained or incorporated by reference in this
Agreement (other than those covered by clause (a) or (b) above) or any other
Loan Document for 30 days after the earlier of (A) the first day on which the
Borrower has knowledge of such failure, or (B) written notice thereof has been
given to the Borrower by the Administrative Agent at the request of any Bank or
(ii) any Guarantor shall fail to observe or perform any covenant, restriction or
agreement contained in the Guaranty for 30 days after the earlier of (A) the
first day on which the Borrower or such Guarantor has knowledge of such failure
or (B) written notice thereof has been given to the Borrower by the
Administrative Agent at the request of any Bank ; or
(d) either (i) any warranty or representation made by the Borrower in this
Agreement or in any document, instrument or certificate delivered to the
Administrative Agent or any Bank in connection with this Agreement shall be
incorrect in any material respect when made or deemed made or (ii) any warranty
or representation made by any Guarantor in the Guaranty or in any document,
instrument or certificate delivered to the Administrative Agent or any Bank in
connection with the Guaranty shall be incorrect in any material respect when
made or deemed made; or
(e) the Borrower or any Subsidiary shall fail to make any payment in respect of
Debt outstanding (other than the Notes) in excess of $10,000,000 when due or
within any applicable grace period; or
(f) any event or condition shall occur which results in the acceleration of the
maturity of Debt outstanding in excess of $10,000,000 of the Borrower or any
Subsidiary or the mandatory prepayment or purchase of such Debt by the Borrower
(or its designee) or such Subsidiary (or its designee) prior to the scheduled
maturity thereof, or enables (or, with the giving of notice or lapse of time or
both, would enable) the holders of such Debt or any Person acting on such
holders' behalf to accelerate the maturity thereof or require the mandatory
prepayment or purchase thereof prior to the scheduled maturity thereof, without
regard to whether such holders or other Person shall have exercised or waived
their right to do so; or
(g) one or more judgments or orders for the payment of money in excess of
$10,000,000 in the aggregate shall be rendered or issued against the Borrower or
any Subsidiary and such judgment or order shall continue unsatisfied and

unstayed for a period of thirty (30) days; or
(h) a federal tax lien shall be filed against the Borrower or any Subsidiary
under Section 6323 of the Code or a lien of the PBGC shall be filed against the
Borrower or any Subsidiary under Section 4068 of ERISA and in either case such
lien shall remain undischarged for a period of 25 days after the date of filing;
or
(i) the Borrower or any Subsidiary shall commence a voluntary case or other
proceeding seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief with respect to
itself or its debts under any bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or
hereafter in effect or seeking the appointment of a trustee, receiver,
liquidator, custodian or other similar official of it or any substantial part of
its property, or shall consent to any such relief or to the appointment of or
taking possession by any such official in an involuntary case or other
proceeding commenced against it, or shall make a general assignment for the
benefit of creditors, or shall fail generally to pay its debts as they become
due, or shall take any action to authorize any of the foregoing; or
(j) an involuntary case or other proceeding shall be commenced against the
Borrower or any Subsidiary seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief
with respect to it or its debts under any bankruptcy, insolvency or other
similar law now or hereafter in effect or seeking the appointment of a trustee,
receiver, liquidator, custodian or other similar official of it or any
substantial part of its property, and such involuntary case or other proceeding
shall remain undismissed and unstayed for a period of sixty (60) days; or an
order for relief shall be entered against the Borrower or any Subsidiary under
the federal bankruptcy laws as now or hereafter in effect; or
(k) the occurrence of a Change of Ownership (as hereinafter defined) or the
Continuing Directors (as hereinafter defined) shall cease to constitute at least
a majority of the members of the Board of Directors of the Borrower; the term
"Change of Ownership" as used above shall mean any transaction or series of
transactions by or as a result of which any "person" or "group" of persons (as
said terms are defined in Section 13(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, as amended) shall subsequent to the date of this Agreement acquire,
directly or indirectly, beneficial ownership of twenty percent (20%) or more of
the outstanding voting stock of the Borrower (but treating any person owning
such stock as a trustee or as an executor or personal representative (or in a
similar capacity) for the estate of a decedent as a separate person for each
such trust or estate, as relevant) and the term "Continuing Directors" as used
above shall mean each member of the Board of Directors of the Borrower (i) who
was a member of such Board on the date of this Agreement, or (ii) who was
nominated or appointed to such Board by, or whose nomination or election to such
Board by the Borrower's stockholders was approved in writing by, at least
two-thirds of the members of the Borrower's Board of Directors who were
Continuing Directors at the time of such nomination, appointment or election by
virtue of clause (i) of this definition; or
(l) the Borrower or any member of the Controlled Group shall fail to pay when
due any material amount which it shall have become liable to pay to the PBGC or
to a Plan under Title IV of ERISA; or notice of intent to terminate a Plan or
Plans shall be filed under Title IV of ERISA by the Borrower, any member of the
Controlled Group, any plan administrator or any combination of the foregoing
which would result in liability on the part of the Borrower or any member of the
Controlled Group to a Plan or Plans in an amount in excess of $2,000,000; or the
PBGC shall institute proceedings under Title IV of ERISA to terminate or to
cause a trustee to be appointed to administer any such Plan or Plans or a
proceeding shall be instituted by a fiduciary of any such Plan or Plans to
enforce Section 515 or 4219(c)(5) of ERISA and such proceeding shall not have
been dismissed within 30 days thereafter; or a condition shall exist by reason
of which the PBGC would be entitled under Section 4042 of ERISA to obtain a
decree adjudicating that any such Plan or Plans must be terminated; or
(m) if any provision of the Guaranty shall for any reason cease to be valid and
binding on any Guarantor or any Guarantor shall deny or disaffirm its
obligations thereunder; then, and in every such event, the Administrative Agent
shall (i) if requested by the Required Banks, by notice to the Borrower
terminate the Commitments and they shall thereupon terminate, and (ii) if
requested by the Required Banks, by notice to the Borrower declare the Notes
(together with accrued interest thereon) and all other amounts payable hereunder
and under the other Loan Documents to be, and the Notes (together will all
accrued interest thereon) and all other amounts payable hereunder and under the
other Loan Documents shall thereupon become, immediately due and payable without
presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, all of which are
hereby waived by the Borrower; provided that if any Event of Default specified
in clause (i) or (j) above occurs with respect to the Borrower, without any
notice to the Borrower or any other act by the Administrative Agent or the
Banks, the Commitments shall thereupon automatically terminate and the Notes
(together with accrued interest thereon) and all other amounts payable hereunder
and under the other Loan Documents shall automatically become immediately due
and payable without presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind,
all of which are hereby waived by the Borrower. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the Administrative Agent shall have available to it all other remedies at law or
equity, and shall exercise any one or all of them at the request of the Required
Banks.
SECTION 6.02. Notice of Default. The Administrative Agent shall give notice to
the Borrower of any Default under Section 6.01(c) promptly upon being requested
to do so by any Bank and shall thereupon notify all the Banks thereof.
ARTICLE VII.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT
SECTION 7.01. Appointment, Powers and Immunities. Each Bank hereby irrevocably

appoints and authorizes the Administrative Agent to act as its agent hereunder
and under the other Loan Documents with such powers as are specifically
delegated to the Administrative Agent by the terms hereof and thereof, together
with such other powers as are reasonably incidental thereto. The Administrative
Agent: (a) shall have no duties or responsibilities except as expressly set
forth in this Agreement and the other Loan Documents, and shall not by reason of
this Agreement or any other Loan Document be a trustee for any Bank; (b) shall
not be responsible to the Banks for any recitals, statements, representations or
warranties contained in this Agreement or any other Loan Document, or in any
certificate or other document referred to or provided for in, or received by any
Bank under, this Agreement or any other Loan Document, or for the validity,
effectiveness, genuineness, enforceability or sufficiency of this Agreement or
any other Loan Document or any other document referred to or provided for herein
or therein or for any failure by the Borrower to perform any of its obligations
hereunder or thereunder; (c) shall not be required to initiate or conduct any
litigation or collection proceedings hereunder or under any other Loan Document
except to the extent requested by the Required Banks, and then only on terms and
conditions satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, and (d) shall not be
responsible for any action taken or omitted to be taken by it hereunder or under
any other Loan Document or any other document or instrument referred to or
provided for herein or therein or in connection herewith or therewith, except
for its own gross negligence or willful misconduct. The Administrative Agent may
employ agents and attorneys-in-fact and shall not be responsible for the
negligence or misconduct of any such agents or attorneys-in-fact selected by it
with reasonable care. The provisions of this Article VII are solely for the
benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Banks, and the Borrower shall not
have any rights as a third party beneficiary of any of the provisions hereof. In
performing its functions and duties under this Agreement and under the other
Loan Documents, the Administrative Agent shall act solely as agent of the Banks
and does not assume and shall not be deemed to have assumed any obligation
towards or relationship of agency or trust with or for the Borrower. The duties
of the Administrative Agent shall be ministerial and administrative in nature,
and the Administrative Agent shall not have by reason of this Agreement or any
other Loan Document a fiduciary relationship in respect of any Bank. The titles
of Syndication Agent and Documentation Agent are given in recognition of the
participation in this credit by the Syndication Agent and the Documentation
Agent and such titles shall not impose or imply any duties or responsibilities
whatsoever of the Syndication Agent or the Documentation Agent, and their
respective capacities as such, to the Borrower, the Guarantors, the
Administrative Agent or the Banks.
SECTION 7.02. Reliance by Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent shall
be entitled to rely upon any certification, notice or other communication
(including any thereof by telephone, telefax, telegram or cable) believed by it
to be genuine and correct and to have been signed or sent by or on behalf of the
proper Person or Persons, and upon advice and statements of legal counsel,
independent accountants or other experts selected by the Administrative Agent.
As to any matters not expressly provided for by this Agreement or any other Loan
Document, the Administrative Agent shall in all cases be fully protected in
acting, or in refraining from acting, hereunder and thereunder in accordance
with instructions signed by the Required Banks, and such instructions of the
Required Banks in any action taken or failure to act pursuant thereto shall be
binding on all of the Banks.
SECTION 7.03. Defaults. The Administrative Agent shall not be deemed to have
knowledge of the occurrence of a Default or an Event of Default (other than the
non-payment of principal of or interest on the Loans) unless the Administrative
Agent has received notice from a Bank or the Borrower specifying such Default or
Event of Default and stating that such notice is a "Notice of Default". In the
event that the Administrative Agent receives such a notice of the occurrence of
a Default or an Event of Default, the Administrative Agent shall give prompt
notice thereof to the Banks. The Administrative Agent shall (subject to Section
9.05) take such action with respect to such Default or Event of Default as shall
be directed by the Required Banks, provided that, unless and until the
Administrative Agent shall have received such directions, the Administrative
Agent may (but shall not be obligated to) take such action, or refrain from
taking such action, with respect to such Default or Event of Default as it shall
deem advisable in the best interests of the Banks.
SECTION 7.04. Rights of Administrative Agent and its Affiliates as a Bank. With
respect to any Loan made by Wachovia or an Affiliate of Wachovia, such Affiliate
and Wachovia in their capacity as a Bank hereunder shall have the same rights
and powers hereunder as any other Bank and may exercise the same as though it
were not an Affiliate of Wachovia (or in Wachovia's case, acting as the
Administrative Agent), and the term "Bank" or "Banks" shall, unless the context
otherwise indicates, include such Affiliate of Wachovia or Wachovia in its
individual capacity. Such Affiliate and Wachovia may (without having to account
therefor to any Bank) accept deposits from, lend money to and generally engage
in any kind of banking, trust or other business with the Borrower (and any of
its Affiliates) as if they were not an Affiliate of the Administrative Agent or
acting as the Administrative Agent, respectively; and such Affiliate and
Wachovia may accept fees and other consideration from the Borrower (in addition
to any agency fees and arrangement fees heretofore agreed to between the
Borrower and the Wachovia) for services in connection with this Agreement or any
other Loan Document or otherwise without having to account for the same to the
Banks.
SECTION 7.05. Indemnification. Each Bank severally agrees to indemnify the
Administrative Agent, to the extent the Administrative Agent shall not have been
reimbursed by the Borrower, ratably in accordance with its Commitment, for any
and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions,
judgments, suits, costs, expenses (including, without limitation, counsel fees
and disbursements) or disbursements of any kind and nature whatsoever which may
be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against the Administrative Agent in any
way relating to or arising out of this Agreement or any other Loan Document or
any other documents contemplated by or referred to herein or therein or the

transactions contemplated hereby or thereby (excluding, unless an Event of
Default has occurred and is continuing, the normal administrative costs and
expenses incident to the performance of its agency duties hereunder) or the
enforcement of any of the terms hereof or thereof or any such other documents;
provided, however, that no Bank shall be liable for any of the foregoing to the
extent they arise from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the
Administrative Agent. If any indemnity furnished to the Administrative Agent for
any purpose shall, in the opinion of the Administrative Agent, be insufficient
or become impaired, the Administrative Agent may call for additional indemnity
and cease, or not commence, to do the acts indemnified against until such
additional indemnity is furnished.
SECTION 7.06. CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. THE ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT SHALL NOT BE
RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE TO ANY BANK, THE BORROWER OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY
FOR ANY PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES WHICH MAY BE ALLEGED AS A
RESULT OF THIS AGREEMENT, THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS, OR ANY OF THE TRANSACTIONS
CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY.
SECTION 7.07. Payee of Note Treated as Owner. The Administrative Agent may deem
and treat the payee of any Note as the owner thereof for all purposes hereof
unless and until a written notice of the assignment or transfer thereof shall
have been filed with the Administrative Agent and the provisions of Section
9.07(c) have been satisfied. Any requests, authority or consent of any Person
who at the time of making such request or giving such authority or consent is
the holder of any Note shall be conclusive and binding on any subsequent holder,
transferee or assignee of that Note or of any Note or Notes issued in exchange
therefor or replacement thereof.
SECTION 7.08. Non-Reliance on Administrative Agent and Other Banks. Each Bank
agrees that it has, independently and without reliance on the Administrative
Agent or any other Bank, and based on such documents and information as it has
deemed appropriate, made its own credit analysis of the Borrower and decision to
enter into this Agreement and that it will, independently and without reliance
upon the Administrative Agent or any other Bank, and based on such documents and
information as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own
analysis and decisions in taking or not taking action under this Agreement or
any of the other Loan Documents. The Administrative Agent shall not be required
to keep itself (or any Bank) informed as to the performance or observance by the
Borrower of this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents or any other
document referred to or provided for herein or therein or to inspect the
properties or books of the Borrower or any other Person. Except for notices,
reports and other documents and information expressly required to be furnished
to the Banks by the Administrative Agent hereunder or under the other Loan
Documents, the Administrative Agent shall not have any duty or responsibility to
provide any Bank with any credit or other information concerning the affairs,
financial condition or business of the Borrower or any other Person (or any of
their Affiliates) which may come into the possession of the Administrative
Agent.
SECTION 7.09. Failure to Act. Except for action expressly required of the
Administrative Agent hereunder or under the other Loan Documents, the
Administrative Agent shall in all cases be fully justified in failing or
refusing to act hereunder and thereunder unless it shall receive further
assurances to its satisfaction by the Banks of their indemnification obligations
under Section 7.05 against any and all liability and expense which may be
incurred by the Administrative Agent by reason of taking, continuing to take, or
failing to take any such action.
SECTION 7.10. Resignation or Removal of Administrative Agent. Subject to the
appointment and acceptance of a successor Administrative Agent as provided
below, the Administrative Agent may resign at any time by giving notice thereof
to the Banks and the Borrower and the Administrative Agent may be removed at any
time with or without cause by the Required Banks. Upon any such resignation or
removal, the Required Banks shall have the right to appoint a successor
Administrative Agent. If no successor Administrative Agent shall have been so
appointed by the Required Banks and shall have accepted such appointment within
30 days after the retiring Administrative Agent's notice of resignation or the
Required Banks' removal of the retiring Administrative Agent, then the retiring
Administrative Agent may, on behalf of the Banks, appoint a successor
Administrative Agent. Any successor Administrative Agent shall be a bank which
has a combined capital and surplus of at least $500,000,000. Upon the acceptance
of any appointment as Administrative Agent hereunder by a successor
Administrative Agent, such successor Administrative Agent shall thereupon
succeed to and become vested with all the rights, powers, privileges and duties
of the retiring Administrative Agent, and the retiring Administrative Agent
shall be discharged from its duties and obligations hereunder. After any
retiring Administrative Agent's resignation or removal hereunder as
Administrative Agent, the provisions of this Article VII shall continue in
effect for its benefit in respect of any actions taken or omitted to be taken by
it while it was acting as the Administrative Agent hereunder.
ARTICLE VIII.
CHANGE IN CIRCUMSTANCES; COMPENSATION
SECTION 8.01.
Basis for Determining Interest Rate
If on or prior to the first day of any Interest Period:

Inadequate

or Unfair.

(a) the Administrative Agent determines that deposits in Dollars (in the
applicable amounts) are not being offered in the relevant market for such
Interest Period, or
(b) the Required Banks advise the Administrative Agent that the London Interbank
Offered Rate as determined by the Administrative Agent will not adequately and
fairly reflect the cost to such Banks of funding Euro-Dollar Loans for such
Interest Period,

the Administrative Agent shall forthwith give notice thereof to the Borrower and
the Banks, whereupon until the Administrative Agent notifies the Borrower that
the circumstances giving rise to such suspension no longer exist, the
obligations of the Banks to make Euro-Dollar Loans shall be suspended. Unless
the Borrower notifies the Administrative Agent at least 2 Domestic Business Days
before the date of any Borrowing of Euro-Dollar Loans for which a Notice of
Borrowing has previously been given that it elects not to borrow on such date,
such Borrowing shall instead be made as a Base Rate Borrowing.
SECTION 8.02. Illegality. If, after the date hereof, the adoption of any
applicable law, rule or regulation, or any change in any existing or future law,
rule or regulation, or any change in the interpretation or administration
thereof by any governmental authority, central bank or comparable agency charged
with the interpretation or administration thereof (any such authority, bank or
agency being referred to as an "Authority" and any such event being referred to
as a "Change of Law"), or compliance by any Bank (or its Lending Office) with
any request or directive (whether or not having the force of law) of any
Authority shall make it unlawful or impossible for any Bank (or its Lending
Office) to make, maintain or fund its Euro-Dollar Loans and such Bank shall so
notify the Administrative Agent, the Administrative Agent shall forthwith give
notice thereof to the other Banks and the Borrower, whereupon until such Bank
notifies the Borrower and the Administrative Agent that the circumstances giving
rise to such suspension no longer exist, the obligation of such Bank to make
Euro-Dollar Loans shall be suspended. Before giving any notice to the
Administrative Agent pursuant to this Section, such Bank shall designate a
different Lending Office if such designation will avoid the need for giving such
notice and will not, in the judgment of such Bank, be otherwise disadvantageous
to such Bank. If such Bank shall determine that it may not lawfully continue to
maintain and fund any of its outstanding Euro-Dollar Loans to maturity and shall
so specify in such notice, the Borrower shall immediately prepay in full the
then outstanding principal amount of each Euro-Dollar Loan of such Bank,
together with accrued interest thereon and any amount due such Bank pursuant to
Section 8.05(a). Concurrently with prepaying each such Euro-Dollar Loan, the
Borrower shall borrow a Base Rate Loan in an equal principal amount from such
Bank (on which interest and principal shall be payable contemporaneously with
the related Euro-Dollar Loans of the other Banks), and such Bank shall make such
a Base Rate Loan.
SECTION 8.03.

Increased Cost and Reduced Return.

(a) If after the date hereof, a Change of Law or compliance by any Bank (or its
Lending Office) with any request or directive (whether or not having the force
of law) of any Authority:
(i)

shall subject any Bank (or its Lending Office) to any tax, duty or
other charge with respect to its Euro-Dollar Loans, its Note or its
obligation to make Euro-Dollar Loans, or shall change the basis of
taxation of payments to any Bank (or its Lending Office) of the
principal of or interest on its Euro-Dollar Loans or any other amounts
due under this Agreement in respect of its Euro-Dollar Loans or its
obligation to make Euro-Dollar Loans (except for changes in the rate of
tax on the overall net income of such Bank or its Lending Office
imposed by the jurisdiction in which such Bank's principal executive
office or Lending Office is located); or

(ii)

shall impose, modify or deem applicable any reserve, special deposit or
similar requirement (including, without limitation, any such
requirement imposed by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, but excluding with respect to any Euro-Dollar Loan any such
requirement included in an applicable Euro-Dollar Reserve Percentage)
against assets of, deposits with or for the account of, or credit
extended by, any Bank (or its Lending Office); or

(iii)

shall impose on any Bank (or its Lending Office) or on the United
States market for London interbank market any other condition affecting
its Euro-Dollar Loans, its Note or its obligation to make Euro-Dollar
Loans;

and the result of any of the foregoing is to increase the cost to such Bank (or
its Lending Office) of making or maintaining any Euro-Dollar Loan, or to reduce
the amount of any sum received or receivable by such Bank (or its Lending
Office) under this Agreement or under its Note with respect thereto, by an
amount deemed by such Bank to be material, then, within 15 days after demand by
such Bank (with a copy to the Administrative Agent), the Borrower shall pay to
such Bank such additional amount or amounts as will compensate such Bank for
such increased cost or reduction; provided that the Borrower shall not be
required to compensate a Bank pursuant to this paragraph for any amounts
incurred more than 3 months prior to the date such Bank notifies the Borrower of
such Bank's intention to claim compensation therefor; and provided further that,
if the circumstances giving rise to such claim have a retroactive effect, then
such 3 month period shall be extended to include the period of such retroactive
effect.
(b) If any Bank shall have determined that after the date hereof the adoption of
any applicable law, rule or regulation regarding capital adequacy, or any change
in any existing or future law, rule or regulation, or any change in the
interpretation or administration thereof, or compliance by any Bank (or its
Lending Office) with any request or directive regarding capital adequacy
(whether or not having the force of law) of any Authority, has or would have the
effect of reducing the rate of return on such Bank's capital as a consequence of
its obligations hereunder to a level below that which such Bank could have
achieved but for such adoption, change or compliance (taking into consideration
such Bank's policies with respect to capital adequacy) by an amount deemed by
such Bank to be material, then from time to time, within 15 days after demand by
such Bank, the Borrower shall pay to such Bank such additional amount or amounts

as will compensate such Bank for such reduction; provided that the Borrower
shall not be required to compensate a Bank pursuant to this paragraph for any
amounts incurred more than 3 months prior to the date such Bank notifies the
Borrower of such Bank's intention to claim compensation therefor; and provided
further that, if the circumstances giving rise to such claim have a retroactive
effect, then such 3 month period shall be extended to include the period of such
retroactive effect.
(c) Each Bank will promptly notify the Borrower and the Administrative Agent of
any event of which it has knowledge, occurring after the date hereof, which will
entitle such Bank to compensation pursuant to this Section and will designate a
different Lending Office if such designation will avoid the need for, or reduce
the amount of, such compensation and will not, in the judgment of such Bank, be
otherwise disadvantageous to such Bank. A certificate of any Bank claiming
compensation under this Section and setting forth the additional amount or
amounts to be paid to it hereunder shall be conclusive in the absence of
manifest error. In determining such amount, such Bank may use any reasonable
averaging and attribution methods.
(d) The provisions of this Section 8.03 shall be applicable with respect to any
Participant, Assignee or other Transferee, and any calculations required by such
provisions shall be made based upon the circumstances of such Participant,
Assignee or other Transferee.
SECTION 8.04. Base Rate Loans Substituted for Euro-Dollar Loans. If (i) the
obligation of any Bank to make or maintain Euro-Dollar Loans has been suspended
pursuant to Section 8.02 or (ii) any Bank has demanded compensation under
Section 8.03, and the Borrower shall, by at least 5 Euro-Dollar Business Days'
prior notice to such Bank through the Administrative Agent, have elected that
the provisions of this Section shall apply to such Bank, then, unless and until
such Bank notifies the Borrower that the circumstances giving rise to such
suspension or demand for compensation no longer apply, all Loans which would
otherwise be made by such Bank as Euro-Dollar Loans shall be made instead as
Base Rate Loans.
In the event that the Borrower shall elect that the provisions of this Section
shall apply to any Bank, the Borrower shall remain liable for, and shall pay to
such Bank as provided herein, all amounts due such Bank under Section 8.03 in
respect of the period preceding the date of conversion of such Bank's Loans
resulting from the Borrower's election.
SECTION 8.05. Compensation. Upon the request of any Bank, delivered to the
Borrower and the Administrative Agent, the Borrower shall pay to such Bank such
amount or amounts as shall compensate such Bank for any loss, cost or expense
incurred by such Bank as a result of:
(a) any payment or prepayment (pursuant to Section 2.08, Section 2.09, Section
8.02 or otherwise) of a Euro-Dollar Loan or a Money Market Loan on a date other
than the last day of an Interest Period for such Euro-Dollar Loan or Money
Market Loan;
(b) any failure by the Borrower to prepay a Euro-Dollar Loan on the date for
such prepayment specified in the relevant notice of prepayment hereunder;
(c) any failure by the Borrower to borrow a Euro-Dollar Loan or a Money Market
Loan on the date for the Euro-Dollar Borrowing of which such Euro-Dollar Loan is
a part specified in the applicable Notice of Borrowing delivered pursuant to
Section 2.02; or
(d) any failure by the Borrower to borrow a Money Market Loan (with respect to
which the Borrower has accepted a Money Market Quote) on the date for the Money
Market Borrowing of which such Money Market Loan is a part specified in the
applicable Money Market Quote Request delivered pursuant to Section 2.03;
such compensation to include, without limitation, an amount equal to the excess,
if any, of (x) the amount of interest which would have accrued on the amount so
paid or prepaid or not prepaid or borrowed for the period from the date of such
payment, prepayment or failure to prepay or borrow to the last day of the then
current Interest Period for such Euro-Dollar Loan (or, in the case of a failure
to prepay or borrow, the Interest Period for such Euro-Dollar Loan which would
have commenced on the date of such failure to prepay or borrow) at the
applicable rate of interest for such Euro-Dollar Loan provided for herein over
(y) the amount of interest (as reasonably determined by such Bank) such Bank
would have paid on deposits in Dollars of comparable amounts having terms
comparable to such period placed with it by leading banks in the London
interbank market.
ARTICLE IX.
MISCELLANEOUS
SECTION 9.01. Notices. All notices, requests and other communications to any
party hereunder shall be in writing (including facsimile transmission or similar
writing) and shall be given to such party at its address or telecopy number set
forth on the signature pages hereof or such other address or telecopy number as
such party may hereafter specify for the purpose by notice to each other party.
Each such notice, request or other communication shall be effective (i) if given
by telecopier, when such telecopy is transmitted to the telecopy number
specified in this Section and the telecopy machine used by the sender provides a
written confirmation that such telecopy has been so transmitted or receipt of
such telecopy transmission is otherwise confirmed, (ii) if given by mail, 72
hours after such communication is deposited in the mails with first class
postage prepaid, addressed as aforesaid, and (iii) if given by any other means,
when delivered at the address specified in this Section; provided that notices
to the Administrative Agent under Article II or Article VIII shall not be
effective until received.

SECTION 9.02. No Waivers. No failure or delay by the Administrative Agent or any
Bank in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder or under any Note or
other Loan Document shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or
partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the
exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein
provided shall be cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies
provided by law.

SECTION 9.03.

Expenses; Documentary Taxes; Indemnification.

(a) The Borrower shall pay (i) all out-of-pocket expenses of the Administrative
Agent, including fees and disbursements of special counsel for the
Administrative Agent, in connection with the preparation of this Agreement and
the other Loan Documents, any waiver or consent hereunder or thereunder or any
amendment hereof or thereof or any Default hereunder or thereunder and (ii) if a
Default occurs, all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the
Administrative Agent or any Bank, including fees and disbursements of counsel,
in connection with such Default and collection and other enforcement proceedings
resulting therefrom, including out-of-pocket expenses incurred in enforcing this
Agreement and the other Loan Documents.
(b) The Borrower shall indemnify the Administrative Agent and each Bank against
any transfer taxes, documentary taxes, assessments or charges made by any
Authority by reason of the execution and delivery of this Agreement or the other
Loan Documents.
(c) The Borrower shall indemnify the Administrative Agent, the Banks and each
Affiliate thereof and their respective directors, officers, employees and
Administrative Agents from, and hold each of them harmless against, any and all
losses, liabilities, claims or damages to which any of them may become subject,
insofar as such losses, liabilities, claims or damages arise out of or result
from any actual or proposed use by the Borrower of the proceeds of any extension
of credit by any Bank hereunder or breach by the Borrower of this Agreement or
any other Loan Document or from investigation, litigation (including, without
limitation, any actions taken by the Administrative Agent or any of the Banks to
enforce this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents) or other proceeding
(including, without limitation, any threatened investigation or proceeding)
relating to the foregoing, and the Borrower shall reimburse the Administrative
Agent and each Bank, and each Affiliate thereof and their respective directors,
officers, employees and agents, upon demand for any expenses (including, without
limitation, legal fees) incurred in connection with any such investigation or
proceeding; but excluding any such losses, liabilities, claims, damages or
expenses incurred by reason of the gross negligence or misconduct of the Person
to be indemnified.
SECTION 9.04.

Setoffs; Sharing of Set-Offs.

(a) The Borrower hereby grants to each Bank, as security for the full and
punctual payment and performance of the obligations of the Borrower under this
Agreement, a continuing lien on and security interest in all deposits and other
sums credited by or due from such Bank to the Borrower or subject to withdrawal
by the Borrower; and regardless of the adequacy of any collateral or other means
of obtaining repayment of such obligations, each Bank may at any time upon or
after the occurrence of any Event of Default, and without notice to the
Borrower, set off the whole or any portion or portions of any or all such
deposits and other sums against such obligations, whether or not any other
Person or Persons could also withdraw money therefrom.
(b) Each Bank agrees that if it shall, by exercising any right of set-off or
counterclaim or otherwise, receive payment of a proportion of the aggregate
amount of principal and interest owing with respect to the Syndicated Note held
by it which is greater than the proportion received by any other Bank in respect
of the aggregate amount of all principal and interest owing with respect to the
Syndicated Note held by such other Bank, the Bank receiving such proportionately
greater payment shall purchase such participations in the Syndicated Note held
by the other Banks owing to such other Banks, and/or such other adjustments
shall be made, as may be required so that all such payments of principal and
interest with respect to the Syndicated Note held by the Banks owing to such
other Banks shall be shared by the Banks pro rata; provided that (i) nothing in
this Section shall impair the right of any Bank to exercise any right of set-off
or counterclaim it may have and to apply the amount subject to such exercise to
the payment of indebtedness (including, without limitation, Money Market Loans)
of the Borrower other than its indebtedness under the Syndicated Notes, and (ii)
if all or any portion of such payment received by the purchasing Bank is
thereafter recovered from such purchasing Bank, such purchase from each other
Bank shall be rescinded and such other Bank shall repay to the purchasing Bank
the purchase price of such participation to the extent of such recovery together
with an amount equal to such other Bank's ratable share (according to the
proportion of (x) the amount of such other Bank's required repayment to (y) the
total amount so recovered from the purchasing Bank) of any interest or other
amount paid or payable by the purchasing Bank in respect of the total amount so
recovered. The Borrower agrees, to the fullest extent it may effectively do so
under applicable law, that any holder of a participation in a Syndicated Note,
whether or not acquired pursuant to the foregoing arrangements, may exercise
rights of set-off or counterclaim and other rights with respect to such
participation as fully as if such holder of a participation were a direct
creditor of the Borrower in the amount of such participation.
SECTION 9.05.

Amendments and Waivers.

(a) Any provision of this Agreement, the Notes or any other Loan Documents may
be amended or waived if, but only if, such amendment or waiver is in writing and

is signed by the Borrower and the Required Banks (and, if the rights or duties
of the Administrative Agent are affected thereby, by the Administrative Agent);
provided that no such amendment or waiver shall, unless signed by all the Banks,
(i) change the Commitment of any Bank or subject any Bank to any additional
obligation, (ii) change the principal of or reduce the rate of interest on any
Loan or reduce any fees hereunder, (iii) change the date fixed for any payment
of principal of or interest on any Loan or any fees hereunder, (iv) change the
amount of principal or reduce the amount of interest or fees due on any date
fixed for the payment thereof, (v) change the percentage of the Commitments or
of the aggregate unpaid principal amount of the Notes, or the percentage of
Banks, which shall be required for the Banks or any of them to take any action
under this Section or any other provision of this Agreement, (vi) change the
manner of application of any payments made under this Agreement or the Notes,
(vii) release or substitute all or any substantial part of the collateral (if
any) held as security for the Loans, or (viii) release any guaranty given to
support payment of the Loans.
(b) The Borrower will not solicit, request or negotiate for or with respect to
any proposed waiver or amendment of any of the provisions of this Agreement
unless each Bank shall be informed thereof by the Borrower and shall be afforded
an opportunity of considering the same and shall be supplied by the Borrower
with sufficient information to enable it to make an informed decision with
respect thereto. Executed or true and correct copies of any waiver or consent
effected pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement shall be delivered by the
Borrower to each Bank forthwith following the date on which the same shall have
been executed and delivered by the requisite percentage of Banks. The Borrower
will not, directly or indirectly, pay or cause to be paid any remuneration,
whether by way of supplemental or additional interest, fee or otherwise, to any
Bank (in its capacity as such) as consideration for or as an inducement to the
entering into by such Bank of any waiver or amendment of any of the terms and
provisions of this Agreement unless such remuneration is concurrently paid, on
the same terms, ratably to all Banks approving such waiver or amendment.
SECTION 9.06. Margin Stock Collateral. Each of the Banks represents to the
Administrative Agent and each of the other Banks that it in good faith is not,
directly or indirectly (by negative pledge or otherwise), relying upon any
margin stock (as defined in Section 4.14) as collateral in the extension or
maintenance of the credit provided for in this Agreement.
SECTION 9.07.

Successors and Assigns.

(a) The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns;
provided that the Borrower may not assign or otherwise transfer any of its
rights under this Agreement.
(b) Any Bank may at any time sell to one or more Persons (each a "Participant")
participating interests in any Loan owing to such Bank, any Note held by such
Bank, any Commitment hereunder or any other interest of such Bank hereunder. In
the event of any such sale by a Bank of a participating interest to a
Participant, such Bank's obligations under this Agreement shall remain
unchanged, such Bank shall remain solely responsible for the performance
thereof, such Bank shall remain the holder of any such Note for all purposes
under this Agreement, and the Borrower and the Administrative Agent shall
continue to deal solely and directly with such Bank in connection with such
Bank's rights and obligations under this Agreement. In no event shall a Bank
that sells a participation be obligated to the Participant to take or refrain
from taking any action hereunder except that such Bank may agree that it will
not (except as provided below), without the consent of the Participant, agree to
(i) the change of any date fixed for the payment of principal of or interest on
the related Loan or Loans, (ii) the change of the amount of any principal, or
the reduction in the amount of interest or fees due on any date fixed for the
payment thereof with respect to the related Loan or Loans, (iii) the change of
the principal of the related Loan or Loans, or (iv) any reduction in the rate at
which either interest is payable thereon or (if the Participant is entitled to
any part thereof) commitment fee is payable hereunder from the rate at which the
Participant is entitled to receive interest or commitment fee (as the case may
be) in respect of such participation. Each Bank selling a participating interest
in any Loan, Note, Commitment or other interest under this Agreement shall,
within 10 Domestic Business Days of such sale, provide the Borrower and the
Administrative Agent with written notification stating that such sale has
occurred and identifying the Participant and the interest purchased by such
Participant. The Borrower agrees that each Participant shall be entitled to the
benefits of Article VIII with respect to its participation in Loans outstanding
from time to time.
(c) Any Bank may at any time assign to one or more banks or financial
institutions (each an "Assignee") all, or a proportionate part of all, of its
rights and obligations under this Agreement, the Notes and the other Loan
Documents, and such Assignee shall assume all such rights and obligations,
pursuant to an Assignment and Acceptance in the form attached hereto as Exhibit
F, executed by such Assignee, such transferor Bank and the Administrative Agent
(and, in the case of: (i) an Assignee that is not then a Bank or an Affiliate of
a Bank; and (ii) an assignment not made during the existence of a Default, by
the Borrower); provided that (i) no interest may be sold by a Bank pursuant to
this paragraph (c) unless the Assignee shall agree to assume ratably equivalent
portions of the transferor Bank's Commitment; (ii) the amount of the Commitment
of the assigning Bank being assigned pursuant to such assignment (determined as
of the effective date of the assignment) shall be equal to $5,000,000 (or any
larger multiple of $5,000,000); (iii) no interest may be sold by a Bank pursuant
to this paragraph (c) to any Assignee that is not then a Bank or an Affiliate of
a Bank without the consent of the Borrower, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, provided that the Borrower's consent shall not be
necessary with respect to any assignment made during the existence of a Default;
and (iv) no interest may be sold by a Bank pursuant to this paragraph (c) to any
Assignee that is not then a Bank or an Affiliate of a Bank, without the consent

of the Administrative Agent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
provided, that although the Administrative Agent's consent may not be necessary
with respect to an Assignee that is then a Bank or an Affiliate of a Bank, no
such assignment shall be effective until the conditions set forth in the
following sentence are satisfied. Upon (A) execution of the Assignment and
Acceptance by such transferor Bank, such Assignee, the Administrative Agent and
(if applicable) the Borrower, (B) delivery of an executed copy of the Assignment
and Acceptance to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent, (C) payment by such
Assignee to such transferor Bank of an amount equal to the purchase price agreed
between such transferor Bank and such Assignee, and (D) payment by the assigning
Bank of a processing and recordation fee of $3,500 to the Administrative Agent
(unless the Assignee is a Bank, or an Affiliate of a Bank, party to this
Agreement prior to giving effect to such assignment, in which case the fee shall
be $1,000), such Assignee shall for all purposes be a Bank party to this
Agreement and shall have all the rights and obligations of a Bank under this
Agreement to the same extent as if it were an original party hereto with a
Commitment as set forth in such instrument of assumption, and the transferor
Bank shall be released from its obligations hereunder to a corresponding extent,
and no further consent or action by the Borrower, the Banks or the
Administrative Agent shall be required. Upon the consummation of any transfer to
an Assignee pursuant to this paragraph (c), the transferor Bank, the
Administrative Agent and the Borrower shall make appropriate arrangements so
that, if required, a new Note is issued to each of such Assignee and such
transferor Bank.
(d) Subject to the provisions of Section 9.08, the Borrower authorizes each Bank
to disclose to any Participant, Assignee or other transferee (each a
"Transferee") and any prospective Transferee any and all financial and other
information in such Bank's possession concerning the Borrower which has been
delivered to such Bank by the Borrower pursuant to this Agreement or which has
been delivered to such Bank by the Borrower in connection with such Bank's
credit evaluation prior to entering into this Agreement.
(e) No Transferee shall be entitled to receive any greater payment under Section
8.03 than the transferor Bank would have been entitled to receive with respect
to the rights transferred, unless such transfer is made with the Borrower's
prior written consent or by reason of the provisions of Section 8.02 or 8.03
requiring such Bank to designate a different Lending Office under certain
circumstances or at a time when the circumstances giving rise to such greater
payment did not exist.
(f) Anything in this Section 9.07 to the contrary notwithstanding, any Bank may
assign and pledge all or any portion of the Loans and/or obligations owing to it
to any Federal Reserve Bank or the United States Treasury as collateral security
pursuant to Regulation A of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System
and Operating Circular issued by such Federal Reserve Bank, provided that any
payment in respect of such assigned Loans and/or obligations made by the
Borrower to the assigning and/or pledging Bank in accordance with the terms of
this Agreement shall satisfy the Borrower's obligations hereunder in respect of
such assigned Loans and/or obligations to the extent of such payment. No such
assignment shall release the assigning and/or pledging Bank from its obligations
hereunder.
SECTION 9.08. Confidentiality. Each Bank agrees to exercise its best efforts to
keep any information delivered or made available by the Borrower to it which is
clearly indicated to be confidential information, confidential from anyone other
than persons employed or retained by such Bank who are or are expected to become
engaged in evaluating, approving, structuring or administering the Loans;
provided, however, that nothing herein shall prevent any Bank from disclosing
such information (i) to any other Bank, (ii) upon the order of any court or
administrative agency, (iii) upon the request or demand of any regulatory agency
or authority having jurisdiction over such Bank, (iv) which has been publicly
disclosed, (v) to the extent reasonably required in connection with any
litigation to which the Administrative Agent, any Bank or their respective
Affiliates may be a party, (vi) to the extent reasonably required in connection
with the exercise of any remedy hereunder, (vii) to such Bank's legal counsel
and independent auditors and (viii) to any actual or proposed Participant,
Assignee or other Transferee of all or part of its rights hereunder which has
agreed in writing to be bound by the provisions of this Section 9.08.
SECTION 9.09. Representation by Banks. Each Bank hereby represents that it is a
commercial lender or financial institution which makes loans in the ordinary
course of its business and that it will make its Loans hereunder for its own
account in the ordinary course of such business; provided, however, that,
subject to Section 9.07, the disposition of the Note or Notes held by that Bank
shall at all times be within its exclusive control.
SECTION 9.10. Obligations Several. The obligations of each Bank hereunder are
several, and no Bank shall be responsible for the obligations or commitment of
any other Bank hereunder. Nothing contained in this Agreement and no action
taken by the Banks pursuant hereto shall be deemed to constitute the Banks to be
a partnership, an association, a joint venture or any other kind of entity. The
amounts payable at any time hereunder to each Bank shall be a separate and
independent debt, and each Bank shall be entitled to protect and enforce its
rights arising out of this Agreement or any other Loan Document and it shall not
be necessary for any other Bank to be joined as an additional party in any
proceeding for such purpose.
SECTION 9.11. Survival of Certain Obligations. Sections 8.03(a), 8.03(b), 8.05
and 9.03, and the obligations of the Borrower thereunder, shall survive, and
shall continue to be enforceable notwithstanding, the termination of this
Agreement and the Commitments and the payment in full of the principal of and
interest on all Loans.
SECTION 9.12.
Georgia Law. This Agreement and each Note shall be
construed in accordance with and governed by the law of the State of Georgia.

SECTION 9.13. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained
in this Agreement, the Notes or any of the other Loan Documents should be
invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and
enforceability of the remaining provisions contained herein and therein shall
not in any way be affected or impaired thereby and shall be enforced to the
greatest extent permitted by law.
SECTION 9.14. Interest. In no event shall the amount of interest due or payable
hereunder or under the Notes exceed the maximum rate of interest allowed by
applicable law, and in the event any such payment is inadvertently made to any
Bank by the Borrower or inadvertently received by any Bank, then such excess sum
shall be credited as a payment of principal, unless the Borrower shall notify
such Bank in writing that it elects to have such excess sum returned forthwith.
It is the express intent hereof that the Borrower not pay and the Banks not
receive, directly or indirectly in any manner whatsoever, interest in excess of
that which may legally be paid by the Borrower under applicable law.
SECTION 9.15. Interpretation. No provision of this Agreement or any of the other
Loan Documents shall be construed against or interpreted to the disadvantage of
any party hereto by any court or other governmental or judicial authority by
reason of such party having or being deemed to have structured or dictated such
provision.
SECTION 9.16. Consent to Jurisdiction. The Borrower (a) submits to personal
jurisdiction in the State of Georgia, the courts thereof and the United States
District Courts sitting therein, for the enforcement of this Agreement, the
Notes and the other Loan Documents, (b) waives any and all personal rights under
the law of any jurisdiction to object on any basis (including, without
limitation, inconvenience of forum) to jurisdiction or venue within the State of
Georgia for the purpose of litigation to enforce this Agreement, the Notes or
the other Loan Documents, and (c) agrees that service of process may be made
upon it in the manner prescribed in Section 9.01 for the giving of notice to the
Borrower. Nothing herein contained, however, shall prevent the Administrative
Agent from bringing any action or exercising any rights against any security and
against the Borrower personally, and against any assets of the Borrower, within
any other state or jurisdiction.
SECTION 9.17. Designation. (a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained herein, any Bank (a "Designating Bank") may grant to one or more
special purpose funding vehicles (each, an "SPV"), identified as such in writing
from time to time by the Designating Bank to the Administrative Agent and the
Borrower, the option to provide to the Borrower all or any part of any Money
Market Loan that such Designating Bank would otherwise be obligated to make to
the Borrower pursuant to this Agreement; provided that (i) nothing herein shall
constitute a commitment by any SPV to make any Money Market Loan, (ii) if any
SPV elects not to exercise such option or otherwise fails to provide all or any
part of such Money Market Loan, the Designating Bank shall be obligated to make
such Money Market Loan pursuant to the terms hereof, and (iii) the Designating
Bank shall remain liable for any indemnity or other payment obligation with
respect to its Commitment hereunder.
(b) As to any Money Market Loans or portion thereof made by it, each
SPV shall have all the rights that a Bank making such Money Market Loans or
portion thereof would have had under this Agreement; provided, however, that
each SPV shall have granted to its Designating Bank an irrevocable power of
attorney, to deliver and receive all communications and notices under this
Agreement (and any other Loan Documents) and to exercise on such SPV's behalf,
all of such SPV's voting rights under this Agreement. No additional Money Market
Note shall be required to evidence the Money Market Loans or portion thereof
made by an SPV; and the related Designating Bank shall be deemed to hold its
Money Market Note as agent for such SPV to the extent of the Money Market Loans
or portion thereof funded by such SPV. In addition, any payments for the account
of any SPV shall be paid to its Designating Bank as agent for such SPV.
(c) Each party hereto hereby agrees that no SPV shall be liable for any
indemnity or payment under this Agreement for which a Bank would otherwise be
liable. In furtherance of the foregoing, each party hereto hereby agrees (which
agreements shall survive the termination of this Agreement) that, prior to the
date that is one year and one day after the payment in full of all outstanding
commercial paper or other senior indebtedness of any SPV, it will not institute
against, or join any other person in instituting against, such SPV any
bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency or liquidation proceedings
under the laws of the United States or any State thereof.
(d) In addition, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in
this Section 9.17 or otherwise in this Agreement, any SPV may (i) at any time
and without paying any processing fee therefor, assign or participate all or a
portion of its interest in any Money Market Loans to the Designating Bank or to
any financial institutions providing liquidity and/or credit support to or for
the account of such SPV to support the funding or maintenance of Money Market
Loans and (ii) disclose on a confidential basis any non-public information
relating to its Money Market Loans to any rating agency, commercial paper dealer
or provider of any surety, guarantee or credit or liquidity enhancements to such
SPV. This Section 9.17 may not be amended without the written consent of any
Designating Bank affected thereby.
SECTION 9.18.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in any number of
counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with the same effect as if the
signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be
duly executed, under seal, by their respective authorized officers as of the day
and year first above written.

LA-Z-BOY INCORPORATED
By:

_______________________________(SEAL)
Title: ______________________________

1284 North Telegraph Road
Monroe, Michigan 48162
Attention: Gene Hardy
Telecopy number: (734) 457-2005
Telephone number: (734) 241-4306

COMMITMENTS

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A., as Administrative
Agent and as a Bank

$42,500,000
By:

_______________________________(SEAL)
Title: ______________________________

Lending Office
Wachovia Bank, N.A.
Syndication Services
191 Peachtree Street, N.E., 27th Floor
Mail Code: GA-0382
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-1757
Attention: Lynn Smith, Supervisor,
Syndicated Loan Services
Telecopy number: (404) 332-5144
Telephone number: (404) 332-6971
With a copy to:
Wachovia Bank, N.A.
191 Peachtree Street, N.E.
Mail Code: GA-0370
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-1757
Attention: Kathryn Proctor
Telecopy number: (404) 332-6898
Telephone number: (404) 332-4036

COMMITMENT

COMERICA BANK, as Syndication Agent and
as a Bank

$37,250,000
By:_______________________________(SEAL)
Name: __________________________________
Title: _________________________________
Lending Office
One Detroit Center
500 Woodward Avenue
Detroit, Michigan 48226-3268
Attention: Anthony Davis
Assistant Vice President, U.S.
Banking-Midwest I
Telecopy number:
(313) 222-9514
Telephone number: (313) 222-9452

COMMITMENT

SUNTRUST BANK, as Documentation Agent
and as a Bank

$37,250,000
By: ______________________________(SEAL)
Name:___________________________________
Title:__________________________________
Lending Office
303 Peachtree Street, 3rd Floor
MC-1928
Atlanta Georgia 30308
(or)
P.O. Box 4418, MC-1928
Atlanta, Georgia 30302-4418
Attention: William Humphries
Director
Telecopy number:
(404) 588-8505
Telephone number: (404) 724-3931

COMMITMENT
$28,500,000

BANK ONE, MICHIGAN
By: ______________________________(SEAL)
Name: __________________________________
Title: _________________________________
Lending Office
611 Woodward Avenue
Mail Suite MI-874
Detroit, Michigan 48226
Attention: Bill Goodhue
Managing Director
Telecopy number:
(313) 226-0588
Telephone number: (313) 225-2227

COMMITMENT
$28,500,000

BRANCH BANKING & TRUST COMPANY
By: ______________________________(SEAL)
Name: John Bondurant
Title: Senior Vice President
Lending Office
201 West Market Street
Greensboro, North Carolina 27401
(or)
P.O. Box 26122
Greensboro, North Carolina 27402
Attention: John Bondurant
Senior Vice President
Telecopy number:
(336) 433-4099
Telephone number: (336) 433-4075

COMMITMENT
$28,500,000

KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
By: ______________________________(SEAL)
Name: __________________________________
Title: _________________________________
Lending Office
127 Public Square
Mail Code: OH-01-27-0606
Cleveland, Ohio 44114
Attention: Mark LoSchiavo
Telecopy number:
(216) 689-4981
Telephone number: (216) 689-0598

COMMITMENT

BANK OF TOKYO-MITSUBISHI, LTD.,
CHICAGO BRANCH

$28,500,000
By: ______________________________(SEAL)
Name: __________________________________
Title: _________________________________
Lending Office
227 West Monroe Street
Suite 2300
Chicago, Illinois 60606
Attention: Erich Friess
Vice President
Telecopy number:
(312) 696-4535
Telephone number: (312) 696-4654

COMMITMENT

FIFTH THIRD BANK, NORTHWESTERN
OHIO, N.A.

$17,250,000
By: ______________________________(SEAL)
Name: __________________________________
Title: _________________________________
Lending Office
606 Madison Avenue
Toledo, Ohio 43604
Attention: Bill Behe
Senior Vice President
Telecopy number:
(419) 259-7134
Telephone number: (419) 259-7135

COMMITMENT
$17,250,000

FIRST UNION

NATIONAL BANK

By: ______________________________(SEAL)

Name: __________________________________
Title: _________________________________
Lending Office
201 South College Street
CP-6
Charlotte, North Carolina 28288-0760
Attention: David Silander
Vice President
Telecopy number:
(704) 383-5124
Telephone number: (704) 374-4793

COMMITMENT
$17,250,000

NATIONAL CITY BANK
By: ______________________________(SEAL)
Name: __________________________________
Title: _________________________________
Lending Office
1001 South Worth
Birmingham, Michigan 48009-6943
Attention: Michael Hinz
Assistant Vice President
Telecopy number:
(248) 901-2033
Telephone number: (248) 901-2139

COMMITMENT
$17,250,000

THE FUJI BANK, LIMITED
By: ______________________________(SEAL)
Name: Peter L. Chinnici
Title: Senior Vice President & Group Head
Lending Office
The Fuji Bank, Limited
New York Branch
2 World Tade Center
79th Floor
New York, New York 10048
Attention: Loans Administration Dept.
Telecopy number:
(212) 775-1460
Telephone number: (212) 898-2088
With a copy to:
225 West Wacker Drive
Suite 2000
Chicago, Illinois 60606
Attention: Rick Dunning
Senior Vice President
Telecopy number:
(312) 621-3386
Telephone number: (312) 621-9485

TOTAL COMMITMENTS:
$300,000,000

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
We hereby consent to the incorpoation by reference in the Registration Statement
on Form S-8 (No. 333-95651) of La-Z-Boy Incorporated of our report dated May 31,
2000 relating to the consolidated financial statements of La-Z-Boy Incorporated,
which appears in this Current Report on Form 8-K.
/s/PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
Toledo, Ohio
May 31, 2000
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